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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialise in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has fully-integrated production plant in China
with around 426 staff as at 30 June 2020. Our facility is
best known for their quality with extensive capabilities in
jewellery design, direct stone sourcing, lapidary, alloying and
gold refining. The management of the Group is known for its
commitment to quality, and its finished products are visible
testaments to that commitment.
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Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the fiscal year ended 30 June 2020, the Group's
consolidated revenue recorded a decrease of approximately
HK$20.7 million or 4.7% from last year's HK$441.0 million
to HK$420.3 million. During the year, loss attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$15.3 million as compared
to last year’s profit of HK$43.7 million. The loss for the
year was mainly due to (i) decrease in revenue and gross
profit of approximately HK$20.7 million and approximately
HK$17.0 million respectively; and (ii) recognition of loss of
approximately HK$5.3 million arising from the change in fair
value of investment properties for the fiscal year ended 30
June 2020 as compared to a gain of approximately HK$37.4
million in the pervious fiscal year. The basic loss per share
was HKO0.22 cent (2019: basic earnings per share of HK0.64
cent).
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The financial year of 2020 under review has been one of the
most challenging times as the Coronavirus (“COVID-19")
pandemic severely affected the world economy and led
the global trade to almost a standstill. The outbreak and
the resultant quarantine measures imposed by countries
around the world not only suppressed consumer demand
but have also disrupted normal operations on a global
scale. International tradeshows were cancelled due to
severity and concerns over the spread of COVID-19.
Overseas offices and retail stores in USA, United Kingdom,
Europe and other countries were required to close and lock
down for several months. Moreover, the prolonged trade
tensions between China and USA also exerted significant
pressure on international trade. As a result, the Group's
revenue on trading of fine jewellery recorded a decrease
of approximately HK$16.2 million or 3.9% from last year's
HK$419.2 million to HK$403.0 million for the year ended
30 June 2020. The jewellery segment results decreased from
last year's profit of approximately HK$5.2 million to a loss
of approximately HK$20.6 million for the year ended 30
June 2020. Such loss was mainly attributable to the drop in
revenue and unavoidable fixed operating expenses incurred
during the lock down period. At the same time, the Group
has also made necessary provision of impairment loss on
trade receivables.

While the COVID-19 has significantly impacted the business
trading environment, at the same time, it has also pushed
ecommerce and online shopping to become one of fastest
growing channels under many travel bans and social
distancing policies worldwide. The Group has taken proactive
steps in enhancing its digital marketing and ecommerce
platform to further penetrate in this arena. Our overseas
sales team has been communicating with our customers and
offering new products through our newly developed B2B
platform. Although result has yet to be seen, the responses
from customers have been positive and the management
strongly believes that the Group will become a stronger
supplier and partner in the future.
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In view of great market uncertainties and unprecedented
impact, the Group has prudently streamlined its operations
and deployed stringent cost control measures at all offices.
However, recovery of consumer demand around the world
is expected to take some time. Despite the fact that the
newly acquired subsidiaries in USA have strengthened the
Group's local presence and broadened the customer base,
there will continue to be great challenges ahead. The overall
market condition will likely to remain weak in the near term.
Nevertheless, the Group will stay committed in achieving
sustainable developments and providing quality services to
maintain its competitiveness.

In the property investment and development segment, the
Group holds 75% of the interests in a piece of land located
at No. 232 Wan Chai Road, Hong Kong with a site area
of approximately 5,798 sqg. ft. The Group shall redevelop
the land into a premium grade office and retail composite
building of approximately 28-storey tall with a gross floor
area of approximately 86,908 sq. ft. and to hold it for long
term leasing investment purpose. The foundation work has
been completed in September 2019 and the superstructure
work has commenced in October 2019. Despite of some
minor delays in material supply, the project is in good
progress and is expected to be completed in 2021 as
scheduled.

The Group also owns 90% interests of sites at Nos. 7, 7A,
9, and 9A of Cheung Wah Street, Cheung Sha Wan, with
a site area of approximately 3,240 sqg. ft. The plan is to
redevelop the existing buildings into a 25-storey residential
development with 2-storey of retail podium/high-rise
composite building, with a proposed gross floor area of
approximately 29,110 sq. ft. The demolition of the existing
building has been completed in July 2019, and foundation
works have commenced in September 2019. The expected
completion date of the redevelopment is around the third
quarter of 2022.
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Furthermore, the 12 floors of Glassview Commercial
Building with a gross floor area of approximately 14,508
sg. ft. acquired in 2018 are currently fully let and continues
to generate a steady income to the Group. The building is
located at 65 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, New Territories.
During the financial year, the Group managed to enhance
the overall rental yield with renewed and new leases.

In the mining segment, operation at HongZhuang Gold Mine
was minimized. The Company has been conducting the
exploration at the north eastern of Yuanling. Meanwhile, we
will continue developing new shaft and re-visiting the old
shaft in the Yuanling mine site.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Going forward, the COVID-19 pandemic will continue
to have significant impact to the Group’s business in the
coming year. The economic slowdown is expected to
continue and the market recovery will be a long path.
In such turbulent times, the management is mindful of
the uncertainties and is staying vigilant and cautious. As
the COVID-19 continues to unfold, the global trade will
be fundamentally reshaped. Regional demand will likely
increase, and the trade war between China and USA will
also further promote local production and procurement. The
Group believes that by strategically strengthening its market
position in UK and USA, it will benefit from the market
transformation by offering more local services and support in
the long run.

Furthermore, with the completion of the acquisition of two
US jewellery companies in 2019, the Group will further
expand its market share and position in the online retail
segment. The newly acquired companies operate an efficient
drop shipping services which is crucial to online retailers.
Once the economic situation recovers, the Group will be in
a strengthened competitive position and ready to make the
most of the opportunities ahead.
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On the whole, the Group will continue to diversify the
income streams from its property and investment segments.
In the near future, the Group foresees more contribution
from its existing commercial and residential redevelopment
projects. The management is optimistic about the future
growth and potential return of its businesses.

REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON MINING
RIGHT AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Directors
appointed an independent professional valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited, to perform a valuation with respect
to Hongzhuang Gold Mine situated at Henan Province,
China. Based on the valuation of recoverable amount of
Hongzhuang Gold Mine, reversal of impairment losses on
mining right and property, plant and equipment amounting
to HK$17,592,000 (2019: Nil) and HK$464,000 (2019: Nil)
respectively were recognized as the result, which primarily
due to the change of market gold price during the year
ended 30 June 2020.

The fair value of Hongzhuang Gold Mine was estimated
based on the Market Based Approach with reference to
comparable transactions, in which such approach was
consistent with mining right valuation as at 30 June 2019.

The key inputs used in the valuation were the consideration
to-resources multiples obtained from comparable
transactions, the adjusted contained gold metal based on the
technical review report prepared by SRK Consulting China
Limited under Chinese standard.

The Chinese standard resources estimates as reported by SRK
Consulting China Limited were risk with uncertainty. The
estimated fair value of the Hongzhuang Gold Mine has been
assigned a lower or no credit to those resources with high
resources risks.

All the above-mentioned reversal of impairment loss on
mining right and property, plant and equipment was
included in the Group’s mining segment in the reportable
and operating segment of the Group.
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ANNUAL UPDATE ON DETAILS OF RESOURCES
AND/OR RESERVES UNDER RULES OF 18.15, 18.17
AND 18.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

There has been no material change on the resources and/or
reserves of the Group during the year. The following table
shows the details of resources and/or reserves of the Group
as at 30 June 2020:

RERS BLER HEERE HEEY EE&miL
Type of
mining Gold  Reporting
Reporting date  operation resources  Standard Gold grade
() (%/%)
() (91)
“ECEE T 1073 REIREI22D 558
~A=TH Underground PRC 122b
30 June 2020 546 HEIRE3N 1.89
PRC 332
166 PERE3RN 446
PRC 333
“ECEE T - RERE 12D -
~A=TH Underground PRC 122b
30 June 2020 - PEIRE 333 -
PRC 333

Factors and assumptions such as gold grade, ore body
thickness and shape of vein were considered for estimating
the resources and/or reserves. Please refer to Section 8
of Appendix VII of the circular of the Company dated 25
January 2010 for further information of the resources and/or
reserves estimation.

* The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only



Annual Report 2020 “F ¥

Chairman’s Statement m =%

nBEE MBERREEER

RZE-_ZEFXNA=Z+H &%
BvEEBELX (REBEFE
BRAERRBENEEREFENE) A
0.1344 (ZZF— L% :0.0692) ° &
HFRILRT R HE A G E BN
RERASEHAE- R LIRS
£ %8 /5468,521,0008 T (—Z— N,
F:621,380,00087T) £ B LB
TTET - ARBRESEFE W
REMEGEERIE  BIBEBA
AIRIE - ERBRRRERER E

fth & B # 584,347,000 7t (= &
— JL4E : 57,889,000/ 7T ) © LAY T
RETFHEZRITEREMERLY
#751,663,000/8 70 (—F— L4 :
743,575,000 ) - BEABIRTE
HREREEZHE B2HEEE
H—fe

RZZFE-_ZTFXA=+TH Xx&HE
LHESRBREFEEMRAL B
EHEREEER 2R ML Wi
MEIEE AR REESXHRITE
R KB AEB B ETBE
B EERBAEEEAREESR

TRNBELSERZ-

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2020, the Group's gearing ratio was 0.1344
(2019: 0.0692), which is calculated on net debt divided by
total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum
of bank and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
The cash and cash equivalents of HK$468,521,000 (2019:
HK$621,380,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and British Pound. Other
borrowings in respect of amounts due to joint ventures,
amounts due to related companies, loan from a controlling
shareholder, amounts due to non-controlling interests and
lease liabilities were approximately of HK$84,347,000 (2019:
HK$57,889,000). Bank and other loans denominated in
HK$ and US$ were approximately HK$751,663,000 (2019:
HK$743,575,000). For details of pledge of assets in respect
of bank loans, please refer to the PLEDGE OF ASSETS section.

The decrease in the Group’s cash and cash equivalent as
at 30 June 2020 were mainly due to cash outflows from
operating activities, acquisition of two US companies and
partial repayment of bank loans. In line with the Group's
prudent financial management, the Directors considered that
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its ongoing
operational requirements.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2020, the Group’s bank loans denominated
in HK$ of HK$719,289,000 (2019: HK$743,575,000)
are secured by the Group’s certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, certain right-of-use assets,
property under development, pledged by ordinary shares
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and guaranteed by
corporate guarantees executed by the Company. Whereas,
a bank loan denominated in US$ in the equivalent amount
of HK$27,969,000 (2019: Nil) is secured by all the assets of
a subsidiary of the Company and guaranteed by corporate
guarantees executed by the Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined with
reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or Prime
Rate for Hong Kong Dollar borrowings, London Interbank
Offered Rate for US Dollar borrowings and the benchmark
lending rate of the People’s Bank of China for Renminbi
borrowings. The Group also made use of foreign exchange
forward contract in order to minimise exchange rate risk as
a result of fluctuation in British Pound. There was no change
to the Group’s capital structure during the year ended 30
June 2020. In light of the current financial position of the
Group and provided there is no unforeseeable circumstance,
the management does not anticipate the need to change the
capital structure.
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NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of 85% shareholding in two US jewellery
companies

On 6 May 2019, the Group had entered into a stock
purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”) with
independent third parties relating to acquisition of 85%
of the shareholding in two US jewellery companies, which
principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
gold and platinum wedding bands in the US, at a total
consideration of US$5,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,678,000) in accordance with the terms of the SP
Agreement (the “Novell Acquisition”). The Novell Acquisition
constitutes a major transaction for the Company and has
been completed on 7 August 2019. Details of the Novell
Acquisition were set out in the announcement and circular
of the Company dated 8 May 2019 and 27 June 2019
respectively.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group disposed
of its 100% equity interest and inter-company loan of
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Factory Limited and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, which owns a factory in Panyu District,
Guangdong, the PRC, to an independent third party at a
total consideration of HK$13,134,000 and recognised gain
on disposal of subsidiaries in the amount of approximately
HK$12,477,000.

ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2020, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles has
advanced a loan in the amount of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,388,000) to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the loan is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on 25 October 2023.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2020, the Company has provided guarantees
to the extent of HK$607,158,000 (2019: HK$611,275,000)
with respect to bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the
guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay the banks
if the banks are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting
date, no provision for the Company’s obligation under
the guarantee contract has been made as the directors
considered that it was unlikely the repayment of the loans
would be in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2020, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments of approximately HK$318,551,000 (2019:
HK$23,402,000), which was mainly the capital commitments
for the investment properties undertaken by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 continues to spread around
the world and its duration is still uncertain, a prolonged
coronavirus pandemic may have an adverse impact on the
Group's future financial performance, even though part of
the impact has been reflected into the year ended 30 June
2020. The Group will continue to closely monitor the latest
development of the outbreak of COVID-19 so as to adopt
positive counter-measures to overcome any challenges
arising and to assess the related impact to the Group on a
continuous basis.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group employs a total of approximately 623 employees
with the majority in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration to
its employees is largely based on common industrial practice.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13
July 2010, under which, the Company may grant options
to eligible persons including directors and employees.
During the year, the Company has granted 12,000,000
share options to certain employees. As at 30 June 2020,
132,000,000 share options were granted pursuant to the
scheme since its adoption.

The purpose of the share option scheme is (i) to recruit
and retain high calibre eligible persons and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group; (ii) to recognise the
contributions of eligible persons to the growth of the Group
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and (iii) to motivate and to give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
share option scheme was 180,830,334 which represented
2.65% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 30 June
2020. The number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible person in any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s shares
in issue at the adoption date.
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The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company as consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for shares of
the Company shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The Share option scheme was expired on 12 July 2020.
Therefore, the Company shall propose a new share option
scheme to be adopted by the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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As at 30 June 2020, 132,000,000 share options have been
granted to certain directors and employees of the Company
at an exercise price of HK$0.138, HK$0.121, HK$0.245,
HK$0.149 or HK$0.052 each subject to the terms of the
Company'’s share option scheme. 10,000,000 share options
have been exercised during the year ended 30 June 2015
since the grant of the share options. Details of movement of
the share options up to 30 June 2020 are set out below:

FoTEAASTAZEDHEN
FEnR
BREHE
Number of share options
- SHEYH RIT-AF RZB_°%%
~ gHAn AMFIER tA-R2 ~ ~A=tHZ
REARZHER (R/B/%) (T8 BRITER BB HHE & REATH RENFTE &
Closing price
per Share
immediately Balance Granted Exercised Balance
Name or category Date of Grant  Exercisable Exercise Price before the as at During During as at
of Grantee (dd/mm/yyyy)  Period per Share  date of grant 1 July 2019 the Year the Year 30 June 2020
(87 (&)
(HKS) (HKS)
RELRE 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.138 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 070772015 - 0.245 0.200 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/112016 03112016 - 0.149 0.150 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
RERLL 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0138 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 0.200 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 0.150 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
EERTE 07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 0200 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Yam Tat Wing 06/07/2025
03/112016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 0.150 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
BAREE 2500712014 2500772014 - 0.121 0.120 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Wong Edward 24/07/2024
Gwon-hing
07/07/2015 070712015 - 0.245 0.200 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 0.150 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
EfbES 22/06/2020 22/06/2020 - 0.052 0.051 - 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
Other Employees 21/06/2030
110,000,000 12,000,000 - 122,000,000
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Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries,
all transactions and the borrowings of the Group are
primarily denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and
Renminbi. During the year, the Group had entered into
foreign exchange forward contract in order to minimise the
exchange rate risk as a result of fluctuation in British Pound.
Management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
risk in British Pound and recent fluctuation in Reminbi and
will take appropriate actions when necessary.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Thursday, 3 December 2020 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner
as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 30 November 2020 to Thursday, 3
December 2020, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 27 November
2020.
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Bt ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

BE - AAZELIBERRES Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take
g2 ROBFARERMOBRE -FP R this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
ERBH —BEURIFEREEAE shareholders, customers and business partners for their
WHRBRARMNEEREZE continuous supports and trust, and extend my heartiest
BIR N TR TIE EEE thanks and appreciation to our directors, to all staffs, for
ATER3R - BRI - BPIG BB their relentless efforts, dedication and resilience during this
FARAR R B TR BREL - RAFMPIETR challenging period. Looking ahead, we will continue our
ZfEBE- endeavor to overcome the future challenges and enhance

the value of our business.

RREFS On behalf of the Board

FE Chan Wai Lap, Victor

R & 3L Chairman

BA ZETEFAAZTNAB Hong Kong, 28 September 2020
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, was appointed as Chairman of
the Group since 2017. He joined the Group in 2000 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 2006.
He currently strategises the direction of the Group and also
provides leadership to the Board. He manages and oversees
the overall Group operations and is responsible in leading
the management on various aspects of the Group such
as sales and marketing, product development, investment
and financing activities, as well as corporate and business
development, etc.

Mr. Chan holds a number of public and honorary positions,
such as Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade
Manufacturers Association; a member of the 10th Executive
Committee of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong China
Ltd.; Founding Chairman of the Youth Chapter of the Hong
Kong Young Industrialists Council; Member of the Jewellery
Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council; Executive Committee member of Federation of
Hong Kong Industries; and President of Entrepreneurs’
Organization (Hong Kong and China South Chapters). He is
also a Director of Hong Kong United Youth Association.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry for several years. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree with double majors in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance from Babson College in
Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan and
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.
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Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, JP, is Founder of the
Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive Director of the Company and
holds directorship in various subsidiaries of the Company. He
is responsible for strategic planning, corporate development
and investment of the Group. Dr. Chan has over 60 years
of experience in the jewellery industry. He is currently the
Honorary Permanent President of the Hong Kong Jewellery
& Jade Manufacturers Association; Honorary Member of
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd.; Honorary
Court Member and Institutional Advancement and Outreach
Committee Member of the University Court of The Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology; as well as a
member of other trade associations. In community, charitable
and political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent
Honorary Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association
Ltd., and Member of The Association of Chairmen of The
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed
a Committee Member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference during 2003-2016;
and the Founding President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese
Enterprise Federation since 2006. Dr. Chan is the husband of
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, is the Managing Director
and Co-Founder of the Group. Ms. Cheng is an Executive
Director of the Company and holds directorship in various
subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for the daily
operations, financial management, corporate development,
sales and marketing as well as strategic planning of the
Group. Ms. Cheng has over 45 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and has been actively involved in the
business development of the Group since the beginning. Ms.
Cheng also plays an active role in the community, currently
Director and Treasurer of Zonta Club of Hong Kong (2020-
2022), and Vice Chairman, Executive Committee and
Honorary Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation of
Women. In addition, she was awarded as one of the “100
Chinese Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs” in 2006 and
was a Committee Member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Ms. Cheng is the
wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.
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Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995. She
is an Executive Director of the Company and is responsible
for property development in Hong Kong, retail operation
and the business administration functions in the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from University of California, Berkeley
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Ms. Chan
is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of
America. She was Charter President of Zonta Club of Hong
Kong Il and Area Director of Zonta International (2010-
2012), actively involved in the Zonta Community. She is
also a member of Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur
Association. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing, joined the Group in
1998, and has been appointed as Executive Director of
the Company since 1 March 2014. He is also the General
Manager of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr,
Wong has over 30 years experience in manufacturing, sales
marketing and management in jewellery industry. Mr. Wong
is responsible for overall development and management of
the Group's jewellery business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, joined the Group in 2011 as General
Manager — Business Development and Mining of the Group,
was appointed as Executive Director on 1 March 2014
and was re-designated as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2017. Mr. Yam was educated up
to matriculation and he obtained a certificate in Personnel
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yam had served in the Hong
Kong Police Force (the “Force”) for over 37 years, he was
previously Deputy Commissioner, Operations from January
2007 to March 2010. Mr. Yam has extensive experience in
leadership, public administration and crisis management.
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During his career in the Force, Mr. Yam was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star Medal, Colonial Police Long
Service Medal with 3rd clasp, the Colonial Police Medal
for Meritorious Service, the Hong Kong Police Medal for
Distinguished Service and Chief Executives Commendation.
In August 2011, he was appointed an Affiliated Fellow of
Wu Yee Sun College of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
for a term of five years. The appointment has been extended
for another term of five years in August 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 40 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He
was subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government in the year 2007. From
March 2016 to August 2018, Mr. Yu was the Chairman and
an Executive Director of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1557), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies and
was a Director of a private company engaging in logistics and
forwarding.
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Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze
graduated with a Bachelor's degree in Science from
University of Wisconsin-La Crosse, United States in 1985. Mr.
Sze has extensive experience in investment and corporate
management and is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 25), ST International Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8521), Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2360) and Jianzhong Construction Development
Limited (Stock Code: 589), all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He has resigned as Non-executive Director
of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3778) and Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 761) (listing of which shares on the Stock
Exchange has been cancelled with effect from 24 August
2018), with effect from 6 June 2019 and 21 August 2019
respectively. He is also an Executive Director of a private
company, Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited, and holds
directorship in various private companies. Mr. Sze is a
Deputy Director of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC")
Subcommittee of Human Resources and Environment and an
Executive Director of the Beijing Committee of the CPPCC
and the Permanent Honorary President of the Chinese
Manufacturers” Association of Hong Kong. He is also elected
as a member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Sze was
appointed Justice of the Peace and awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2011 and 2015 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010.
Mr. Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3778), a Company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He has over 25 years of experience in accounting,
finance and administration and has held senior positions
in multinational companies. He obtained his MBA from
University of Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management m EE K SR EEA S 2 EFHE

Annual Report 2020 4

RZZE-—RF=ZAZ_ZT—-)\FN
A REEEABZMM ET AR
MEBERABR QA (BRHRE:
1557) 2 B FERTEF-R_F
TNEFE=ZAZ-_T——F+tH
REBERNFARNZEEFRBER R
—ERENFZRAE_EERLF+—
A BEFHBEIMETAGRSSE
EERAR (AEBETFTIEEER
PRAR) (BRDR5E:547) Z 81T
B TR ZEZLF=ZHAHEZ
ENF_RAEEVMBERE -FR =
TR+ FNAEZEERLF AL
FEBEMINERRET S LT AT
LJ International Inc. ( 8 &T3E 7 i% 15
RS : JADE) 2BV EZ - N _EF
—§—-—AZ-TFT=F+-A &
¥&{Te-Lux Corporation (JASDAQ
1D 45 6811) (38 Quants
Inc.) Z MJ & A Fle-Lux (Hong Kong)
Limited (28 #8Quants Capital (Hong
Kong) Limited) 7EE - B & &5
EELRPEZBEEERSE K
R —NMAAFE-—NANANFRK
—NMNANFEZZETZTFHEHR
FT LM AR ZEEBREBR AR
(RELTEERBERLAAR) (KA
5% - 128) Z /& 2 AINew Media
CorporationZ S B B IR K&
=

From March 2016 to August 2018, Mr. Cheung was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of K. H. Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1557), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-
time tutor at the Open University of Hong Kong. From March
2004 to November 2007, he was an Executive Director of
Sun Innovation Holdings Limited (now known as Digital
Domain Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 547), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief
Financial Officer from March 2007 to February 2008. He was
an Independent Director of LJ International Inc. (NASDAQ:
JADE), a company listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to
October 2007. From January 2001 to December 2003, he
was a Director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
Quants Capital (Hong Kong) Limited), a subsidiary of e-Lux
Corporation (JASDAQ: 6811) (now known as Quants Inc.),
in charge of value-added telecommunications services in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and China. He was the group financial
controller and a director of New Media Corporation, a
subsidiary of e-New Media Company Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 128) (now known
as ENM Holdings Limited) from 1995 to 1999 and 1999 to
2000, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, FGA, DGA, FGAHK, CG (Diamond),
joined the Group in 1987, is currently the Director of
Operations. With over 30 years of experience in application
system implementation and supply chain management in the
jewellery industry, he also holds gemmologist qualification
— a fellow member of The Gemmological Association of
Great Britain and director of The Gemmological Association
of Hong Kong, and is appointed as RPL Assessor at
Qualifications Framework of jewellery industry by Vocational
Training Council. Mr. Choi now oversees the daily operation
in logistic support and factory production, and administration
and human resources of the Group. He is also in charge of
the implementation of ISO Quality Management System and
best practices project.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The board of directors
(the "Board”) considers shareholders can maximise their
benefits from good corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2020, the Company has complied with
the Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions
A2.1, A4.1 and C.2.5 which are explained in the following
relevant paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time performing
them.
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REVLE Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor
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REHRT Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
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The Board held six meetings during the financial year ended
30 June 2020. Attendance of individual Director at the Board
meetings, other Board Committee meetings, the annual
general meeting (“2019 AGM"), and general meeting held
on 16 July 2019 during financial year ended 30 June 2020
are as follows:

EE DA e

Meetings Attended/Held
“F-1%
EnZRE HMZEE REZ8¢ RE
EEEE g% g% g% RRxe  @Efxe
2019
Meetings of ~ Meeting of  Meeting of Annual
Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General General

Meetings ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting

b/ - - 1N N [l
b/ - - - [l [l
b/ - n - 1N 1N
b/ - - - 1N N
b/ - - - 1N [l
506 - - - [l [l
506 112 071 - n n
b/ 0 N 1N 1N N
506 11 071 - 1N [l
506 21 - n n n

Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (“Mr. Victor Chan”) an Executive
Director and also the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Victor
Chan currently strategizes the direction of the Group and
also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Mr. Victor Chan is also responsible
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and that all Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable,
in a timely manner.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (“Ms. Cheng”) is the Managing
Director of the Company. She is responsible for day-to-day
management and marketing activities of the Group.

Although the Company does not have a post for Chief
Executive Officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements
of the issuer’s business. It should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
[t should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. Non-executive directors should
be of sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry
weight.

As at 30 June 2020, the Board comprises five Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Victor Chan, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles (“Dr. Chan”), Ms. Cheng, Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
("Ms. Vicki Chan”) and Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing; one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yam Tat Wing; four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Shiu
Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All Directors are expressly identified
by categories of Executive Directors, Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors, in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Victor Chan is the brother of Ms. Vicki Chan. They are
the son and daughter, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 24 to 29 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk.
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A.4. Appointments, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election
at regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for
the resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s AGM at least once every three
years in accordance with articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Board considers
that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1 is not material
as Non-executive Directors are subjected to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years and re-election.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability
under code provision A.4.3, any further re-appointment of
an Independent Non-executive Director who has served the
Company's Board for more than nine years will be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr.
Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank have served as
Independent Non-executive Directors for more than 9 years
and all of them had met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from Mr.
Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Sze
Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank a confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
they have not engaged in any daily executive management
of the Group. They continue to demonstrate the attributes
of an Independent Non-executive Director by providing
independent view and advice and there is no evidence that
their tenure have had any impact on their independence.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope of work
in the past years, the Directors consider Mr. Chan Ping Kuen,
Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung
Chi Fai, Frank to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rule. Having considering their valuable knowledge
and experiences in the Group'’s business, the Board considers
the re-election of Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu
Tin, Paul, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank as
independent Non-Executive Directors are in the best interest
of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

A.5. Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference as set out in the Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy,
and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Committee will also review the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board's composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Victor Chan. The other members are Mr. Chan
Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities
and development. Given the essential unitary nature of the
board, non-executive directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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Reading
materials/
regulatory
updates®/
Attending
= Directors seminar
HITEF Executive Directors
PR1ZES S Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor v
PREESZH 1 ' BBS AT #+ Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, 8BS, Jp v
/Rt Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley v
PREFH L+ Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki v
mARELEE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing v
FFHITESE Non-executive Director
FiEREAE Mr. Yam Tat Wing v
BIIFPITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIE KA BBS MBE- A¥4+ M. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP v
ok A 5 A Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek v
MEER R 5L A+ BBS AT #it Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP v
SRS A Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank v
# BBEAECYEE TR mE # Reading materials concerning latest developments in
B A EERESTHRE Y ME - corporate governance practices, relevant legal and regulatory
developments.
SEEBENERESETREEZH At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent
REEZEITERAAGHBEENAE reappointment, the Director is required to disclose to

NBSRAABE RIS E RS the Company the number and nature of offices held in
DA K2 B 88 KEHE - LA KFTH A public companies or organisations and other significant

By D ERA RARIEST commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are
R BRI VEBAANT also required to notify the Company whenever there are

changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.
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The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are highly skilled professionals with
expertise and experience in the field of accounting, financial
management and business. All Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in
Board meetings to bring in independent judgement to bear
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts.
They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor the
reporting of performance. They also take the lead where
potential conflicts of interest arise and serve the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. The Company
has received written confirmation from all the Independent
Non-executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors should also attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. All
Independent Non-executive Directors were present at the
annual general meeting and general meeting and were
available to answer questions.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of
the Company. The Company has made specific enquiry with
all Directors and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 30 June 2020.
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A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their
duties and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company'’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’” remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee, with delegated responsibility, is responsible
for annually reviewing the existing remuneration policy
including the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management whereas the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2020 to discuss remuneration related matters
and to review and approve the remuneration policy of the
Directors and of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2020 is set out below:

A#
Number of persons
Fr B 4H 71 Emolument bands 2020 2019
= %1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 1 1
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing consolidated
financial statements of each financial period, which shall give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2020, the Directors have made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 65 to
73 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020.

For the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile
and pages 7 to 23 under Chairman'’s Statement.
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The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Risk management and Internal control

The board should ensure that the issuer establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board requires management to establish
and maintain appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Evaluation of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering financial,
operational and compliance controls had been done on
an on going basis. Review of internal controls on different
systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis based
on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

Code Provision C.2.5 provides that the issuer should have
an internal audit function. Issuers without an internal audit
function should review the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for the absence of such a
function.

The Company does not have an internal audit function
for the year ended 30 June 2020. Taking into account the
size and complexity of the operations of the Group, the
Company considers that the existing organisation structure
and the close supervision of the management could provide
sufficient internal control and risk management for the
Group. The audit committee of the Board regularly reviews
the effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk
management of the Group. The Board would review the
need to set up an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and its
duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for oversight of financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, and for
reviewing the financial information of annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company's
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.
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The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s
recommendation for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Company’s independent auditor.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the remuneration paid
and payable to BDO Limited is set out as below:

2020

FET

HK$°000

FEat IR Audit service 1,370
SEEFT IR (B E MR E RS Non-audit service (including other reporting

services) _

1,370
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Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on
issuer’s behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group’s business is the responsibility of
the management.
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When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of matters reserved
to the Board for decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties.

The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

D.3. Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company's policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.
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E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use
annual general meetings or other general meetings to
communicate with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2019 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2019 AGM are
disclosed on page 32.

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. It has been the
practice, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of
the Board Committees, together with the external auditor,
shall attend the AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Apart from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and the Articles of Association of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.



Annual Report 2020 “F ¥

AN

Corporate Governance Report m {EEERIRE

EFTEHESZ TILEE

RETA EFECR_F—=F
NATHRREFTEKREZTIEEK
R-ARRHBLREEZTENE
ZTCBmRZ HESGIFH
BERRSEEETHARES R
A B R ARRSERESS
REBEARBIEBAE  EXREE - &
RZTcEEAFEE N FE- K
EBANBER SN R ZTRE
REE BRERENRRMER - Fik -
XERBEESR BELR WL
MEkRGEFH - EFTEHEER
REERELERNEZTEHRES T
EREAFERR

R EBUER

RRABBN RIEREHRIBE A
BZEB-MRERTEZERE R
BERESER ARRERMA—
THEHER - RIBREREK EFE
EiIEERNEE (AP a%E) T
RWE: (FAEEZBEEZXE M
BN BHEEESBERKNEN
X 2R RBESMRATARK
EFERTEl (AR AR A K 7]
DR 2 28 (BB
W AEE R 2B FBHIA LA
REER EARNRE X RY BRI SR
M EMABEINBEE: (VB IR
FHEIE (IA) + (BRI ¢ (vi)
AEREERY: RViIEFERR
HEZEREBRE-

EEeRTHZEEBRRFEE
128

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy on 5 September 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of its Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
meritocracy, the Company will ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board at appropriate time.

Dividend policy

The Company seeks to provide stable and sustainable
returns to the shareholders. The Company has adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount. Under the Dividend Policy, the board of Directors
(the "Board”) shall, where appropriate, take into account,
among others, the following factors (i) the Group’s overall
results of operation, financial condition, expected working
capital requirements and capital expenditure requirements,
liquidity position and future expansions plans; (ii) the amount
of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company;
(iii) general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group; (vi) interim dividend paid, if any;
(v) interests of the Shareholders; (vi) statutory and regulatory
restrictions; and (vii) any other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from
time to time.
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E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.

F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important role in
supporting the board by ensuring good information flow
within the board and that board policy and procedures are
followed. The company secretary is responsible for advising
the board through the chairman and/or the chief executive
on governance matters and should also facilitate induction
and professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his
appointment and removal is subject to Board approval. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Director’s duties, such as by giving advice on
corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the fiscal
year 2020, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights may call for an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company'’s
registered office. Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
who have a right to vote or at least 50 members who have a
right to vote on the resolution of the annual general meeting
to which the requests relate, may put forward proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company
by sending a written request to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office. Procedures on how
shareholders can propose a person for election as a Director
are available at the Company’s website for shareholders’
information.

Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office of
the Company. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where
appropriate, will be forwarded to and answered by the Board
or relevant Board Committees.

Investor Relations

There were no significant changes in the Company’s Articles
of Association during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of the
Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 June 2020.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial performance for the year ended 30
June 2020 and the financial position of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 74 to 302.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position
are set out in the Chairman'’s Statement on pages 7 to 23 of
this Annual Report.
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FERBEAEEN PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
RERIBRERITHRER 1. Economic climate and individual market performance
HRHKENRBAREEZHE As jewellery and diamonds are luxury consumer
fn MBS R KBIRIRY products, the impact of global financial and economic
BEEEORBE hZEE conditions on consumer confidence and purchasing
MAgETEAEE 2 HER power would affect sales and results of the Group.
NG - REEMETISEE The economic growth or decline in our geographical
BRIMELEEEREH markets that affected consumer spending on jewellery
By BN ELREE would also affect our revenue of the Group. In
Z W o I AN - BB IRIFE Al B addition, economic environment would affect the
HBIREITEZEENA - 10 production cost of jewellery business such as rent,
M BINA  BEKEH labour cost, packaging and transportation cost etc.
VHEFHE KBERREETE In property side, economic climate directly affects
MEEBE RKEEHAEEY the value of properties and investors’ interest in
¥IEE B RES WA -2 our property projects and rental income. Rising
A B TRR R RHER construction costs, labour costs and material prices
AT ESTKYMEIER will affect the budget and the timing for completion
2 TEE RFRER - of the property projects.
FEBZRBEXEBFTERK The Group’s mining business requires substantial
®& - BARVBEZEKTE IR % investment and may not achieve expected financial
FE-BABRKEARETE results. The fluctuation in price of mineral ores may
WER R MEBEES 2 RE affect prospects of the investments and impairment
Al BRBEEE 2 [HE- of the mining business may affect the valuation of

mining assets.
™5 E kK 2. Market risk

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
details are set out in note 52 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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FEFEEREE FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FEMBEEEEOTEOT The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
below:
2020 2019 +/(-)
FET FET g
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
B EE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Yiza Revenue 420,315 440,967 -4.7%
EFE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 21.9% 24.7% -2.8ppE N E
R E RS HAT &R EBIT
(TeBITJ) (6,372) 32,241 -119.8%
EBITEL (%) EBIT margin (%) -1.5% 73% -88ppANE
RNATIHA AL (), (Loss)/Profit attributable to the owners
A of the Company (15,341) 43,679 -135.1%
CFEBE) HFE(%) Net (loss)/profit margin (%) -3.6% 9.9% -135ppE D
488 7 0] 3R (%) Return on total assets (%) -0.2% 09% -1.1ppADZ
FEMHEE KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
RAekBReEH Cash and cash equivalents 468,521 621,380 -24.6%
REYEEFE Net current assets 222,458 353,658 -37.1%
BEBE Total assets 3,456,478 3,475,287 -0.5%
BEeHE Total liabilities 1,090,203 1,052,856 3.5%
RITREMER Bank and other loans 751,663 743,575 1.1%
ARBHEAANEGEER Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 2,179,583 2,238,793 -2.6%
Aatb & Cash ratio 0.52 0.70 -25.7%
MBI R (f5) Current ratio (times) 1.25 1.40 -10.7%
BEEBBLE%) Gearing ratio 13.44% 6.92% 6.52ppA D2
PR 5 2 5] 4R (%) Return on shareholders’ equity (%) -0.7% 20% -2.7ppBESNE
FREAK (), /BF (Bl) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cent) (0.22) 0.64 -134.4%
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group promotes environmental protection by
raising the employees’ awareness of resources saving
and efficient use of energy. In recent years, the
Group has implemented several policies to encourage
employees for saving energy and paper. All these
policies aim at reducing resources and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the
commercial goals of the Group.

Operating Practices

The Group upholds high standards of operating
practices and complies with stringent jewellery
manufacturing standards. One of the subsidiaries
of the Company is a certified member of the
Responsible Jewellery Council (“RJC™). RIC is a not-
for-profit organization which promotes responsible
ethical, social and environmental practices, respect
human rights throughout the Diamond, Gold and
Platinum Group Metals jewellery supply chain. As
a certified member of the RIC, the subsidiary had
undergone independent, third party auditing to
show our business practices at all facilities within
the certification scope conform to RJC's Code of
Practices for business ethics, labour rights and working
conditions, social and environmental performance.
The Group has stringent requirements to maintain
high levels of quality control and responsible business
practices.

For further information about the environment
policies and performance of the Company during
the year, please refer to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules to be issued within
three months after the publication of this annual
report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
provides competitive remuneration packages to attract and
retain employees. The management regularly reviews the
Group's remuneration of its employees and ensures that it is
up to prevailing market standard.

The Group values mutually-beneficial and long-standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality products to its customers and
developing mutual trust with its suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$1,469,835,000 (2019:
HK$1,477,908,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
304.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$63,575.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 38.6% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 16.7%. The largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 26.1% and 61.5%, respectively, of
the Group's total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (Chairman)

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, Jp

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Yam Tat Wing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank
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In accordance with Articles 109, 115(A), 115(B) and 115(D)
of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing,
Mr. Yam Tat Wing, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Chan Ping Kuen,
Derek shall retire from office by rotation and all of them are
eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are available on the website of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 24 to
30 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.



Directors’ Report m 2%}

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—Z-TFA=1THIEFE

Annual Report 2020 “F ¥

EHERT ZRIEIRI

RAABEREEERSREEA
BRIt EYACEEIMELZ
FERFD REFENERERAER
ZEEFEEZRREZHF -ENE
FNHcBEEFBEGXRER

RGP (BBEMNERB T =
E@%E§t+%2ﬁiﬁﬁ$ﬁ
HBBEGRERBERAGHE
Z BT () @) RER R AL
e

BT

AR Z BB BIFBHIINSE
198 E£228 M6 M EHMERM T
m+=-

RIELEHHRVE1351BIRIEHZ
=

K Tﬁi#ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%«%i
ZAERBTPERERBRA

( ﬁiﬁﬁtm &l R RSR - 589)

ZENIHTEE BT _FTF

sl ANE R

NX5 - RHBEHNZERNER

BRARFHREMEBD MR M BHREK
W?@+A%ﬁ%%%~$ Az

23 /NI FNETE AR ST = PN
TKﬁWﬁEEWiEEWﬁHﬁ
$Eﬂ2%$YEWL§“E%T
FRERNEFTHEEEAER ZEFE
KRG RHHAEH -

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for directors’ and senior management’s liabilities
in respect of legal actions against its directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors'’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out on pages 19 to 22 and in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B OF THE
LISTING RULES

With effect from 18 February 2020, Mr. Sze Irons, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, was
also appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Jianzhong Construction Development Limited (Stock Code:
589), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report and
in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company’s holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the financial year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests
of directors of the Company in businesses which might
compete with the Group during the year ended 30 June
2020 and as at 30 June 2020 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, a Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of property investments in Hong Kong and gold mining
activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and Indonesia.
Although some of the businesses carried out by these
companies are similar to those of the Group, they are of
different scale and/or at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
set out below:
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Name of Directors

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
("Mr. Victor Chan")

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
("Dr. Chan")

Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
("Ms. Cheng")

Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
("Ms. Vicki Chan")

Yam Tat Wing

Wong Edward Gwon-hing

ZEEmBRE L REZ
+ 5 R #EBE35%K%35%
Z A A Tamar Investments
Group Limited{$ % o R 1H
T BT REAEEHT R
Tamar Investments Group

LimitedZ EF o

SSRGS RERRIR B
et B 2 A RIAR A AR

o

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
1. Interests in the Company
EARRE
- BEf
M AZEERYA BATS I
Number of ordinary shares of the Company Percentage of
fAAER DNEAER HRER the Company's
Personal Corporate Underlying @5t issued share
interest interest interest Total capital
2,700,000 - 30,000,000 32,700,000 0.48%
(MEE2) (Note 2)
- 5063395220 - 5063395220 74.12%
(WI3E1) (Note 1)
- 5063395220 - 5063395220 74.12%
(WI3E1) (Note 1)
200,000 - - 200,000 0.003%
- - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.44%
(F3E2) (Note 2)
2,400,000 - 20,000,000 22,400,000 0.33%
(F3E2) (Note 2)
- - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.44%
(F3E2) (Note 2)
Note 1: Such interests are held by Tamar Investments Group
Limited, which is a company owned as to 35% by
Dr. Chan and 35% by Ms. Cheng. Dr. Chan, Ms.
Cheng and Mr. Victor Chan are directors of Tamar
Investments Group Limited.
Note 2: These interests represented the interests in underlying

shares of the Company in respect of share options
granted to the Directors.
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ZHEERER (#) SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)
2. REBEE 2 R 2. Interests in associated corporation
Tamar Investments Group Tamar Investments Group Limited
Limited
i) ]
REEAZLERYA 2#f
Number of ordinary shares of the associated corporation RARME
Percentage
of the issued
AN NAER HRER share capital of
Personal Corporate Underlying @5t the associated
BESps Name of Directors interest interest interest Total corporation
R Chan Wai Lap, Victor 16 - - 16 16%
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles 35 - - 3 35%
L Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 35 - - 3 35%

REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 7 - - 7 7%
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no time during the year were the rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2020, no person, other than Mr. Victor Chan,
Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng and Ms. Vicki Chan, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in note
47 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the significant events after the reporting date is set
out in note 55 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2020
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CONTINENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 302, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of mining right and related non-financial
assets

(Refer to notes 3.8, 3.9, 3.11, 3.14, 4, 14, 16 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements)

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had carrying amounts in relation to
mining right and non-financial assets of approximately HK$594.8
million and HK$35.5 million respectively relating to one of the cash-
generating units within the mining operation segment (the “Mining
CGU").

Management has performed an impairment test in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and recognised reversal
of impairment losses of mining right and property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$17.6 million and HK$0.5 million
respectively for the year ended 30 June 2020. Management
appointed an independent valuation firm to estimate the
recoverable amount of the mining right and non-financial assets
attributable to the Mining CGU using market approach with
reference to recent comparable transactions undertaken in the
mining industry.

We identified the estimation of the recoverable amount of mining
right and non-financial assets as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and because
the selection of recent comparable transactions involve significant
judgement and estimates with respect to the underlying market
approach.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management's estimate of recoverable
amount of mining right and non-financial assets attributable to the
Mining CGU included:

- evaluating the independent valuation firm's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the valuation methodology used by management
and the independent valuation firm;

- reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and critical judgment areas which underpin the
fair value estimation;

- engaging an auditor’s expert to assist us to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the
reasonableness of the inputs, assumptions and estimations
used by management and the independent valuation firm
which underpin the fair value estimation; and

- checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data
used.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.12, 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment properties at
30 June 2020 was HK$1,564.1 million. Investment properties are
measured at cost on initial recognition, and thereafter are carried
at fair value, with any changes therein recognised in profit or
loss. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group recognised
a fair value loss on its investment properties of HK$5.3 million.
The valuation of investment properties (including investment
properties under construction) is a significant judgment area and is
underpinned by a number of key assumptions. The Group carries
out a valuation of its investment properties on the following
bases: (i) investment properties under construction are valued by
applying the residual method, which is determined by deducting the
estimated construction and other professional costs to completion,
including cost of construction, professional fees, associated costs
and an allowance for developer's profit margin from the gross
development value; and (ii) completed investment properties
(individual unit) are valued using the direct comparison method. To
assist management in this difficult judgmental area, the Group uses
professionally qualified external valuer for the property valuation
exercise.

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the valuation of investment properties can
be inherently subjective and requires significant judgement.



Annual Report 2020 “F #f;

Independent Auditor’'s Report m B3 ZEENRE

BARESSE (&)

ZAPIEY [ FE -

BALREME[RELETNETRE:

-  FMERBUHERTHAEN R

APSES i

- HMEEREERBILIGERITRAA
REETA

- RETERQIFEMFAASER
BREERAEREESSIE:

- RREZEEIERGHEFREE
BE B B EMTTRAFER
SHRTREE AR T BN RE
ANE - BEEEFAEEAE M

-  REMRBAEBEBERELEEK
e

BREFHHEMESR

EXETHEMEREAR -HMEES

B BERARFHRANEER WTH%
BUBHER MR MNZBRE RS

w} @

BMEGEMBRENERT NRER
8 RATTAEHZFEMERE
{E{ﬂﬂgiﬁ/‘j%u_uﬁ%uﬁ"

&

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties
included:

- evaluating the independent valuation firm’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the valuation methodology used by management
and the independent valuation firm;

- reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and critical judgment areas which underpin the
fair value estimation;

- engaging an auditor's expert to assist us to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the
reasonableness of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
used by management and the independent valuation firm
which underpin the fair value estimation; and

- checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data
used.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Other Information in the Annual Report (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 28 September 2020
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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2020 2019
k=3 F#T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
(Represented)
(r=&75)
W & Revenue 6 420,315 440,967
SHE BN Cost of sales (328,284) (331,922)
EA Gross profit 92,031 109,045
$HE Mo HA A Selling and distribution costs (18,920) (18,465)
TERE R Administrative expenses (111,444) (101,252)
Hith g A Other operating income 4,902 3,845
B NEMREEWFKIEZ  Impairment loss on trade and other
VERIEY SEi= bt -t long-term receivables, net (12,534) (1,537)
SEMELNTEZES Change in fair value of
investment properties 17 (5,257) 37,432
RO - BB REHE 2 Reversal of impairment loss on
BIEEE property, plant and equipment 14 464 =
B O ERE R EEE Reversal of impairment loss on
mining right 21 17,592 -
AR 1 B 2T 2 fl {8 Share-based compensation 42 (200) =
HEMB AR W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 50 12,477 1,684
B TS AR AN Finance costs 7 (7,301) (5,817)
BihEEtEER Share of results of joint ventures (26) 1,627
FE(L—EE & QAR FE Share of results of an associate 14,543 (138)
REFSHLE (B8) R (Loss)/Profit before income tax 8 (13,673) 26,424
TS (AY) % Income tax (expense)/credit 9 (4,209) 22,188
£ (EBE) GEF (Loss)/Profit for the year (17,882) 48,612
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2020 2019
k=3 F#ET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
(Represented)
(R&&E751)
HitEmEY > O HIE Other comprehensive income,
net of tax
HEWVEMREZE Items that may be subsequently
B@zEA: reclassified to profit or loss:
BMEBINEB 2 EH Z5E Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (17,551) (20,801)
HETEEHNERE Items that will not be
B@ZIER: subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss:
NAFEFAHMEEWEZ Z Change in fair value of financial
CREEATFEZE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (9,440) 2,425
FRNHMMEEIE f0BRFIE  Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax (26,991) (18,376)
FRNETEWERE Total comprehensive income for
the year (44,873) 30,236
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HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

2020 2019
k23 F#ET FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Represented)
(R2&E5))
FEMEE RN (BR)ER: (Loss)/Profit for the year
attributable to:
RARER A Owners of the Company (15,341) 43,679
FE 12 il 4 2 Non-controlling interests (2,541) 4,933
(17,882) 48,612
EiEENEEW SR Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
ZIN/NETEZ =N Owners of the Company (42,332) 25,303
FE7E e Non-controlling interests (2,541) 4,933
(44,873) 30,236
HK cent HK cent
Bl JENL
AABBEE AR (B5HE),~  (Loss)/Earnings per share for
B zZER (EE) BT (loss)/profit attributable to the
owners of the Company 11
—HER — Basic (0.22) 0.64

— ¥y — Diluted (0.22) 0.64
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2020 2019
Hiat F#T FETT
Notes HKS$'000 HK$000
EERARE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
VI B KR Property, plant and equipment 14 48,652 52,995
+ 3 5E A Land use rights 15 = 29,871
PREEE Right-of-use assets 16 47,641 =
KB Investment properties 17 1,564,100 1,511,200
BES Goodwill 18 8,124 =
B AE Intangible assets 19 8,222 =
PRIEE Mining right 21 594,773 598,387
AN Interests in associates 22 32,405 17,862
REEhE R Interests in joint ventures 23 1,973 1,999
NAFEFAHMETWEEZ Financial assets at fair value through
SREE other comprehensive income 24 15,750 20,023
& AR FE R TE Long-term receivables 25 = =
FEIETHIBE = Deferred tax assets 39 5,762 5,762
2,327,402 2,238,099
MEEE Current assets
BERPYE Property under development 26 318,763 301,662
T8 Inventories 27 220,522 165,415
2 5 e GRIA Trade receivables 28 92,687 114,881
AN - me & Prepayments, deposits and other
E b fE U FRIA receivables 15,382 20,372
AT EFFAERZ Financial assets at fair value through
BRIEE profit or loss 29 13,201 13,424
FEN & & > FRIE Due from joint ventures 23 - 54
BehkBeER Cash and cash equivalents 30 468,521 621,380
1,129,076 1,237,188
mEAE Current liabilities
B 5 FE 3B Trade payables 31 (74,010) (64,059)
E b e FRIB M EET & A Other payables and accruals (44,460) (50,682)
AHaE Contract liabilities 32 (475) (1,227)
RITREME R Bank and other loans 33 (751,663) (743,575)
B & TH B Obligation under finance leases 34 = (35)
HEAE Lease liabilities 35 (3,976) =
& & ERIE Due to joint ventures 23 (696) =
FEAS ISR B R e 3R TE Due to non-controlling interests 36 (29,340) (21,671)
TIB R Provision for tax (1,998) (2,281)
(906,618) (883,530)
REBEEFE Net current assets 222,458 353,658
HBEERTHER Total assets less current liabilities 2,549,860 2,591,757
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As at 30 June 2020
RZTEZZTFA=1+AH

VAN
o=
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2020 2019
it FETT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
EREBERE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 35 (15,397) =
FE{S EEESE A B3R Due to related companies 37 (30,550) (31,669)
R R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 38 (4,388) (4,549)
FEHIEE E Deferred tax liabilities 39 (133,250) (133,108)
(183,585) (169,326)
EEFE Net assets 2,366,275 2,422,431
gy EQUITY
J&K Share capital 40 560,673 560,673
G Reserves 41 1,618,910 1,678,120
EAEHER ANEILHE = Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 2,179,583 2,238,793
FE 2 i #E &= Non-controlling interests 186,692 183,638
WA Total equity 2,366,275 2,422,431
REREZS On behalf of the Directors
R {& 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
EZ Director
BREE = Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZ Director
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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2020 2019
ifz3 F#ET FAET
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
(Represented)
(&&E75)
REFHHERE Cash flows from operating
activities
BrETISEL R (BE),HH (Loss)/Profit before income tax (13,673) 26,424
B T3IIEE AR Adjustments for:
B 7% A AN Finance costs 7,301 5,817
HENB ARz WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (12,477) (1,684)
e EtEXEE Share of results of joint ventures 26 (1,627)
X e NG E Share of results of an associate (14,543) 138
LARSAD A& 2 fE Share-based compensation 200 -
W BERJRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 4,059 4,747
b {58 PR e 6 Amortisation of land use rights = 1,334
CREESERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,496 =
7 Ol SRR 2 R BB 18 Reversal of impairment loss on
mining right (17,592) -
B BB REE 2 Reversal of impairment loss on
BIEEE property, plant and equipment (464) =
FERME Provision for inventories 2,912 5,599
B 5 WG IB B Provision for trade receivables 13,234 1,537
HEME WE LR ZEE  Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 63 25
WEE Y2 - BB KR Write-off of property, plant and
equipment 2 50
BREYHEQAFEZE Change in fair value of investment
properties 5,257 (37,432)
A AT EFTABRZ Fair value loss on financial assets at
TREEL AT EEE fair value through profit or loss 223 74
B30 INE BT 1R Unrealised foreign exchange loss 5,097 3,905
BLIE (S — R B A AR08 Gain on debt modification on
1EETE 2 W s amount due to a related
company (1,318) (2,137)
[0l = HA FE W SR IE 2 B Reversal of provision for long-term
receivables (700) -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

2020 2019
k23 Fi#T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Represented)
(€ <=70D)
BEESEPEZ Operating (loss)/profit before
meg (EE) En working capital changes (17,897) 6,770
NEERPYE Addition to property under
development (13,355) (4,861)
FEHE N Increase in inventories (2,442) (10,046)
B 5 RWGIBR L (#501)  Decrease/(Increase) in trade
receivables 26,830 (5,836)
AN HKIE  RE R Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments,
H b U IER A (3841)  deposits and other receivables 8,242 (9,577)
AAFEGFABZRZ Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets
CRVEER D, (3En) at fair value through profit or loss = (7,432)
Bl G & ERIBR D Decrease in amounts due from joint
ventures 54 129
B 5 R H M ERFRIE K& (Decrease)/Increase in trade and other
FERTEA CRd), /N payables and accruals (14,934) 21,049
AHEECRD) (Decrease)/Increase in contract
liabilities (752) 601
REFAZRE Cash used in operations (14,254) (9,203)
B F 8 Interest paid (25,370) (22,474)
BEREIFBECEATSHE - F5  PRC enterprise income tax refunded,
net - 22,186
BEFBTAZ R EFEH Net cash used in operating
activities (39,624) (9,491)
BRETHRENE Cash flows from investing
activities
RNEWE HEREE Additions to property, plant and
equipment (1,285) (3,330)
NEREME Additions to investment properties (42,513) (18,952)
LEWZE HEMEZEC Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fr 5 kI8 plant and equipment 280 6
W B ARIEEZ Net cash outflows arising from
FIRE R acquisition of subsidiaries 49 (39,806) (284,108)
HEH B AR ZFTSFIBF58 Net proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries 50 11,085 1,684
W B &= B FE U 5k IE Receipts from long-term receivables 700 =
— BB & A =g 0 Increase in an associate = (18,000)
BT —HEEREZEFRD Decrease in loans to a joint venture = 14,500
—HEErEIER Interest in a joint venture = (129)
BEUAFEGTA Purchase of financial assets
EtrmliacemiE at fair value through other
comprehensive income (5,167) (3,213)
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2020 2019
ifz3 FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
(Represented)
(#&&E751)
REFHIBEZHZFE Net cash used in investing
activities (76,706) (311,542)
METBRERE Cash flow from financing
activities
BEARRE Dividend paid (17,078) (34,156)
MBI IR A BIE R Repayment to ultimate holding
company 50(b) - (350,489)
& —EB AR Proceeds from disposal of certain
TR 2 TS IE equity interest in a subsidiary 50(b) - 187,340
FE1% il HE B E K Advance from non-controlling
interests 7,669 -
BEDEBR Advance from joint ventures 696 -
BERmMEMEEAE Repayment of obligation under
finance leases - (131)
EEHEBGEASE Repayment of principal amount of
lease liabilities (2,727) -
IR IT R EMER New bank and other loans 250,100 121,600
BREETREMER Repayment of bank and other loans (270,521) (107,025)
AEFBTHZHE £ FH Net cash used in financing
activities (31,861) (182,861)
RERREERAELER Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (148,191) (503,894)
EMZRERREEH Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 621,380 1,128,664
IEERBHZRE  FH Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (4,668) (3,390)
EXRZBREREEEH Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 468,521 621,380




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity m Zr &= EE*

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z-_ZFRA=THLFE

K0TREARRES
Equtyatrbutable o the owners o the Company

HAFR

i2E
R ERERE TUARRE  RBRE  WRBE  LERR EXREER ARERRR GERR  REE B jhER  BRuR
Fair value
Share Non- Capial Exchange Assets— through other Non-
Share opton  distibutable Other Specal  contrbuton fluctuation revalugion  comprefiensive: Retaned contoling Totd
aptl resene fesere fesene resene Tesene fesene esene  ncome resene profts Total inerests quty
AT FEr Fhr 7Er FEt FEr 7Er 7L FEr 223 AT FEr Fhr

HSo s s HSow oo s S0 HSow s s Hsow Hsow S0

RIF-NELR-RZER Balance as at 1 July 2018 6,409 - 4916 13331 249749 (6:402) 243347
ZB-\EXERE (Bt 2018 Finaldividend (note 10) - - - (34,156) (34,156) - 34156)
WE-EHELE (HRETAL)  Acqusiion of asubsicay note 49t) - - - - - 43%) 433)
he-EHEL AT RR Diposeofceta nerest na subsiery
(HERT0) (noe 506) = {2103 - - Qi 1848 187340
BEEAZRS Transactions with owners - 2103 - (34,156) (36,259 185,107 108848
ERigH Profit for the year = = = 8619 8679 493 48612
EhdEka: Other comprehensive income:
BEENER RN 2R Bxchange dfeenceson ranition of
foregn operations - - (20801) - (20801) - (20801
WATE AR AR Change i air vl o iancil assets at
SHEELTELEY fa vl through other
comprefiensive income - - - - 2405 - 2405
ELES e Tota comprehensive income
for the year - - (20801) 8679 5308 4933 3036
RIF-RERAZTAZER Balance at 30 June 2019 6,409* (2103 (15,885)¢ 1,344,834 238793 183638 2081
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity m RS HE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE-_Z-_TFRA=THILFE

KRAREABERE
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

HATERA
Ef2E
B BREEE TUAREE iR HHRE HEEE EXGBRE KEEREE HERE REEH & HEHER Ba4R
Fair value
Share Non- Capital Exchange Assets  through other Nor-
Share option ~ distributable Other Specal  contrbution  fluctuation  revaluation ~ comprehensive Retained controlling Total
capital Teserve reserve eserve Teserve reserve reserve Teserve  income reserve profits Total interests equity
FEL FEL & FAT FEL &L & FEL FET & FEL FEL &
HSom S0 HKsom HSoon S0 Hsom Hsoom St S0 HKsom HSo S0 Hsom
RZF-AERAZTAR Balance as at 30 June 2019 and
“8-h5tA-AZER 1July 2019 560673 6409 273,606 (5610) (2103) 28,567 (15,885) 36,385 1917 1,344,834 238193 183638 24081
% nﬁ%g‘ Wit 2019 Findl diidend (ote 10) - - - - - (17,078) (17,078) - (17,078)
Recogniton of share-based compensation
(note42) 200 - - - - 200 - 200
Acquiston of subsidiares note 49(3) o o - - = 5,595 5,595
EREALRE Transactons with owners 00 - - - - (17,078) (16.878) 5595 (11.283)
ENER Loss for the year - - - - - (15341) (15.341) (254) (1788)
Other comprehensie income:
Exchange differences on transltion of
foreign operations - - - (17551) - - (17551) = (17,551)
WATE AL B2 ARG Change i air vl of iancil asets a
BEELTELEY farvalie through other
comprfiensie income - - - - (9440) (9:40) - (940)
EReERALE Total comprehensive income
forthe year - - - (17,551) - (9.40) (15.341) (@331 (2541) (14873)
RoBIRERAZTAZER Balance at 30 June 2020 560,673 6,609t 13606 (5610)¢ (2103)¢ 28567 (33,36 36,385¢ W 3045 2179583 186,692 2366275

% ZEREBRAEEAMBERRERS
2R AFER1,618,910,0008 7T (=&
— 114 : 1,678,120,000% 7T ) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$1,618,910,000 (2019: HK$1,678,120,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of the Company’s registered office and
principal place of business is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment and development

- Mining operation

— Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited

("Tamar Investments”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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HE—Z-TFA=1THIEFE

— —iRER @ 1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

IR ETIBEEFE3028 2656 The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to
R IIERE S S AE 302 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
M2 BB EwERER (ST Financial Reporting Standards (““HKFRSs”) which collective
BEEMEER BB RE terms include all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
HRH - BEEAEIRRE) R Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
B R AHEDI RS - 475 BT 15 and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
RIMBEBRXES LKA Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and the Hong
(TEmRADBRE 2 EAEE Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
FIHo statements also include applicable disclosures required by

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

— - RRAEBUBRE 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs
#A|
(a) ERAFEISRERI BB (@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
BRELEN-B=F—Hh 1 July 2019

FLtA-HEBEN

REBEHANUTEES The Group has adopted the following new or revised
SRR A S A A HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant
EBEARN TGt to its operations and effective for annual periods
A—Bs &R FE beginning on or after 1 July 2019.

HARI AR Z BT R] B RT
FREMEHRE LD -

BAUpRELY  HE HKFRS 16 Leases
£16%

Bk (BRupRERE FERREL HK(FRICHnt 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
RE8) -RBENT THEk

BRUBRLENES AEAREL Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(B:1) ARG

BESHENZNSE  RBELFRAE Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures
(B31) PErRGES

ERUBREENEE BANEREES Annual Improverents to Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations
Y (-1 3B HKFRSs 20152017 Cydee
“I-LEREH) (54K

ERUBREENEE BANEREES Annual Improverents to Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements
Wit (ZZ-1%FE  ENE () HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
“I-tEEH) [RERH

ERANBREEREE AheiEl Annual Improverents to Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Ta
Wit (Z3-1%FE  E0% () HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
“E-tEEY) Gl

ERUBREEAEE AL EN Annual Improverents to Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs
Wit (Z3-1FE  EB% () HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

“TLERH) e
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— - REATEMBRE
8| @)

(a)

RAMEIREETE B
BREEN-B-F-N
FtA-BRER (&)

RABBYHHRE LR
Fek [HEI 2R EE
Rt - EfbE = F
—NEFELA-HRBERZ
Rl RERT BB 55
EEAHAEE 2 5T
RUIBERATE-

BB B & ERFE 1657
[HE]

(i) KA &SR
LR F1657 2

4

o
b
=

Q
I

BB SRS
Bl ZE165: HHE

et EEEH
EAEN EERE
RAEFE A 2R
BHHE£BKE
BT ERE17
SRIHE] ([&
BEETER|IFE17
SR1) BB (R
HRERESR
Bg) RESE
A [BEE —EHEL
HELEZHE]
([BH (B
BHREREBLZB
) —REF4
51 BB (B
Z2EZEE) —
RIS 155k 4R L
HE-EX/RE
B (BIERELZE
g) —R2EFH27
SRGHESERAE
FEREAZR S

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
have been summarised in below. The other new or
amended HKFRSs that are effective from 1 July 2019
did not have any significant impact on the Group's
accounting policies.

HKFRS 16 Leases

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17"),
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease (“HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4"), HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s
perspective, almost all leases are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, with the narrow exception to this
principle for leases which the underlying
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f%)ﬁ bR 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

A @)

() BAFFTSRLIERT BB (@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
BKHEEA-B=-Z—Hh 1 July 2019 (continued)

FLtA-—BBER (&)

BB R ERIE 165 HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
[FHE ] (#&)

(i) ?%Té ﬁﬁ A 7S B 1 (i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
SR F165R 2 (continued)
wE (&)
ZAB] o e # assets are of low-value or are determined as
ANAERE BX short-term leases. From a lessor’s perspective,
HoHEREZE the accounting treatment is substantially
B 75 AR 0 2% W 7R unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of
REABEER HKFRS 16 regarding its new definition of a
HEAE MR lease, its impact on the Group's accounting
Bz L& B HNE policies and the transition method adopted
AR E EB by the Group as allowed under HKFRS 16,
KEEESHET please refer to section (ii) to (v) of this note.
REHHEECH
E-REBAARE
RE G .ﬂ'J‘gfiﬁ
MrEEEg;

AEBI S 1798 1R

NE o RSN
%#&%EE'J%M
FHBEEZHE
= HHEAEE®
BRI ER
BS IR S L
Bl 25 165% /& &F A&
SEERNZBE
HEZHE BB
NS ES
(V)&f 0
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= RAFEMBRE

#8| =)

(a)

RAMIREIETE B

®HR

ERA-H-E—R

A==

FtA-RARER (&)

BB B RS ERE 165
[HE] (&)

(i)

RAEEMB®RE
ZRE1658 2
TE(E)

REEBFERR
EREEERAR
5 B 75 3 5 % Bl
F165% - WIKIEE
REEaEZS
BEACRAES
EEFEmaEn
—ET—NF XA
=S+tHELEEY
BRARERZ
HERE 2 EM
B BRI s E A
HENREL R
B -RZE—NF
25 2 L& K
WSS - 20
BB RS %
Bl 165% 2 B E
W& SCET A RF B
BIBEBASF %
B %5175k K 18 78
BRERE o

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach and recognised
the right-of-use asset at the amount equal to
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepayments or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2019. The comparative
information presented in 2019 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS
16.
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= RATEMBHRE 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued)
8 )
(@) HEAFEFT LG BB (@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
BREEN - —N 1 July 2019 (continued)

FLtA-—RARER (&)

BB R ERIE 165 HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
[HHE] (&)

0) KRB BB EmE (i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
ERIZE165% 2 (continued)

TE(E)

TR BEE The following tables summarised the impact
BN BRELE of transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated
Bl 2165 ¥ # statement of financial position as of 30 June
EZT-AER 2019 to that of 1 July 2019 as follows:
A=+RHEZ=F
—hLEtA—H
ZiEE M BARR
RITE:
TET
HK$'000

R-F—AEFEELH—HZ Consolidated statement of financial

HEMBRIE position as at 1 July 2019

M BERERERD Decrease in property, plant and equipment (1,417)
fFREEEE N Increase in right-of-use assets 32,933
=t {5 AR AR Decrease in land use rights (29,871)
TS aEEM (3ERE)  Increase in lease liabilities (non-current) 722
HEaEEMNORE) Increase in lease liabilities (current) 958
EE S AR (5E)) Decrease in obligation under finance leases

(current) (35)
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= RAFEMBRE

#8| =)

(a)

RAMIREIETE B

®HR

ERA-H-E—R

A==

FtA-RARER (&)

BB B RS ERE 165
[HE] (&)

(i)

RAEEMB®RE
ZRE1658 2
TE(E)

VAR 5 BR [ it 7
—ET—NF A
“+HRERKRE
RAEAEER
FNTH B E 2L
T A E a0 A
HER —T—-hEF
+tA—BZ2&HKE
B 15 AR R R B AR
ZR¥BEERB
HrHEBEY
BE :

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(continued)

The following reconciliation explains how
the operating lease commitments disclosed
applying HKAS 17 at the end of 30 June
2019 could be reconciled to the lease
liabilities at the date of initial application
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 July 2019:
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= RAFEMBRE

A0 2)

(a)

R RAEEET BB
BHRELEN-B=F—N
FtA-REBENM (&)

BB B ERE 165
[HHE] (&)

(i) RABEHB®RE
ERIFE165% 2
TE(E)

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(continued)

T8
HK$'000

R-FE—AFENA=+HZ Operating lease commitments
BEHERE at 30 June 2019 3,577

i BEREERER L
HE 2 A&k

— RS REAM
FsAEHR

ZE-TF
NE=t+H%
ZHBERZHAE

B RRA B 4B

Less: Commitments relating to leases exempt
from capitalisation:
— Short-term leases and other (1,869)
leases with remaining lease term
ending on or before 30 June
2020

Less: Total future interest expenses (63)

FSEEENRE-_T—NF
tA-RZEEREMNE

MR BRE
MR-FB-NFLtA—H
ER<CBEREARE

Present value of remaining lease payments,
discounted using incremental borrowing rate

at 1 July 2019 1,645
Add: Finance lease liabilities recognised as at
1 July 2019 35

RZZE-NFLA—-HER

Total lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019

ZHEBERTE 1,680
iR Analysed as:
HE&E GERE) Lease liabilities (non-current) 722
HESE(RE) Lease liabilities (current) 958
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RAMIREIETE B
BHRELN -B-F-N
FtA-RARER (&)

BB B RS ERE 165
[HE] (&)

0] RATABPB®RE
ZRE1658 2
TE(E)

RZZT—-—NF+t
A—BzEZEaH
BAR R & ER
HEAaEMER
Z A A N
B E & Rig
EEHEEMNXA

4.5% °

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

0] Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(continued)

The weighted average lessee’s implicit
interest rate and the incremental borrowing
rate applied to lease liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 July 2019 is 4.5%.
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(a)

R RAEEET BB
BHRELEN-B=F—N
FtA-REBENM (&)

BB B ERE 165
[HHE] (&)

(if)

MEZHEE

B AR & B B 5 3R
S YERISE 1655 - 78
ERTAREEX
—IgEE (BB
E)R—BRKHER
2 {5 FA #E LA R ER
REZ T —
Hoa#t-E8F
REERERBA
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BERE#BE
EHRZBRE
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EREREFZR
BEZRRE &
HENEER — B
B R A A B A
AEERGZHE
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time when the customer,
throughout the period of use, has both: (a)
the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and (b) the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.
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ERA-H-E—R

A==

FtA-RARER (&)
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RESEZEHM
BRn - EERH
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(ii)

The new definition of a lease (continued)

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, a lessee shall
allocate the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, unless
the lessee apply the practical expedient
which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iif)

The new definition of a lease (continued)

The Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for all
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

Accounting as a leasee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a
lease as an operating lease or a finance
lease based on the extent to which risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a lease
asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. If a
lease is determined as an operating lease, the
lessee would recognise the lease payments
under the operating lease as an expense over
the lease term. The asset under the lease
would not be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the lessee.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iif)

Accounting as a leasee (continued)

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective
of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy choices
for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability at the commencement
date of a lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iif)

Accounting as a leasee (continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting
policy to account for lease liability); (ii)
any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
The Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability. For
right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property, they are carried
at fair value and for right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of a leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried
at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and amortisation.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iii)

Accounting as a leasee (continued)

Right-of-use asset (continued)

For the Group, leasehold land and buildings
that were held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose would continue to be
accounted for under HKAS 40 and would
be carried at fair value. For leasehold land
and buildings which is held for own use
would continue to be accounted for under
HKFRS 16 and would be carried at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and
amortisation. For right-of-use assets related
to interests in leasehold land where interest
in the land is held as inventory are carried
at lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with note 3.16. The adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore does not have any
significant impact on these right-of-use
assets. Other than the above right-of-use
assets, the Group also has leased a number
of properties under tenancy agreements
which the Group exercises it judgement and
determines that it is a separate class of asset
apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use asset arising from the properties
under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iif)

Accounting as a leasee (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement
of the lease. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group shall use the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

o

= RAFEMBRE

#8| =)

(a)

RAMIREIETE B

®HR

ERA-H-E—R

A==

FtA-RARER (&)

BB B RS ERE 165
[HE] (&)

(iif)

EREATBAZ G
BRI (&)

¥

TH

HEBE (&)

THWIEREE
R ER=R: R N
TH & Hi A 5t 48 8
BEEFRABESZM
2 IR AR A
BN (VEER
RO AT A 8 W A8
EEE: (MEAR
25 B B 2 15 1
H A EAAF =
ZEBEENK
(HURPA 8 sk 7
=) (i)EEAR
BRI R E A ER
TREARENT 2 FRIE
(iVIEETE A& B
TEE T E M E #
BREZBERATZ
BEREZITRE:
RvEHEEHRAR
B AH A 1T (5 5%
EEKIEHEEZ
BRATHRIEEE
ZERAT K

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iii)

Accounting as a leasee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use
the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee

exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
properties to a number of tenants. As
the accounting under HKFRS 16 for a
lessor is substantially unchanged from the
requirements under HKAS 17, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 does not have significant
impact on these financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied
HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect
approach and recognised the right-of-use
assets at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepayments related to that lease recongised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the date of initial application (1
July 2019). The comparative information
presented in 2019 has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17
and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in HKFRS 16.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

H

= RAFEMBRE

#8| =)

(a)

RAMIREIETE B

®HR

ERA-H-E—R

A==

FtA-RARER (&)

BB B RS ERE 165
[HE] (&)

(v)

BIE (&)

AEBER=-Z

—NLEtA—H
SLERIEME A

SR AR F 175
DEREEHRE
ZHERREE
BfE XWIRFIERE
ENFERR=
B-—NAF+tH—
Bz&EBEAESE
EEMNERXES
MEEHR 2R E
AFEREMEESR

f&e

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(v)

Transition (continued)

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities
at the date of 1 July 2019 for leases
previously classified as operating leases
applying HKAS 17 and measured those
lease liabilities at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate or
the implicit interest rate at 1 July 2019.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Transition (continued)

The Group has elected to recognise all the
right-of-use assets at 1 July 2019 for leases
previously classified as operating leases,
leasehold land and land use rights under
HKAS 17 at an amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments related
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. For
all these right-of-use assets, the Group has
applied HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
at 1 July 2019 to assess if there was any
impairment as on that date.

ul
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Transition (continued)

The Group has also applied the follow
practical expedients: (i) applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics; and (ii)
applied the exemption of not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with term that will end within 12
months of the date of initial application (1
July 2019) and accounted for those leases as
short-term leases.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(v)

Transition (continued)

The Group has also leased majority of its
motor vehicles and computer equipment
which previously were classified as finance
leases under HKAS 17. As the Group has
elected to adopt the cumulative effect
method over the adoption of HKFRS 16, for
those finance leases under HKAS 17, the
right-of-use assets and the corresponding
lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 were the
carrying amount of the lease assets and lease
liabilities under HKAS 17 immediately before
that date. For those leases, the Group has
accounted for the right-of-use assets and the
lease liabilities applying HKFRS 16 from 1 July
2019.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty
in accounting for income taxes. Under the
Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately
or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity
shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have
full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are
met — instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Assoclates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to
long-term interests (“LTI"”) in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment
in the associates or joint ventures and stipulates
that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the
impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3
which clarifies that when a joint operator of a
business obtains control over a joint operation, this
is a business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates in,
but does not have joint control of, a joint operation
which is a business and subsequently obtains joint
control of the joint operation, the previously held
equity interest should not be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2019 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12
which clarify that all income tax consequences
of dividends are recognised consistently with the
transactions that generated the distributable profits,
either in profit or loss, other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23
which clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to
obtain a qualifying asset which remains outstanding
after the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale would become part of the
funds an entity borrows generally and therefore
included in the general pool.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the
date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 - Related Rent Concessions’

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material’

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current and
Non-current’
Amendments to HKFRS 10and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 June 2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

9 The amendments were originally intended to

be effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must
include, as a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs, together with
providing extensive guidance on what is meant by a
“substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes
and continuing to produce outputs, whilst narrowing
the definition of “outputs” and a “business” to
focus on returns from selling goods and services
to customers, rather than on cost reductions. An
optional concentration test has also been added
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations
“Reference to the Conceptual Framework”

The amendments update the reference to the latest
version of Conceptual Framework issued in March
2018, and add an exception to the requirement for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should apply the criteria in
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively (instead of
the Conceptual Framework) to determine whether a
present obligation exists at the acquisition date.

ul
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
interest rate benchmark reform. In addition,
the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19 — Related
Rent Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate
whether certain qualifying rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modifications and, instead,
account for those rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and
explanation of “material”, aligning the definition
across all HKFRS Standards and the Conceptual
Framework, and incorporating supporting
requirements in HKAS 1 into the definition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

The amendments specify that the conditions
which exist at the end of the reporting period are
those which will be used to determine if a right to
defer settlement of a liability exists. Management
expectations about events after the balance sheet
date, for example on whether a covenant will be
breached, or whether early settlement will take
place, are not relevant. The amendments clarify the
situations that are considered settlement of a liability.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment on new standards, amendments and
interpretations, and have concluded on a preliminary
basis that these new standards and amendments
would not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in subsequent
years.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

Xe)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up
to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.



Annual Report 2020 “F #f;

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z-_TFRA=THILFE

CEE

BFBRE @)

EBEHRGEEREE
(%)

EARBREHMBART]
Z PRHIRERS - B E TSR
MEREBTIZATREZ
ZRAE (IBRREZ
N B B AL (A R B
ZRFEZ B Rz
MEARZEE (BIER
) M BENSMERIEE
HlEsE 2 BERESRR
PAE I Bt 20 T e o R
BB ARBRI SR
AR BERREER
REEXBBRMER L
AFRIT AR

g HERKERR
B AR A s 2 JFE
o RESESBREE
SNV FER T < 278 -
HIGEEHIE SR IR B G
i Fa 4 R G
BB A MR
- B L 2R 2 Ak IR IR
il #E h h 3R S At A R

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

33

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies. In consolidated
financial statements, associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor's share in the associate’s
profits or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount of
the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers
joint control over the relevant activities of the
arrangement to the Group and at least one other
party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

- Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement;
or

- Joint operations: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint

arrangement agreement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Joint arrangements (continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts are
adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition
changes in the joint ventures’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
joint venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses. Profits or
losses arising on the transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture. The investors’ share in the joint venture's
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
venture. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the assets transferred they are
recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in a joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

~
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group’s presentation currency, have been converted
into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date,
after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 3.14), and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

\e)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value
in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.14). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is

calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the

cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Factory buildings Over the term of the leases or

estimated useful lives of 25 years,

whichever is shorter

Commercial buildings Over the term of the leases or

estimated useful lives of 33 years,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases or

estimated useful lives of 4 years,

whichever is shorter

10% - 33%

17% - 20%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structure using units-
of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

Leasing

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 July
2019)

Al leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 July
2019) (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and
comprises: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting
policy to account for lease liability); (i) any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. Except for right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property,
the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property, they are carried
at fair value and for right-of-use asset that meets
the definition of a leasehold land and buildings
held for own use, they are carried at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 July
2019) (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value.
The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and
would be under cost model. For right-of-use assets
related to interests in leasehold land where interest
in the land is held as inventory are carried at lower of
cost and net realisable value in accordance with note
3.16. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 July
2019) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 July
2019) (continued)

Accounting as lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties
to a number of tenants. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 30 June
2019)

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 30 June
2019) (continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance lease, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
is included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

~
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 30 June
2019) (continued)

Assets acquired under finance lease (continued)

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased under operating leases as the lessees

The total rental payable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The up-front payments are amortised over the lease
period on a straight-line basis and the amortisation
is charges to profit or loss. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10

3.1

3.12

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in note 3.14 below in respect of
impairment losses on intangible assets).

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

O
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

Investment properties (continued)

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments made
to acquire land held under an operating lease. They
are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease/right of use except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived by the Group
from use of the land.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

Impairment of non-financial assets (except for
goodwill)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, land use rights, mining right, and interests
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
subject to impairment testing. They are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
assets’ carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

Impairment of non-financial assets (except for
goodwill) (continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Any impairment loss is charged
pro-rata to the assets in the CGU, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued))

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss: Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or
loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

ul
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued))

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised
in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as fair value through profit or loss,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.
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315 £@THE (&) 3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)
(i)  BEEEZEE (i) Impairment loss on financial assets

A

REEBERESE The Group recognises loss allowances for
W SR I8 Ko DA # 84 expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on trade
A E 2% @ receivables and financial assets measured
BECZEHEE at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured
EEERE B E on either of the following bases: (1) 12
i - FBHE BB 1B months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result

WA HE AR —1{E
EEGE: (1) 12
BABEREER
B ERREAH
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BAEZENSEH
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HEHEERE:
ERSRT AR
HEHAMEBA
EBLECZENS
frm & 2 2 A H
EEEE - R
BHEEBRR
ER2REHME
RASEEHE
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from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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315 £€®THE (&) 3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)
(i)  EHEEZREE (i) Impairment loss on financial assets

B (& (continued)

TEEEEEE T ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
EEEBE X of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
NEEE - EEE as the difference between all contractual
BERBRESOE cash flows that are due to the Group in
NAEEZAE accordance with the contract and all the
& # I 2 mE R cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
SEEHKE The shortfall is then discounted at an
FrERE R ZMH approximation to the assets’ original effective
ZERBETE 7D interest rate.
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The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated

TAEATTEB S IE ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
WHKIE Z R E has established a provision matrix that is
- WEEREH based on the Group's historical credit loss
BHEEERG experience, adjusted for forward-looking
HREHEEERE- factors specific to the debtors and the
ANEE B &AL economic environment.
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315 £@THE (&) 3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)  BEEEZEE (i) Impairment loss on financial assets
B (& (continued)
BE M E e F For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
BEMmS  BHE based on the 12-months ECLs. However,
EEE 1218 A when there has been a significant increase
HHEEBEA in credit risk since origination, the allowance
Efto-Am: B will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
B = b B E 4 B
RE FE I NG -
HEBE A HTE

HEEBEBERE

E’ko

RETEREE When determining whether the credit risk of
ZIEERREB a financial asset has increased significantly
IRERUARES since initial recognition and when estimating
B E IR & ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
hEr B A EEE supportable information that is relevant and
B AEEgE available without undue cost or effort. This
B R EAN includes both quantitative and qualitative
RE RPN Sl o N information analysis, based on the Group's
RN EE historical experience and informed credit
ZAEEHAEBERE assessment and including forward-looking
AR BEE information.
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firl & B & 2 %80 5 The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
FRiB30H - BIARE financial asset has increased significantly if it
BEBRXZEEZ is more than 30 days past due.

ERAREEE
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

315 £€®THE (&) 3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)
(i)  EHEEZREE (i) Impairment loss on financial assets

B (& (continued)

AEBRET R The Group considers a financial asset to be
BEENIEBR credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
THREERE: unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
(MERATKA Group in full, without recourse by the Group
EEETNHEY to actions such as realising security (if any is
REE 2 5 8% held); or (2) the financial asset is more than

BB TEEA
S5 18] 3% B0 05 1

90 days past due.

RER (FHE)

LERETH K

Q)& @ & E 8 2

FREO0H o

HBEEREZ Interest income on credit-impaired financial
TREEZHE assets is calculated based on the amortised
WAERESBE cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
B2 B SER AR (B loss allowance) of the financial asset. For
AR T 48 58 R0 & 1B non credit-impaired financial assets interest
)T E - &\ income is calculated based on the gross
REEREZS carrying amount.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities

The Group classified its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. The Group's financial
liabilities are carried at amortised cost, which
include trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank and other loans, lease
liabilities, obligation under finance leases,
amounts due to non-controlling interests,
loan from a controlling shareholder and
amount due to related companies. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Gain or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the amortisation process.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial Instruments (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS
9,
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi)

Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a
financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value
on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss for the year.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

The cost of property under development comprises
the acquisition cost of land, construction costs,
professional fees, other direct expenses and
capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3.23). Property
under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated cost of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand and demand deposits.
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3.18 BERIAEE 3.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities
EREERBEEHEME Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
FREEESHEEEE present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
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of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the

A 25t (RER) 2 amount initially recognised less any accumulated
ReEir=e amortisation, if appropriate.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

Share capital

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap.622, shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Considerations received or receivable
for the issue of shares on or after 3 March 2014 is
credited to share capital. Commissions and expenses
are allowed to be deducted from share capital under
S.148 and S.149 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods
or service may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

Sales of goods

Customers obtain control of the goods when
the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon
when the customers accepted the goods.
There is generally only one performance
obligation. Invoices are usually payable 30 to
120 days.

Some of the Group’s contracts with
customers from the sale of goods provides
customers a right of return (a right to
exchange another product). These rights
of return do not allow the returned goods
to be refund in cash. The right of return
gives rise to variable consideration. The
variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until
the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on
variable consideration increases the amount
of revenue that will be deferred. In addition,
a refund liability and a right to recover
returned goods assets are recognised.

\e)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

()

(i)

Sales of goods (continued)

Some of the Group's contracts with
customers from the sale of goods provide
customers a volume rebate if the customer
purchases more than certain volume of
goods in a calendar year. The volume rebates
give rise to variable consideration. The
Group apply the expected value method to
estimate the variable consideration. A refund
liability would be recognised based on the
estimate of the expected value to be paid
for the customer’s volume-based rebated.
Any expected volume rebate provision is
recognised as refund liabilities.

Sale of property

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
held for sale is recognised in profit or loss
on the basis that control over the ownership
of the property has been passed to the
customer during the current accounting
period, which is the point in time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use
of the property and obtain substantially all
the benefits of the property. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under contract liabilities.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

3.21

(i) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method; and

v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group's employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in
the United Kingdom (“UK") and the United States
of America (“USA") are required to participate in a
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the retirement
benefits scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable
to these plans.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

Share-based compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Share-based compensation (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in reserve will
be transferred to share capital. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary differences arising from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
|loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

(b)

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

3.26

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major line of business.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Segment reporting (continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and
trading of fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment and development

— Mining operation

- Investment

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that share-based
compensation, certain finance costs, income tax
expense and corporate income and expenses which
are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment, are not included in
arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26

3.27

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets include all assets but cash and cash
equivalents and deferred tax assets. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment
are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other loans,
loan from a controlling shareholder, provision for tax,
deferred tax liabilities and corporate liabilities, which
are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

0) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.
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327 BBt (&) 3.27 Related parties (continued)
by MEEHFE T (b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
R {6 {5 - BI|EA AR following conditions apply:

SEARR:

(i) ZE®Hn (i) The entity and the Group are
NEE B members of the same group (which
[ — % E means that each parent, subsidiary
Z BB R and fellow subsidiary is related to the
Al ( B IK others).
EXB X
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CIRES =
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(i) —HE® (i) One entity is an associate or joint
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(i) WHEEE (iif) Both entities are joint ventures of the
BRR— same third party.
BE=FZ
& &
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27 Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27 Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(viiy ~ The entity or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services
to the Group or to the Company’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimated fair value of investment properties

As at the reporting date, the Group’s investment properties
are stated at the value based on the valuation performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer. In determining
the fair value, the valuer has based its valuation on direct
comparison or the residual method, as appropriate for
respective investment properties, which involves certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions,
estimated gross development value, estimated cost of
development and allowance of profit that duly reflected
developer’s risk associated with the development, as
appropriate. In relying on the valuation, management has
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the methods
of valuation adopted are appropriate for the relevant
property and reflective of current market conditions.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Net realisable value of property under development

Management determines the net realisable value of property
under development by using prevailing market data such as
most recent sales transactions and market valuation report
available from independent qualified professional valuer.
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainties and might materially different
from the actual result. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions exiting at the

EHEERMIZEE R ER TS reporting date. These estimates are regularly compared to
RS o actual market data and actual transactions in the market.
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Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information.

At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
would be reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. The assessment of the correlation
among historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in notes 28 and 52.3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

~l



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

m - BREEsHHE R EIE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

o8]

(&)
B8 2 E

ErmEEahRRER AR
BokmBcReELEN2E
REE FEEREER E=
ALFTTRNREELBUES
ZARREREEBEZHBER
st EHEE-

FERMEE (BRI 2RE

REERSHREPHRTEFAE
© B EE RS T EFARED
2 MEERETR  BIERG
AT E &R MAFEREE
RANEME AEEZREE G
AU B & &E o IR BRI 5E3.14F7
BECGHABE BEAEHIE
BB EERA SR EE
FEREE - AEESHMBEHES
BEEETRER -EFNE
TREERAAESREE 2R
BEE SRENSBEZGE
ATt L HE - T EABRT -
B BEGEMERIREETS
ZABELBRRZ B EE  ZF
Ro5H—MREEIESFEE AT
Bl &5 7 S fEMR - EBEKE R
EMER 2 M EARAE L
BR 52 ASEE  Hrl e IE
SRVEE 2 AU Bl & BB EET AR
BEATE

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

Impairment of non-financial assets (except for
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made,
which is considered to be the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. All non-financial assets
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy
as disclosed in note 3.14. In carrying out the impairment
assessment of mining right and related non-financial assets,
the directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique. Where appropriate, the valuation is
estimated by independent professional valuer based on
recent comparable transactions undertaken in the mining
industry which generally represent the best estimate of
the recoverable amount of the non-financial assets. Any
changes in economic conditions and mineral prices and
the availability of comparable transactions may materiality
affect the estimation of the recoverable amount of the non-
financial assets.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their
judgement in estimating the total proven and probable
reserves of the ore mines.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Xe)
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expenses in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
consolidated financial statements require measurement at,
or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in
the valuation technique utilised are:

. Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair values:
o Investment properties

3 Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to note 17
and note 52.5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Rt R HER
ERGRENRER
Design, manufacturing, marketing
and trading of fine jewellery and

diamonds
2020 2019
ki 23 AT

HKS000 HKS000

Business segment

DERERZR
Property
investment and
development
2020 2019
iz AT
HKS000 HKS 000

RRER

Mining

operation
2020 2019
f#r A

HKS 000 HKS000

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
have identified the Group's four business lines as operating
segments as further described in note 3.26.

#E &a
Investment Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019
TE#r AT T TET

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

G Segment revene:
HETHAEF/RE Sales tofrevenue from
SRR NE extema partes 403,083 41919 4959 3603 - - 12383 18,149 420315 40967
AREE Segment results (20,649) 5216 2,025 24306 11,097 (7,609) 6,405 1312 (1,122) 35,034
FARRY Unallocated expenses (7,149) (4,180)
IR BER 2 Share-based compensation (200) -
BnA Finance costs (520 (4430)
BEEHRA (H8) /%8 (Loss)Profit before income tax (13,673) 26424
———
Fat B RER
ERAR AN AR WERERER RRER k& &a
Design, manufacturing, marketing Property
and trading of fine jewellery and investment and Mining
diamonds development operation Investment Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
i A &7 AT F#1 &z &1 FEr FEx AT
HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
PHEE Segment assets 384,531 341,399 1,917,452 1813192 646,533 652,664 31934 35,405 2,980,456 2,842,660
BEREESE Cash and cash equivalents 468521 621,380
ERBEEE Deferred tax assets 5762 5762
FARDAEE Unallocated corporate assets 1739 5,485

P*ﬁxﬁx%ﬂz‘ém
HERE

EEHERR
AAEATRE

RfELE

Total assets

Segment libilties 115,333 89,920
Bank and other loans
Loan from a contralling
shareholder
Provision for tax
Deferred tax liabifties
Unallocated corporate liabilties

Total liabilties

45,993 31539

35,548 40,291

3456478 3475281

88

K

0 197,760 161,820
751,663 743,575

4388 4,549
1,998 2281
133,250 133,108
1144 1503

1,090,203 1,052,856
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) HXBoE (& (@)  Business segment (continued)
Ri W EER
ERNRENRAR DERERYR RRER #E g8
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of Property
fine jewellery and investment and
diamonds development Mining operation Investment Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
FET AT FEx FET Féx FET FET AT FET AT
HK$000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKS000 HKS 000
Other segment information:
NE BERRERE  Depredation of property
plant and equipment (3,652) (4,159) - - (407) (588) - - (4,059) (4,747)
FREAENE Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (3,315) - - - (1,181) - - - (4,496) -
T ERERE Amortisation of land use
rights = (109) = - = (1,225) = - = (1,334)
RENENTEZEH  Change in fair value of
investment properties - - (5,257) 37432 - - - - (5.257) 37432
INATERABEZ  Fairvalueloss on financial
SREEL assets at fair value
ATEER through profit or loss - - - - - - (23 (74) (23) (74)
HEME BERZEZ Loss on disposal of property,
E# plant and equipment (63) (25) - - - - - - (63) (25)
HEnE BEREE  Wite-off of property
plant and equipment (V)] (50) - - - - - - (V)] (50)
EHagt5345 Share of results of joint
ventures - 1,593 (26) 34 - - - - (26) 1,627
[EE—RBERARER  Shareof resultof an
associate - - 14,543 (138) - - - - 14,543 (138)
BEREEZAESE  Reversal onimpaiment loss
on mining right - = - = 17,592 = - = 17,592 =
BENE BEREEZ Reversal on impairment loss
HEEE on property, plant and
equipment - - - - 464 - - - 464 -
FERE Provision for inventories (2912) (5,5%9) - - - - - - (2912) (5,599)
SAEUGEREMR  Provision for trade
REBUWFBRE  recelvables and other
bt long-term receivables, net ~ (12,534) (1537) - - - - - - (12,534) (1537)
HBKA Interest income - - - - - - 9,618 17,689 9,618 17,689
flER% Interest expenses (778) - - - (1321 (1,387) - - (2,099) (1,387)
SUEF—MBBAA  Gain on debt modification
FBEUEEZLE  onamountduetoa
related company - - - - 1318 2137 - - 1318 2137
REFRDAPEE  Additions to non-current
segment assets 7021 3326 2,513 18952 - 4 - - 49,534 22,282
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographic information

REMRER W

Revenue from

external customers

2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B (sEft) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 38,237 47,476
b =M North America 202,087 200,472
BN & A Europe and Middle East 173,870 183,062
=iip: A Other locations 6,121 9,957
AET Total 420,315 440,967
EREBEE

Non-current assets
2020 2019
FET FET
HKS$'000 HK$'000
B (FEft) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 1,607,413 1,535,813
b =M North America 30,631 =
[ United Kingdom 5,334 5,266
AR B K P Mainland China 662,512 671,235
=X Total 2,305,890 2,212,314

A ERSEEHTERE
FiRE D - 3EREHEE
(ERMITARRENIEER
ERRIN) 2 IR AL B Ty E
REEBFRPIEME D -

HITESFEEASE M
WHREE MEBRAE
B 7 4 E R T A

physical location of the assets.

Group's principal office.

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location
of the non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) is based on the

The executive directors determine the Group is
domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location of the
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H DEER @) 5.

(b) HEEH (&)
BHLEEFLZEH
KEBEEREP (A%

B EE10%3IA EFE) 2
W H T

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Geographic information (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the major customers, which
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue,
is set out below:

2020 2019

FET TFBT

HK$'000 HK$°000

BEEH* Customer A* 15,784" 52,660
BRL* Customer B* 67,371 38,1332
KEFEZ WD * The revenue from two customers were all

BLF B e E st &
& EEREELE
B TR ED.Z 7B

g REZE T -—FTFN
A=+HILFE H
JEW 7 (85T A5
B zitEiB10% ° &
BIEFHE Bai B

: REE-F-AFA
A =+E1EEE 4
RS EF)T A7
B EBE10% B
B E A5
TR

derived by the segment engaging in design,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
Jewellery and diamonds.

7 The corresponding revenue did not individually
contribute over 10% of the Group’s revenue
during the year ended 30 June 2020. The
disclosure of such is for illustration only.

d The corresponding revenue did not individually
contribute over 10% of the Group’s revenue
during the year ended 30 June 2019. The
disclosure of such is for illustration only.

ul
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(o))

I &
B2 MEMT

6.

REVENUE

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2020 2019
FETT FAET
HK$000 HK$°000
HMES M ZAEHELEZ  Revenue from contracts with customers
Wz
HES M Sale of goods 403,043 419,195
R B H A AR 2 Was Revenue from other sources
e WA Rental income 4,959 3,623
A B WA Interest income 9,618 17,689
®E 2 REHBA Dividend income from investments 2,695 460
420,315 440,967

TREHRBRETFZEBZAH
EEZEZRUEFELANEE

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with

LB customers.
2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
g Sl GE Trade receivables (note 28)

(MsE=+/\) 92,687 114,881
AEHEE(HE=+) Contract liabilities (note 32) 475 1,227
RZZE-—NFRA=TH &4 As at 30 June 2019, the contract liabilities mainly related to
BEFEFRCHERAEE 5 the advance consideration received from customers which
ZEFERA=THIEFEZWE has been recognised as revenue for the year ended 30 June
ZTEREFRE- 2020.

RZE_ZEFA=F+H & As at 30 June 2020, the advance consideration received

Wz FE R (E475,0008 L (==
—JL4F : 1,227,000/ 7T ) AR E
REBBREENRAKRBITZEA
E5 - 2 EREHNRKER
ZWas o AN E B R R TE K R
HEBREREER R - LB
R —FENBLE-

from customers of HK$475,000 (2019: HK$1,227,000)
represents unfulfilled performance obligation under the
Group’s exiting contracts. This amount represents revenue
expected to be recognised in the future. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when performance
obligation is completed, which is expected to occur within
one year.
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+ -~ MBRAE 7. FINANCE COSTS
2020 2019
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEZH: Interest charges on:
R1ITREME K Bank and other loans 24,592 19,466
BEERARRME Interest expenses on loan from ultimate
BER A BRX holding company - 3,497
HEABEZAE Interest on lease liabilities (note 35)
(MsFE=+A) 778 -
BEMEAE 2B Finance charges on obligation under
finance leases - 4
FE AT — & e & R 3R IE Imputed interest expenses arising from
FEEZESFERX amount due
to a related company 1,321 1,387
RIEE KA Total borrowing costs 26,691 24,354
BT TAIEE EARZ  Less: interests capitalised in
A
—&EWE (E++) — investment properties (note 17) (15,644) (17,416)
—BERYE — property under development (note 26)
(FEE=17%) (3,746) (1,121)
7,301 5,817
FANBARERZEERKAT)ER Borrowing cost capitalised during the year were calculated
HEEREECIHERSFLD by applying a capitalisation rate of approximately 3.1%
31% (ZFE—NF:3.5% ) 28 (2019: 3.5%) per annum to expenditure on the qualifying
FEAREERFTH - assets.
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0]

I\~ BRETGHLE
(E51R) iEF

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

2020 2019
FETT FAET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
NEE 2 BRETEFLRD The Group's (loss)/profit before income tax
(&) = F s is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
SNV EEPN)
THEE #BE
B EHFERAE Cost of inventories sold 290,473 311,776
Yz WE R BT E Depreciation of property,
(FHesE+r) plant and equipment (note 14) 4,059 4,747
FHESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 16)
(PR EE+7%) 4,496 -
ot {5 R A G Amortisation of land use rights (note 15)
(B EE+3) - 1,334
Z AN & Auditor's remuneration 1,370 2,414
ERGTENE 7R T Minimum lease payments under
+ 3 RIEF operating leases on land and
KEHEE N2 buildings under HKAS 17
REEERK - 3,615
RAEES Short-term leases charges 305 =
EEEEEHEES S Low-value assets leases charges 1,916 -
FERE Provision for inventories* 2,912 5,599
AT EFFAERZ Fair value loss on financial assets
TREEZ AT EEE at fair value through profit or loss 223 74
5N B 15 Net foreign exchange loss 5,097 3,909
HEME BHE X Loss on disposal of property, plant and
R EE equipment 63 25
5 48 B Government grants” = (118)
PLIENT —FEEEH A 5]Z T8 Gain on debt modification on amount due
1EEETE 2 W to a related company (1,318) (2,137)
WEH Y2 - BB KR Write-off of property, plant and equipment 2 50
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I\~ BRERGHLA 8.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

— 4= N3 . .
(fE518) / wmFl 2 (continued)
i FRAZFRBEEEFTALE * Provision for inventories for the year was included in “cost
B RE M2 H K& of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of
[HHERA] A - profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

# BT R E—F
FNHA=1HIFFEEIFT
)T (B 48 B 2 R Z
SR - it T35 R AN 5E B — [E]
HIE 1 Al 2 B A TR 08
&) - 17 B) 30 AE K JE T 1%
LA

REZE_ZT-_TFA=1+HIL
FE AKEEHREE HBEE
= B 2 B B P9 4 EX8,038,000
BT BRIF AR - ThRARERAT
201978 Ak &= m ([COVID-19])
ARATHESERBRE & -
HEBTERE EREERAZ
HEAREE 2 ES BB KE
MBARIREIERIE  #XZ
ERRAEEERAREE REA
AEELCBEREVHRIE -R=
TTFMAEAA AKEE
HARHET SR AREEMY
W ER 2 B) 5 517,214,000/ 7T
K:.824,0007% Tt © 5% % BU i B)
WEAREITHE M AETE-

& Government grants received during the year ended 30 June
2019 were mainly from }T 77772 )T &2 4% 2 (E £ /& for one
of the Group’s subsidiaries in respect of business activities
carried on in this area. There are no unfulfilled condiitions or
contingencies related to these grants.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group has
received government subsidies of HK$8,038,000 from
government bodies in Hong Kong, UK and USA with
regards to government support towards entities during
the Coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic
situation. The purpose of these government subsidies is to
provide wage support to the subsidiaries in Hong Kong, UK
and USA of the Group to retain employees and to provide
financial support to the Group's operations during this
period of economic uncertainty. The Group has utilised these
grants received for compensating salary of HK$7,214,000
and utilities expenses of HK$824,000 from April to June
2020. There are no unfulfilled and other contingencies
attaching to these government grants.

O
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o

K~ FEBREXZ S (KR) 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
BEFNESHRNFAREBEE Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
A FH RS MR X 16.5% 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
—E—NF:165%)TE-H arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
fth b [ fE FR A0 Ve ) 2 A I8 T & assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
MARE B L RIGIE 2 RVERE rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
B2RTEN 2ERE & operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
ZEa AR REA 2 B EET practices in respect thereof.
2020 2019
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B ERT I8 Current tax
B Hong Kong 30 70
BEFERBEREE Over provision in prior years* (257) (22,186)
(227) (22,116)
EIEFLIE (MizE=+/)  Deferred tax (note 39)
REEZ Current year 4,436 (72)
FrisfiF (%) 4% Total income tax expense/(credit) 4,209 (22,188)
e REBZEZZ—-N\F A=+ & During the year ended 30 June 2018, PRC enterprise

HIEFE RkaHE—HEE
B R B ERS
385,719,000/% Jt J5 #% BA P
Bl B R B 75 48 B A 5201 74F
FEIREE -BRAME AR
R B A A 75 755 4 ol 7 T A AR
MBERE FAEE-R
BHE-_ZT—-NFA=1H
IEEFE A - A B AR B A 7 A
BREETE Ll REESR
B BR G EEREE
22,245,000/ 7T ©

income tax expense of HK$85,719,000 arising from the
disposal of a joint venture was estimated according to the
notice of the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC
[2017] No. 37. Such estimation was subject to the final
tax outcome as determined by the relevant tax authority
in the PRC. During the year ended 30 June 2019, the said
tax outcome was finalised by the relevant tax authority in
the PRC and resulted in an overprovision of income tax of
HK$22,245,000.
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FrEBi%, (%) 9.

(%)

Frfsbsx, (%) RiZEM
BEFEZ S (BE), 85

(continued)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

Reconciliation between income tax expense/(credit) and

ZHER
2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
B ATERi AT (B518) %A (Loss)/Profit before income tax (13,673) 26,424
A EE16.5% Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax,
—ZE—N%5%:165%) calculated at the statutory rate of
T E Z B PRSHAT 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
(&18),s M HE (2,256) 4,360
REAM AR L E 2 Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
MEB AR TRMRE 2 operating in other jurisdictions
2 165 (1,173)
EhEEREFES Tax effect of share of results of
W joint ventures 4 (269)
il N E - v Tax effect of share of results of associates
s (2,400) 23
PNAMFFAS 2 HiEF 2  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 2,186 1,881
BRI A Z T2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,733) (10,008)
BRBERERZ Utilisation of tax losses previously not
TIEE A recognised (473) (100)
RERTIAEEZ Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
s 9,977 4,976
RIERERETE 2 Tax effect of temporary differences not
BB recognised @) 308
VAT F S R Over provision in prior years (257) (22,186)
FTisfiFAx (&) Income tax expense/(credit) 4,209 (22,188)
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+ - B2 10. DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
FiET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
MEFIR 2 REARE Final dividend paid in respect of
FR%0.257511L the prior year of HK0.25 cent
—E—AE:05581) (2019: HKO.5 cent) per share 17,078 34,156
BEETEEMBE_ST_TFAX The director do not recommend any payment of dividends in
A=THIEFERMEMKRE - respect of the year ended 30 June 2020.
RZZE-—NFNA=THE]T At the board meeting held on 30 September 2019, the
LEESER L BEERAESR directors resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK0.25
A B R% 3 AR 0. 2581l 2 R EA cent per ordinary share. The proposed dividend had not
RE-FEKRELRERBE T been recognised as a dividend payable as at 30 June 2019,
—hWEARA=THZEMNKRE - but reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the
HERBRABEZE-ZS=_ZTF A year ended 30 June 2020.

= tHUEFEZREBRENDIK -

+— B (B#8) B 11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

KA EER A BN T I EA K The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

B (E8) BATER T attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the
B E - following data:

2020 2019

FET FET

HKS$'000 HK$°000

Pt EEREAR (E518) (Loss)/Profit attributable to the owners of
B2 RRARHEB A the Company for the purpose of basic
fE1h (EBE),aFl (loss)/earnings per share (15,341) 43,679




Annual Report 2020 “F #f;

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—Z-TFA=1THIEFE

+— 8K (BB &7 11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(%)
B & E
Number of shares
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
AR E TR EAR Weighted average number of ordinary
(BE),/ Bz EEk shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/
INHEFEH 8 earnings per share 6,831,182,580 6,331,182,580
TNHEIBE W N 2 EIE#SE  Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
THERZTZE respect of
—HE AR (P EEG)) — Share option (note (i) = -
AT & i #EE Weighted average number of ordinary
(B8),/ BFzEEk shares for the purpose of diluted (loss)/
HNHE 15 2 earnings per share 6,831,182,580 6,831,182,580
Kat - Note:

@

BE_T-_ZTHF A=+
HIEFEZARAREAA
BEESRERNEERTDER
RNRBHEE ANEEFAE
815,341,000 T (=&
—hE ARREHEE AR
4 % F143,679,0007% 7T
B F 7 EE AR N 19 &
6,831,182,5800% (—Z — A,
4 :6,831,182,5800% ) 515 °

HE-_ZT-_ZTFR-_T—A
FRA=ZTHILEFE BR
EREARESTE BN
StEEREE (BE) BF
P I 4 {35 AR BB A A JEE AT 45 o

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2020 was based on the loss for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$15,341,000 (2019:
profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$43,679,000) and on weighted average
of 6,831,182,580 (2019: 6,831,182,580) ordinary shares
during the year.

For the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, the
computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share did not
assume the exercise of share option as they were anti-
dilutive.
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+= - EERFIRX

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(BIREESME - (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
faE+=) EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 13)

2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000

TE FHe 2B K Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits
BN &= in kind 95,288 87,021

FE R RET S 5K Contributions on defined contribution

retirement plans 7,082 8,487
LARRAD A& 2 fE Share-based compensation 200 =
102,570 95,508

+= EEHFMEAN

(a)

REmATZME

EZHE

BEEB QA K
(FREB-_TZE)%
—ANTZBKERAR (#
BEEEHMEER) R

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to S.383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
and the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) is as

(FARE-T=GE )#HE follows:
ZEEHMOT
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EE4we Directors’ fees 250 250
Fre ERMAEYN = Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 8,592 9,636
TEAL Bonus 1,150 1,150
RARAE FFT S 3R Contributions to retirement
benefit schemes 390 387
& 4258 Total emoluments 10,382 11,423
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T= EEFMRAN 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
BEamATZEHME EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
(&) INDIVIDUALS (continuea)
(a) EEME (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
FRAENKENSESZ The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
BT : directors during the year were as follows:
BEZZE-EH Year ended 30 June 2020

ANRA=+HLEFE

Ry RIKERIFH &)
EsHg REWH & 4 #3K st
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’ and benefits benefit
fees in kind Bonus schemes Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000
(B EEG))
(note (i)
BiTES: Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 2,400 200 108 2,708
8 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,280 190 103 2573
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,104 120 50 1,274
Bz Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 2,460 400 1M1 297
AR Wong Edward Gwon-hing = 1,452 240 18 1,710
FHTES: Non-executive director:
s Yam Tat Wing 50 - - - 50
BIEHTES: Independent non-
executive directors:
ABA Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
BRIRiE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
IE5RIE Sze Irons 50 - - - 50
R Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - 50
BEHS (=) Waiver of salary (note (ii) - (1,104) = - (1,108)
) Total 250 8,592 1,150 390 10,382
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(@)

+= EEHFMRAN

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

RamATZHME EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
(&) INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(@) E=Be &) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
BE_T—hEF Year ended 30 June 2019
NA=E+HLEEE
e 2l BT E
EEtika RENHG bzl 7R @3
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors' and benefits benefit
fees in kind Bonus schemes Total
FET FET AT FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS000
(Fi3EG))
(note (i))
BiTES: Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 2,400 200 108 2,708
B Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,280 190 103 2,573
[ -3:: Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,092 120 49 1,261
BRIE Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 2,430 400 109 2,939
BER Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1,434 240 18 1,692
FoES: Non-executive director:
frEs Yam Tat Wing 50 - - - 50
BikumEs: Independent non-
executive directors:
RBA Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
TR e Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
HERE Sze Irons 50 - - - 50
R g Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - 50
a5t Total 250 9,636 1,150 387 11,423
Bt Notes:
(i) TEALLAE S 2 (@ RI% (i) The bonus is determined by the individual
REE - performance of the directors.
(ii) BHE_ZT-_TFH (ii) For the year ended 30 June 2020, due to the cost

=t+tHLEFE AR
BEITRARA BUR
WHITESEERE
HEZHETHML
1,104,000/ 7t (=
T—NF:E) o

saving policy, executive directors voluntarily agreed
to waive their entitlement to certain remuneration
of approximately HK$ 1,104,000 (2019: Nil).
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+=- EEHMEAN 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
Ram AT ZHME EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
(&) INDIVIDUALS (continuea)
() EEMs (&) (@)  Directors’ emoluments (continued)
FAN AEEWERESE During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
SRR & fEAIAS Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
RIIAZRER B 2 22E) 3k upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
BB AE(E of office.
(b) HlUBREHFAL (b)  Five highest paid individuals
FRAEE AN &S H The five individuals whose emoluments were the
ATBEEE (ZE—AN highest in the Group for the year included four
FRHB)EF KEZ (2019: five) Directors whose emoluments are
e E X252 5T reflected in the analysis presented above. The
R FARSEBRAL emoluments payable to the remaining individual
ZBeamTn during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ ERE R H A5 Salaries, allowances and other
benefits 1,512 -
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= EEHMEANM
EeamALTZME

(&)

(b) FHuZRSHAL (&)

AZEER T 5 B < %6 E

13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The number of individuals fell within the following

(EHRBRI) - emolument band (excluding the Directors):
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
il 4 &6 & Emolument band
1,500,000/8 T & HK$1,500,000 to
2,000,0007% 7T HK$2,000,000 1 -
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+m - WE - BB RRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

EFR KB
HELH BEWERE RREE KRREE RERRE EEIR &t
Furniture,
Buildings fixtures and
and equipment
Leasehold leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
land  improvements structures  machinery vehicles  in progress Total
AT AT THET TET &L AT AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
RZF-\EtA-A At1uly2018
A Cost 3538 85,876 47,703 45,568 56,183 12,892 251,760
ZHAMERNE Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment (2,071) (63918) (28,156) (42,348) (52,106) (6,715) (195,314)
RE3E Net carrying amount 1467 21,958 19,547 3,220 4,077 6,177 56,446
BEZZ-1% Year ended
NAZTALEE  30June2019
ENRETE Opening net carrying
amount 1,467 21,958 19,547 3,220 4,077 6,177 56,446
RE Additions - 1,693 - 233 1,404 - 3330
e /M DisposalsMitten off - - - = 81) = (81)
il Depreciation (50) (2,966) - (213) (1,518) - (4,747)
R Exchange realignment - (728) (795) (17) (162) (251) (1,953)
FRRAFH Closing net carrying
amount 147 19,957 18,752 3223 3,720 5926 52,995
RIZ-AERA  At30June 2019, as
S+H MEHTE  previously stated
A Cost 3538 87,569 47703 45,801 57,506 12,892 255,009
ZAERAE Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment 2,121 (67,612) (28,951) (42,578) (53,786) (6,966) (202,014)
RE3E Net carrying amount 147 19,957 18,752 3223 3,720 5926 52,995
EREEMBREER Adjustment upon
165 E A application of
(WEZ() HKFRS 16
(note 2 (a))
A Cost (3,539) - - - (770) - (4,308)
2iHE Accumulated
depreciation 2121 - - - 770 - 2,891
RE3E Net carrying amount (1417) - - - - - (1417)

O
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(%) (continued)
EFR fiffh B>
AELH BEMERE RBEE HRERRE HRERAE ERIR @t
Furniture,
Buildings fixtures and
and equipment
Leasehold leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
land  improvements structures machinery vehicles i progress Total
&7 AT FET &L AT AT &7
HK$000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZF-AELA—A" At1July 2019,
&E7) restated
A Cost - 87,569 47,703 45,801 56,736 12,892 250,701
ZETERAE Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment - (67,612) (28,951) (42,578) (53,016) (6,966) (199,123)
REFE Net carrying amount - 19957 18752 3003 3720 5,926 51,578
BEZ32%% Year ended
NAZTHLEEE  30June2020
ENREEE Opening net carrying
amount - 19,957 18,752 3223 3,720 5926 51,578
AE Additions = 337 = 141 807 - 1,285
WERBAT Acquisition of
(WFE+AE) Subsidiaries
(note 49(a)) - - - 1,081 355 - 1436
HE /M DisposalsMitten off = (60) - = (285) = (345)
il Depreciation - (2.403) - (258) (1,39) - (4,059)
BERERE Reversal of impairment
loss - 68 234 1 1 160 464
& 5 A% Exchange realignment - (624) (665) (56) (152) (210) (1,707)
EXRETR Closing net carrying
amount - 17,275 18321 4132 3,048 5876 48,652
R-F_FE At 30 June 2020
~AZ+H
A Cost - 85,442 46,036 46,882 57,103 12,440 247,903
2HMERRE Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment - (68,167) (27,715) (42,750) (54,055) (6,564) (199,251)
R Net carrying amount - 17,275 18,321 4132 3,048 5,876 48652
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HE—Z-TFA=1THIEFE

+Mm -~ WX - BB RS
(%)

(@)

RZZEZTF A=1+8"
AN £ [812,446,000/8 T 2 &
T - BB & 5% 1 B £ AR
EBHEP—ERSELSN
(RBEEESELEMN]AE
B AR ERSELEN
2R TR BT o 1R
B+ — iR REER
SEEBEMZAKRESEE:
464,000 T 26 T2EEE
BERBIEE RN BESRED o

R—ZZE_ZTFXA=T
H ANEBBEREEFELN
8,279,000 L2 & THEF K
HEMEEE BWE ks
ANREM KB -RERA
BHEER (ERANKBEER
Z—RIBITEERE 2R
(fE=+=) -

R-ZFE—AFE~NA=T
B ASEREAFELD
9,784,000 L2 E THE L
WREFEER EREKE
EEE 2 —RBRITEERE
ZER(ME=1+=) -

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 30 June 2020, certain property, plant and equipment
of HK$12,446,000 of the Group, which are related to
one of the cash-generating units of the mining operation
("Mining CGU") are combined with the mining right under
the Mining CGU for impairment assessment. Impairment
loss of HK$464,000 has been reversed to profit or loss on
certain of these assets according to the recoverable amount
of this Mining CGU as disclosed in note 21.

As 30 June 2020, the Group's certain buildings and
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery, and
furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles
with aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$8,279,000 were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 33).

At 30 June 2019, the Group's certain leasehold land
and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts of
approximately HK$9,784,000 were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 33).

N
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+H - TilEAE 15. LAND USE RIGHTS
REER T HERE ERIETR The Group's interests in land use rights represented prepaid
NEERENK BREFE L operating lease payments and the movements in their net
IO carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
2019
FET

HK$000
FYHRE 5 Opening net carrying amount 32,398
FAEHET N Amortisation charge for the year (1,334)
bE 5 S Exchange realignment (1,193)
FRIRME SRR Closing net carrying amount 29,871

KRB BB HREERFE165%
& tHERAER_Z—NFt
H—R 2 RHE$%829,871,000%
T EAFRESE (fE=
@) -

R-ZZT—hESA=1+H K&
BR M 48%81,233,000/8 7T 2 &
FrufEREEER  FALASE
EERZ —RIRTEEREZE
®(HE=1+=)-

The carrying amount of the land use right of
HK$29,871,000 as at 1 July 2019 is classified as right-of-use
assets, upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2(a)).

At 30 June 2019, the Group's certain land use rights with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$ 1,233,000 were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 33).
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HE_Z-_TFRA=THILFE

T8 ERERE 16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
FRAEEERTFHRITABEE The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use
BRWEE 2 DT assets by class of underlying assets is as follows:

HinfHE
EBRZ
it fE P 4 HELH L/ES i
Other
properties
Land use Leasehold leased for
rights land own use Total
FET FET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZF—AEANA=+H" At 30 June 2019, as

LIRS previously stated = - - =
VIRER BB IS Initial application of

KR 165 HKFRS 16 (note 2(a))

(M=) 29,871 1,417 1,645 32,933
RZE—AEEA—H> At1luly2019,

s as restated 29,871 1,417 1,645 32,933
INE Addition - - 5,736 5,736
G NG Acquisition of subsidiaries

(BEEm+h)) (note 49(a)) - - 14,899 14,899
& — B QA Disposal of a subsidiary

(MR +@E) (note 50(a)) (216) - - (216)
WESH Depreciation charges (1,285) (50) (3,161) (4,496)
bE 5 AR Exchange realignment (998) = (217) (1,215)
FORBREH 50 Closing net carrying

amount 27,372 1,367 18,902 47,641
RZZE_TFXA=1TH A& At 30 June 2020, certain of the Group's right-of-use assets
| AR M 42 582,516,000/8 70 2 & with aggregate carrying amounts of HK$2,516,000 were
TERABREESER EREAE pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
EER —RBRITEEREZE Group (note 33).

R(FFE=1+=) -

N
o
W
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+t - BEYE 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

H

AEERBLLHERA AR
M (FERREZIBEMERE
SR EEHBERTIERLIREY
XRB AR AERRYF
BRIV E Y DBARAKRT
EREME-

REFEEMHRRAR 2N ZEEE

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes
or property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the

BmEFHPRAOT consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:
2020 2019
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FYIRAESRE Carrying amount at beginning of the year 1,511,200 1,308,400
NE Additions 42,513 18,952
BERFTERZHE Interests capitalised (note 7)
(P &E+) 15,644 17,416
NEEREZ (Loss)/Gain from fair value adjustments
(B18) e (5.257) 37,432
g g — IR B A B Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 49(c))
(B 5P+ (o) - 129,000
FRIREEHE Carrying amount at end of the year 1,564,100 1,511,200

i 1 EREEZMAED
TiE B JNEE A WA
HLE3E-

RZE_ZEFNA=+H'B
SRR B W R A R 2 R0 TT
BRAR(ZZE—hLF Y
B EMTHERARFEAERE
&E(ZE—NF:HELL
BRVETHEE SHZEHE
£175,100,0008 L (= ZF— N
4 :181,200,000/8 7T ) c H#E Lt
BEEZERFABEIBRYEZK
R Esk AR BN AR T
SEEBRY MR ZBREY
EEMAEE -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

Completed investment properties were valued at 30 June
2020 by Knight Frank Petty Limited (2019: Knight Frank
Petty Limited) at HK$175,100,000 (2019: HK$181,200,000)
by adopting the direct comparison approach (2019: direct
comparison approach). The direct comparison considers the
sales, listing or offerings of similar or substitute properties
and related market data establishes a value estimate by
processes involving comparison.
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+t - BREVE & 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

RZEZZEFA=TH R
FIREMERRKGRAZSMITE
RARKABEE(ZZE—N
& 8MEE) ETHE SR A
18 /41,389,000,000/8 75 (=&
— JL4F : 1,330,000,000/ 7T ) °
HEZBBREEREBERG
FHABEE RN (BIEEEN A
BEER MBKA KA
AR B R R e I s T 5 4K ) 788

;'_Eo

AEEREMEZ A TFEBRF3
BREMERNFEFE - FOHEF

Investment property under development was valued
at 30 June 2020 by Knight Frank Petty Limited at
HK$1,389,000,000 (2019: HK$1,330,000,000) by adopting
the residual method (2019: residual method). The residual
method is determined by deducting the estimated total
cost of the development including costs of construction,
professional fee, finance cost, associated costs and an
allowance for developer’s risk and profit from the gross
development value.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

RAFEGSHREREAT opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:
2020 2019
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
FHAAER Opening balance
(BIBLEEATEH) (level 3 recurring fair value) 1,511,200 1,308,400
NE Additions 42,513 18,952
BEREFTERZHE Interests capitalised (note 7)
(FfeEL) 15,644 17,416
RHEREZ Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments
(&18) W F 8 (5.257) 37,432
Uk B — 1 Bt /B 2 &) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 49(c))
(B &2 +Au(0)) - 129,000
EREGER Closing balance
(F3EREHELATE) (level 3 recurring fair value) 1,564,100 1,511,200
PMERFTIFEET AIB2ZE  Change in unrealised gains or losses for the
2 F A AR B IR W a5k year included in profit or loss for assets
EEEH) held at the end of the year (5,257) 37,432

NHEFENU ERIREMERFE
TERNER (REERRSEL
B[R BER-

The fair value measurement is based on the above
investment properties’ highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use.

N
ul



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

+t - HEYE @ 17.

TRIEHAERNAETREDE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair

N
()}

RNEBEZER values of the investment properties are determined.
KEEBEBAE
Eik] TR EXREBREBAE EXRTEERANEZER ﬂ"#ﬁzﬁﬁ{é
Relationship of significant
Significant unobservable Range of significant unobservable inputs to fair
Description Valuation technique inputs unobservable inputs value
2020 2019 2020 2019
ERARENR EfMEE  ERNAE NEES WMHENE K +-0% +-0% %%*E%’TWE%W%Z
RigE -10% -16% EShs ATEAR
Completed Direct Direct Quality of properties such as The higher the quality of
investment comparison comparison location, size and level of the properties with reference
properties approach approach properties to comparables, the higher
the fair value.
RRDRENE BHEE BEE RREELBRERZ BERE BEAR BYAR SYARERDS ATE
BEE UiRUEREH  28800ET- 2950087~ BAE
ERIRZ AN 500087 5500087
EE WERES
Investment Residual Residual Value per saleable area using HK$28,800-  HK$29,500 - The higher the price per
property under method method direct comparable and taking HK$52,000 HK$55,000 square foot, the higher the
development into account of the location  per square foot  per square foot fair value.
and other individual factors,
such as size of property, level
of property, site view etc.
BRE 35% % BREAS ATE
.
Discount rate The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
fEFt T IR ¥R BTAR  fEARIRARR AT
42008 500037 fERE-
Estimated costs to HK$4,200 HK$5,000 The higher the estimated
completion per square foot  per square foot costs to completion, the
lower the fair value.
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++t - REWE ») 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
RZZEZZFA=1TRH K& As at 30 June 2020, the Group's investment properties
B BR Mm% 581,564,100,000/% 7T with carrying amounts of HK$1,564,100,000 (2019:
—Z—N%:1,511,200,0007% HK$1,511,200,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
T ZIEBEMEEER EAR borrowings granted to the Group (note 33).
SEER A TRITEE ZER
(fE=+=) -
+I\ - BHE 18. GOODWILL
2020 2019
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$°000
FYIRE SRR Opening net carrying amount = =
UBE B B A AR E A& Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(P EERE+T1(a)) (note 49(a)) 8,124 -
FORIRE S5 Closing net carrying amount 8,124 =
RETSE OF R IR 2 BB R IE Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
BF 95 B Z=Novell Enterprises Inc. at acquisition, to Novell Enterprises Inc. (“Novell”) under
(I'Novell 1) T 7 & Bl &% 5t - & cash-generating unit of design, manufacturing, marketing
B HEEREEREEMRER and trading of fine jewellery and diamonds segment in US
oz ReEEEN ([EE ("Jewellery US CGU"). Particulars regarding the impairment
KREGMAECELSEMN]) - B testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 20.
R ERER R 2 BRI+
5 o

N
o
~
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N
(03]

Th- BEEE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2020 2019
FiET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FYRRE R Opening net carrying amount = =

WS FT B A RIS EEAE Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(FHEEPI+T1(a)) (note 49(a)) 8,292 -
ME 5 B Exchange realignment (70) -
FRARE 5 Closing net carrying amount 8,222 =

RZEZTFRA=+AH"
8,222,000 T2 BIIF |V B &
TREFNEIT 2 EBE - &Y
BEENS®E 5 21H 2
BERFT AR EEAMASEA
[Wright & Lido | % [Lieberfarb |
mMEEBZKEEN -EER
R ZERERN AR SR
RAEEEEFRETA B
BEEEEEREAFH FEE
HEERBEAR 2 FERHE
— B

RZE_ZTFA=+H"
8,222,000 T (—ZF — L& -
BICEBEREECER ERA
SEER . —RBITEEREZ
ER(ME=1+=) -

At 30 June 2020, intangible assets of trademarks
amounting to HK$8,222,000 were arising from a business
combination during the year. Intangible assets represent the
perpetual right to use of brand name of “Wright & Lido”
and “Lieberfarb” which takes the form of sign, symbol,
name, logo design or any combination thereof. The directors
considered these trademarks have an indefinite useful life
since they are expected to generate net cash inflows to the
Group indefinitely. Particulars of the impairment testing on
intangible assets are disclosed in note 20.

At 30 June 2020, intangible assets of HK$8,222,000 (2019:
Nil) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 33).



Annual Report 2020 “F #f;
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z-_TFRA=THILFE

“+ - BEEEEEVER 20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

EH 2 HEREY
¥ 7 2 R

RETRERR - MITE18K% 195
RS EAEERERFERAFH
HEREVEEZER@SEE
AEEERKEEHRSELS
f-ZEAEREFERERES
FritESTEE 2 3 & miEal -

XEREEHRSELEM A
Yo lel & BEIAE BB ERFEAE
E o FEAERERESRN
HWERFHMBREE ZRERE
Ao EREENEIZEERR
RBEBYPAMRER EREX FE
BEMERWHE - BBRHFH
ZHEEREM2% 2 G5t T
P REHEE  MzEREL A
BEXEREXZREERE -
AEEEARREFNMSHTE
HREEZHERRSELENL
BA R BATL RiGFHREER
R BRR -BHEEMNE R
DERBERRMEEEHTS
BLREHEE-

AR EEREGHREESE
BUZEARERILEREF
13.7%

EERR &R LR ER -
WL 18 19D RIFF# 2
BB KB A EMERRE-

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amounts
of goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful lives
set out in notes 18 and 19, respectively, have been allocated
to the Jewellery US CGU. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
directors.

The recoverable amount of the Jewellery US CGU
is determined from value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors, covering a five-year
period. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates,
budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period. Cash
flow beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 2%, which does
not exceed the long-term growth rate for the jewelleries
industry in the US. The Group estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-
generating unit. The growth rates, budgeted gross margin
and revenue are determined based on the past performance
and management’s expectation of market development.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from
Jewellery US CGU is 13.7% per annum.

In the opinion of the directors, based on the aforesaid
impairment testing, there is no impairment recognised in
respect of the goodwill and intangible assets as set out in
notes 18 and 19 respectively.

N
O
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PR ERAR FYRE

N
(e)

“+— - RIRE

MINING RIGHT

2020 2019

FET FHET

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FYRRE R Opening net carrying amount 598,387 623,749
FREERE Reversal of impairment for the year 17,592 =
bE 5 3 2 Exchange realignment (21,206) (25,362)
FEREMA SR Closing net carrying amount 594,773 598,387
BRE 4258 Gross carrying amount 918,588 952,337
R Accumulated amortisation (4,158) 4,311)
2R ER A Accumulated provision for impairment (319,657) (349,639)
BREDFEE Net carrying amount 594,773 598,387

RERMERBEREELEML L
AU el & FEER AT ER L EX
A28 (F3EATVEFE)E
E-RERSEABMZ(AER
FARAMERERER A
fRESRREELE MR R A AT
&5 2 ST (i (E R A0 B8R FY A
BRAAET

R-ZZE-_TFXA=1H K&
REeEL BN Z AFERBHENX
AERMSEELAFERINES
RTE AT ERBREELRE
AN FERE A 2 E R RRA
B BEMERZ KEG AR
e

The recoverable amount of the Mining CGU to which
the mining right belongs was determined based on the
measurement of fair value less costs of disposal, a level 3
fair value measurement. The valuation of the Mining CGU
was carried out by BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent
valuer who held recognised and relevant professional
qualifications and had recent experience in the location and
category of the mining right being valued.

The fair value less costs of disposal of the Mining CGU
as at 30 June 2020 was measured using recent sale and
purchase transactions under the market-based approach.
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the Mining CGU were based on the independent
professional valuer’s best estimate.
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“+—- REE &

ZIEZ BEREEBRBAER
T

BT EEERZ T HEESE

The range of uncertainty of estimated gold resources

RHBRERRERH

Adjusted consideration to resources multiple
E 7 4k % 2 COVID-20191m fE H 2 B3R
Discount due to Coronavirus COVID-2019

B ESERZ T HEE & E A
mCATFERRK KAEER
REGHZRS AFEAS-
ECOVID-2019if 1 ) 2 Bk 25 &
& AFEAUK -

B B RAEMN G ERTHE
FEMERTTEREHE  ANCER
(B4l

BHE—_ T -_ZFEA=F+HILF
E - 2REETH ESRARK
TR S EE B Z ATk E e 5 h
=t A497,855,0005 7t A I B
BRI LR ERES 2 FRIB R 2
A B8 {37 8 B R (B /E515 18,056,000
BT B EUREBEE L 2R
ERELA R BB MR 2 iR
M2 %5 517,592,000 7T &
464,0007 JT. © 8 [B] i (8 &5 18 51
AREBEEDH T 2 HESE
B BEBEBEEITERANE

EMEES-

R-ZZE-NAFRA=TH AE
RiEReEL B RBERR-

MINING RIGHT (continued)

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

30%£100%

30% to 100%
BR52.0ETEFRB.IET
HK$52.0 per gram to HK$98.1 per gram
20%

20%

The higher the range of uncertainty of the estimated gold
resources was, the lower the fair value was. The higher
the adjusted consideration of resources multiple was, the
higher the fair value was. The higher the discount due to
COVID-2019 is, the lower the fair value is.

The independent professional valuer exercised their
professional judgement to estimate the uncertainty of
resources to improve the valuation technique.

For the year ended 30 June 2020, with reference to
the assessment, the directors were of the view that the
recoverable amount of the Mining CGU was estimated to
be HK$497,855,000 and therefore, reversal of impairment
loss of HK$18,056,000 in respect of the Mining CGU of the
mining business was identified. The reversal of impairment
loss was allocated to the carrying amount of mining right
and property, plant and equipment by HK$17,592,000
and HK$464,000 respectively. The reversal of impairment
loss was included under mining operation of the Group's
operating segment. The reversal of impairment loss was
primarily due to the change in market gold price.

As at 30 June 2019, there was no impairment loss of the
Mining CGU.

N
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N
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—+= - BREEARZ 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
W=
2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIFEE Share of net assets 36,303 23,896
BB Provision for impairment (3.898) (6,034)
32,405 17,862
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
A /NEIE S Due from associates = 1,259
TEEE Provision for impairment = (1,259)

B B FE S R B R 2 R B

Movement in impairment losses in respect of amounts due

B2 EEINT from associates is as follows:
2020 2019
FET FE T
HK$'000 HK$°000
FEEER Balance of the beginning of the year 1,259 1,259
i 55 Written off (1,259) =
FRER Balance at the end of the year = 1,259
R-ZE—NFENA=1H EK As at 30 June 2019, the amounts due were unsecured,

FAREEW 28 RARER

sem
& TA °

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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—t+Z - REERXFRZ 22.
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R-E-_ZTFA=1tHE-Z
—NEANAZ=ZTH EZHEAQ

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associate as at 30 June 2020 and

30 June 2019 are as follows:

AlZ BN
ML/ FEEELN
4 EHRAMERFE AMEEEHE HEEEZEAN IEXRE
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/  ownership interest
Particulars of paid-up registration and  attributable to the
Name registered capital operations Group Principal activities
FEENEHERAF " BERRAARK 0932447 H A THER REEHEE R
(Z2-N%F:36)

General Jewellery Paid up capital of RMB9,093,244 Mainland China N/A (2019: 36)  Jewellery manufacturing
(Shanghai) Company and wholesaling
Limited**

Metropolitan Opportunity B4R &747,582,398% T REEES 30 REER
Fund SPC* (ZE—NF:30)

Paid up capital of USD7,582,398 Cayman Islands 30(2019: 30)  Investment holdings
* FARBBUIEERGERAIE R Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
BRARARSN I EREZ
HAthpk B 2 Rz -
6 REEZT_TF A= g Deregistered during the year ended 30 June 2020.

B 15 E BUH M o

EERA/ LA RREE AR
IBREFAREBERREE
SRR KB RGBSR RFER
EZBABD BEERS R=H
HipBp 2 NR 2 HIE 8 MR R
BRITRK e

The above associate of the Company which, in the opinion

of the directors, principally affected the share of associates’

results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the

share of net asset of the associate by the Group. To give

details of other associates would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

N
-
w
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4+ REEARZ 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
= )
AEEFEHENR DEENE The summarised financial information of General Jewellery
AR AR ZHMBERBE (5 (Shanghai) Company Limited, a principal associate of the
BREEERERB )T Group, extracted from its management accounts were as
follows:
2019
FAET
HK$'000
RANA=1+H As at 30 June

EMENEE Non-current assets -
mENEE Current assets 294
mENaE Current liabilities -

BEANA=1+HLEE For the year ended 30 June
Wt Revenue 750
0 Profit for the year 2,944
HEamElas Other comprehensive income 112
EHEEBRE Total comprehensive income 3,056
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—+= - REEREZ 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
B (7
PSS F E B & 2 A The summarised financial information of Metropolitan
Metropolitan Opportunity Fund Opportunity Fund SPC, a principal associate of the Group,
SPCZHBERME (Ftrg & extracted from its management accounts are as follows:

BB :

2020 2019
Fi# T FETT
HK$'000 HK$000
RANB=+H As at 30 June
mENE EE Current assets 118,241 59,060
EMBEE Non-current assets - -
mEAE Current liabilities (11,094) -
EREBEE Non-current liabilities = -
FEE Net assets 107,147 59,060
IS ER B fE (L B = A A Group's share of the net assets
FEE of the associate 32,405 17,862
HEANA=THLEEE For the year ended 30 June
U = Revenue = -
FREA (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 48,391 (458)
E 2 mikas Other comprehensive income (304) =
2R BRE Total comprehensive income 48,087 (458)
RZE—NFANA=1H" EIh The share of unrecognised loss as at 30 June 2019 was
KR E 53,789,000/ 7T © HK$3,789,000.

N
-
ul
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N
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“+=- REELEZ 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
HE =
2020 2019
FE T FET
HK$000 HK$000
BIFEE Share of net assets 1,973 1,999

(FE) /FEURAS &% Due (to)from joint ventures

IR (696) 54
FERNFRIEREER 28 RARK The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
ERERK o on demand.

RZZE_FFA=+HE=Z Particulars of the principal joint ventures as at 30 June 2020
—NERA=TH FE5&DH and 30 June 2019 are as follows:
RXZFHBOT:
BRTRMERRRL =ML/ FEBEELS
&% AWM E AR At it B BEREZEOL TEXRHK
Particulars of issued and  Place of Percentage of ownership
paid-up share capital/ incorporation/ interest attributable to Principal
Name registered capital registration the Group activities
2020 2019
Reta Investment 10,0008 & R EE RERZEHS 50 50 REER
Holding Limited [Era -3l
10,000 ordinary shares of ~ British Virgin Islands Investment
US$1 each holding
Metropolitan Capital 5,000,000 8K EE0.01 HEHS 33 33 HRAEEKR
E R
5,000,000 ordinary shares  Cayman Islands Investment
of US$0.01 each holding
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REBREED®HEReta
Investment Holding Limited
([Reta Investment | » 7 2 & B2
ZRHEFMKIRRBAEE L
BUEBMEER)HEAS0% (=
Z— N4 :50% ) w0 ILAN - R
S B R & & 1 3 Metropolitan
Capital (RF =8 S M &
NEBEEZ BN ARIEERE)
BAE3IB% (ZF—NF:33%)
B - aNTHERAREEIRE
HEZECETHTEERR
Z TR MReta Investment
Metropolitan Capital=®= & # A ¥
EEREECEIREEGESR
FEBEZEE - RESBHBE®
HERENR  ZEEERHSR
HREERF WEFAERZE
RERE I RTR AR -

“+=- REELEZ 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
EE @ (continued)

The Group has 50% (2019: 50%) interests in joint ventures,
Reta Investment Holding Limited (“Reta Investment”),
a separate structured vehicle incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and operating in Hong Kong. In addition,
the Group also has 33% (2019: 33%) interest in joint
ventures, Metropolitan Capital, a separate structured vehicle
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and operating in Hong
Kong. The contractual arrangement provides the Group with
only the rights to the net assets of these joint arrangements,
with the rights to the assets and obligation for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement resting primarily with Reta
Investment and Metropolitan Capital. Under HKFRS 11,
these joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures
and have been accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method.

N
~
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“t+=- REEEERZ

23.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

R @

AEBZEKNE YD ¥Reta
Investment 5z E [} & 2 7] ([Reta
Investment&s & | ) 2 87 7% & #HEE
ZUAREGAREBLRE W ER

(continued)

The summarised financial information of Reta Investment
and its subsidiaries (“Reta Investment Group”), a material
joint venture of the Group, and reconciliation to the carrying
amount included in the Group’s consolidated financial

RZ2EESB RN statements are as follows:
2020 2019
Fi#T FET
HK$°000 HK$000
WAHE=+H As at 30 June
IEMBEE Non-current assets - _
MBEE Current assets 4,078 4,039
EMBBEE Non-current liabilities - -
MEEE Current liabilities (405) (366)
EARARERGEREZ Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the
Tz 2 HER joint venture
REE Net assets 3,673 3,673
R IR A Less: Non-controlling interest = -
aEPERRFAA Net assets attributable to equity holders of
JE{HFEE the joint venture 3,673 3,673
sTAL#FIAZIER : Included in the above amounts are:
ReERREEH Cash and cash equivalents = =
mEemas (Tefd Current financial liabilities (excluding trade
B 5 Mk EMENFIE) and other payables) (405) (367)

FRBAE (TR
Hofth A FRIR K Bkt )

Non-current liabilities (excluding other
payables and provision)
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—+=. ﬁ’éa’%’ﬁ%z 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
EE @ (continued)
2020 2019
F#E T F BT
HK$000 HK$'000

HEANA=THLEEE For the year ended 30 June

U = Revenue = 69,195
F N F Profit for the year = 3,187
HEf 2wl Other comprehensive income = =
FHEHKZBEE Total comprehensive income - 3,187
FTALMFRIEZ I E Included in the above amounts are:
e REE Depreciation and amortisation = (2,883)
FEHA Interest income - 1
B Interest expense = (236)
PSR R Income tax credit = =

HAEERSELEEZ Reconciled to the Group's

HE Z AR interests in the joint venture
BEPRERFAA Net assets attributable to equity

JEIHFEE holders of the joint venture 3,673 3,673
REE 2 BERERE Group's effective interest 50% 50%
REBEELE SR Group's share of net assets of

REE the joint venture 1,836 1,836

N
—
O
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=

85 N E M FIR)

= REEEEZ 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
=L = .
R @ (continued)
REBBZEKRE & B FE The summarised financial information of Metropolitan
Metropolitan Capital 2 81 75 & #} Capital, a material joint venture of the Group, and
HEZ LA R BR T AR SR B4R S B 7S reconciliation to the carrying amount included in the
WMEREASE 2 EHERNOT Group's consolidated financial statements are as follows:
2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Wm7~A=+H As at 30 June
EMENEE Non-current assets = -
MBEE Current assets 414 494
FEmBEE Non-current liabilities - -
mENBE Current liabilities = -
FEE Net assets 414 494
FTALMFRIEZIEE ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
RERREEH Cash and cash equivalents 23 104
nEemas (TeR Current financial liabilities (excluding

trade and other payables) = _

FRBAE (TR
H e SRR N B )

Non-current liabilities (excluding other
payables and provision) - -
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—+=. ﬁ’éa’%’ﬁ%z 23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
EE @ (continued)
2020 2019
F#E T F BT
HK$000 HK$'000

HEANA=THLEEE For the year ended 30 June

Wezs Revenue - 104
FR(FEE), OEF (Loss)/Profit for the year (80) 104
H 2 E ks Other comprehensive income = =
2H N ARRE Total comprehensive income (80) 104
FTALMFRIEZIHE Included in the above amounts are:
PTEE R SE Depreciation and amortisation = -
A B A Interest income = -
MERX Interest expense = -
FISHiiE % Income tax credit - =

HALERESELEZ Reconciled to the Group's

HE 25 ¥ AR interests in the joint venture
BEPERRFAA Net assets attributable to equity

15 FEE holders of the joint venture 414 494
REE 2 BEREER Group's effective interest 33% 33%
REEELEEERE Group's share of net assets of

FEE the joint venture 137 163

No
N
—
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“+M - AAFESAN 24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
Eiﬂzéﬁl&fﬁz THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
THEE INCOME

2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHBRARE  UAFE: Listed equity investments,
at fair value:
B Hong Kong 14,463 14,488
H b3t 75 Elsewhere 1,143 2,675
15,606 17,163
JE AR AL E - LAAF{E Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 144 2,860
HEt Total 15,750 20,023

AR AEER R AR E 2
HEBREL  MRERECT
AIREHIE E SA R FEFTF AR

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

2 T UK & o
i REABWMKIE 25. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
Kt F#ET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
AN ER Promissory notes (a) 11,449 11,449
E b & Hf e Y 508 Other long-term receivables (b) = 700
11,449 12,149
TR E A Provision for impairment (11,449) (12,149)
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“+&

REBYL IR

25. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

(#&)

KA R IBRE R 2 28 Movement on the provision for impairment of long-term

e receivables is as follows:
2020 2019
FET FHEIT
HK$000 HK$'000
FHEEER Balance of the beginning of the year 700 700
BB EREE Reversal of impairment loss (700) =
FREH Balance at the end of the year - 700

Kt - Notes:

RZZEZZTFHA=+H
A E011,449,0008 7 (==
— L& 11,449,000/ 7T) 2
LR - 7,828,0005 7T
(=Z=Z— N4 :7,828,000%
TL) BEHEE - BB RERT
T —F+A—HEBHTH
FHEE o H #23,621,000/% 7T
(ZZ— N9 :3,621,000%
L) REER RS RAR
—EE-F=-A+ABED
F=FEE - ERERER
AR AEEERAE
FEELEZERE-

R=—T—h&E~A=1+H"
ZEES AR —EFIREQR
{5t 2700,00058 TR R &
o EFIEARE  EERR
AR _ZT—NFENB=TH
EE - ERZWIRERRZ
MBRBERE AEBER
NEFEED2mRE:.

Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at 30
June 2020 (2019: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000 (2019:
HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and repayable
by 15 annual instalments commencing on 1 October
2001. The remaining balance of HK$3,621,000 (2019:
HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable by
13 annual instalments commencing on 15 March 2003. In
view of default in repayment of the promissory notes, a full
impairment was made in prior years.

As at 30 June 2019, the balance of shareholder’s loan of
HK$700,000 advanced to an investee company which was
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on 30 June 2019.
In view of poor financial performance of the investee
company, a full impairment was made in prior years.

N
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N
D

+

o ¥ % 49318,763,00078 7T (=
T — 11,4F : 301,662,000/ 7T ) &
TSR BIRE B A RET R
R+ A REE -

RZE_ZEFA=1+H &%
42 BE TH) )3 38 49318,763,000/8
7t ( ZZF— 14 : 301,662,00075
T ERFPYEDER ER
AEBEE 2 —RIBITEERE
ZER(HE=+T=) -

N BRBPYE 26. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
2020 2019
Fi#ET FiET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FYRESE Carrying amount at beginning of the year 301,662 -
U BE — M B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 49(b))

(B P+ (b)) - 295,680
NE Additions 13,355 4,861
BERFTERZHE Interest capitalised (note 7)

(FsE+) 3,746 1,121
FAREESRE Carrying amount at end of the year 318,763 301,662
RZZE_ZTFAA=TH EER As at 30 June 2020, property under development

amounting to approximately HK$318,763,000 (2019:
HK$301,662,000) was not expected to be realised within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting date.

At 30 June 2020, the Group’s property under development
with aggregate net carrying amounts of approximately
HK$318,763,000 (2019: HK$301,662,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
33).

—_+t- HFE& 27. INVENTORIES
2020 2019
FET FET
HKS$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 75,097 42,996
TR M Work in progress 10,337 3,479
2K G Finished goods 135,088 118,940
220,522 165,415

R-E_ZTFA=+H &F
BR T 485854,759,000/8 7T ( =&
—NEF \)ZFEEER ER
AEEERZ —RBRTTEERE
ZHER(HEFE=1+=)-

At 30 June 2020, certain inventories with aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$54,759,000 (2019: Nil) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 33).
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—+\ - ESEWHIE 28. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
Fi&ET FHET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
B 5 FE W18 Trade receivables 135,653 144,635
i FEUR FRIE 2 REREE  Less: provision for impairment of receivables (42,966) (29,754)
B SN GRIE — F 58 Trade receivables — net 92,687 114,881
ANEB —RIZBITEE LR The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
EZREEFE ZEE BEFLHERK according to industry practice together with consideration
BEHGBIIRTREPZZE of their creditability, repayment history and years of
B -BREEPHSERSZE establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
o NE .gﬁ;ﬂ;;&};w,ﬂlﬁ limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
MBS - @ HA SR IE = AR outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly

IR EEHERM - reviewed by senior management.
RER4 B ER - M 1R R An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
EMERAH B 2 S EW AR at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of

S : the sale, is as follows:

2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
0-308 0 - 30 days 16,928 23,612
31-60H 31 - 60 days 10,222 24,476
61-90H 61 — 90 days 3,562 25,771
90H A Over 90 days 61,975 41,022
92,687 114,881

No
N
ul
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—+)\ - EFEWRIE 28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

N
()}

(%)

BAAEEEERRNE SRR
FTIEFTELEERR 2 E—FF
IEE MM FES2.3 -

RZZE-_ZTFA=+H' &
T BRI 42%826,175,000/8 7T (=
T-NF B\ Z2ESEKRFE

BEER ERAREEERZ —
MIBITEERE 2 ER (M=
=F+=)-

Zth UAFERANE

HZEMEE

29.

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivable are set out in note 52.3.

At 30 June 2020, certain trade receivables with aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$26,175,000 (2019: Nil) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 33).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

BB EMRAES - LAT{E Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, at
market value 5,769 5,842
Hibith 5 ET{E%  LATH{E Listed bonds in elsewhere, at market value 7,432 7,582
13,201 13,424

ERERARE R EWEF 2R
BN2EZEREREFNRE
BB SR TS RE
EE-

IAFEFAB®ZE ﬂ%“;‘* S
Z? im%i@ﬂ%«% %@J
25| R iéﬁ’f@@jzfﬁﬂn

NAFEFABRZEHEEY
AT EESFABRIAZ EMLE
Bl A o

R ARERRFEREER - 8
DEB/ARFEFABEZ S/

Fair values of the listed equity securities and the listed bonds
have been determined by reference to their quoted market
prices at the reporting date in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating income in
profit or loss.

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held
for trading.
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=1+ ReERBREEH 30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REeRBRSFHEBBUATED

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

components:
2020 2019
F#ET FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
RHERITIE K Short-term bank deposits 402,888 523,170
He MIRITHER Cash and bank balances 65,633 98,210
468,521 621,380

RITHEMRER T RRITERF
RFEEFUEEHE - N T F
NA=Z+TH EHETERZE
HKENF—=2=@A (=ZZF—N
F:—E=@A)TE RFEF
K02%%E1.60% (ZZ—N4F:
2.10%%22.75% ) BREXF 8. o

ARAMEERA HRNRITHEE
AN ST E IR NS =
FoeBEIEEAER-

RZE-TFAA=+H A&
BAARBEZE S RIEIT
45549 58,771,0008 T (=
— hL% : 15,075,000 L) ' B
B IE T E AR B ARE R TS
FHEPBH ARBWIETEHK
]z B - B IR B K RE 2 SNE
ERIED R AEIE - EERMSES
BT ANEEE SRR
HEITINEZER 2 IRITHE AR
HBRBINE o

The bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. As at 30 June 2020, the short-term
bank deposits are made for varying periods between one to
three months (2019: one to three months) and earn interest
ranged from 0.2% to 1.60% (2019: 2.10% to 2.75%) per
annum.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of the cash at banks are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounting
to approximately HK$8,771,000 (2019: HK$15,075,000),
which were deposits with banks in Mainland China or held
in hand. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

N
~



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

N
(0]

=t ReERHEEEH 30.

(%)

RZBE-_ZTFNA=F+H &
T BR HE 42 %8400,000/8 70 (==
—NEF B zBReRkBEeEH
BEEH ERAEEERZ —
BIBITEERME 2R (HE
=+=)-

=t+—- BZEMANKIEA 31.

BIRNFRAZEEFRREARE
N[R89 5 2 MR 3R T SR
RBEAH AREREER
2 B 5 RMNRIBEREK D0

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(continued)

At 30 June 2020, certain cash and cash equivalents with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$400,000 (2019: Nil)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 33).

TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of
trade payables of the Group as at the reporting date, based
on the invoice dates, is as follows:

T
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
0-30H 0 — 30 days 24,050 21,156
31-60H 31 - 60 days 3,424 12,566
61-90H 61 — 90 days 8,074 5,736
90H A Over 90 days 38,462 24,601
74,010 64,059

BEHRNRBEBENLEE A
t BEFERAREZENFIE R
HEEEANFERS-

Trade payables are short term in nature and hence, the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade payables are
considered to approximate to their fair values.
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=+ EHAaE 32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2020 2019
Fi&ET FHETT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HEEMEAZAKNAME Contract liabilities arising from
sale of goods 475 1,227

FEANABSE I HANRIE

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

AR contract liabilities are as follows:
HEEMm Sale of goods

AN XA R BRI E R
mB Bz ETARNBANE
B HRLESETKIERBZ

As noted above, certain deposit the Group receives on sale
of goods remains as a contract liability until such time as the
work completed to date outweighs it.

SRR AL -
EHNEBEZEE Movement in contract liabilities
2020 2019
FET FEIT
HK$000 HK$°000
FUEEER Balance at beginning of the year 1,227 626
BHEBEEREYZ Decrease in contract liabilities as a result
GHABRFRNERE of recognising revenue during the
Wz s 2 year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (1,227) (626)
AHEBRBELES Increase in contract liabilities as a result
i 3% AN of billing in advance 475 1,227
FREER Balance at end of the year 475 1,227

No
N
O
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-

BTSRRI

=+= RITREMERK

RITRHEMERRASEZ AN

33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank and other loans

LU is as follows:
2020 2019
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
mENa & Current liabilities
R—ERIHEEZ Portion of bank and other loans due for
RITREMERELD repayment within one year
—BER - Guaranteed 15,000 15,000
—FERKBER — Secured and guaranteed 62,291 84,455
—EERREER — Unsecured and unguaranteed 4,405 =
81,696 99,455
R—FE14F|HEE{EEAF  Portion of bank and other loans due for
RESGERIEX Z repayment after one year
AT REME A5 which contain a repayable on demand
clause
— B AR N A R — Secured and guaranteed 669,967 644,120
751,663 743,575

&ﬁ1ﬁﬁ2%ﬁ%%%@T-

to repay as follows:

At 30 June 2020, the bank and other loans were scheduled

2020 2019
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITREMER: Bank and other loans:

AR —FAEE Repayable within one year 81,696 99,455
BRE_FEER Repayable in the second year 636,604 4,616

BARE=Z2FAF (B  Repayable in the third to fifth year,
BEMF)ER inclusive 33,363 639,504
751,663 743,575

A BIA B T 2 518l
ERARAEE . B AHEM
BMERERGX 2 E -

N
w
(e)

of any repayment on demand clause.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
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=+=- SRITREMBER 33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(&)

R-ZTE-_TEA=1TH A&
BB TEZRITEREER
%£719,289,0008 T (—FE— 11

At 30 June 2020, the Group’s bank loans facilities
denominated in HK$ of HK$719,289,000 (2019:
HK$743,575,000) were secured/guaranteed by the

F :743,575,0007% 7T ) R 5138 followings:
B IR HER
a) AN = R E E & a) legal charges over the Group's investment

1,564,100,000 %
T (ZF —Ah &
1,511,200,000% 7T ) 2

properties with carrying values of approximately
HK$1,564,100,000 (2019: HK$1,511,200,000) (note
17),

KEWME(ME+-E)2
EERE

b) RNEEKR®EFED b) legal charges over the Group’s property, plant
7,088,000 L (=& and equipment (note 14) with net carrying
— L5 : 9,784,000/ 7T ) values of approximately HK$7,088,000 (2019:
2 BE Kk (K HK$9,784,000);
FH) 2 EERR

0 PN kR E B % 9) legal charges over the Group's right-of-use assets
2,516,000 L (==& (note 16) (2019: land use rights (note 15)) with
— L5 1 1,233,0005 7T carrying values of approximately HK$2,516,000
Z TR R E) 2 R (2019: land use rights of HK$1,233,000);
BE(ME+-) (=22
— L i fsE A (FT
FTH) ) ZEERRL

d) AN S Bk E E A d) legal charges over the Group's property under

318,763,000 L (==
— L% 301,662,000/
TL) 2R Y (M
TR EERR

development with carrying values of approximately
HK$318,763,000 (2019: HK$301,662,000) (note
26);

N
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=+=- {RITREMGER 33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

N
N

(&)

e) KX AN B F v 2 e) corporate guarantees of HK$1,405,752,000 (2019:
1,405,752,000% HK$1,287,988,000) executed by the Company; and
T(=F— AT
1,287,988,0005% 7T ) A
AER &

f) RATETRERBAF f) ordinary shares of certain indirectly owned

ZEBB -

R-ZE-_TFEA=F+H K
SENETAEZRTERE
B @& 3,609,000%E T (HER

subsidiaries of the Company.

At 30 June 2020, the Group's bank loan facility
denominated in US$ of US$3,609,000 (equivalent to
HK$27,969,000) (2019: Nil) was secured/guaranteed by the

27,969,000 7m) (=& — N followings:

FE)BTIIRE EER B

xR

a) AN EEKR®EFED a) legal charges over the Group's property, plant and

1,191,000 T (=&
—NFE)ZWE R
B REE (ME+m) e
JEEHRED |

b) 8,222,000 L (=&
—NF E)CEREE
(MEE+ A1) ~ 54,759,000
BLT(ZE—NLF &)
2EE(MaE=++)"
26,175,000/ T (= =
—NWE:E)ZES5EK
RIAE(ME=+/ORKE
400,000 7T (Z & — 11
FEIZ2HESRASE
BH(fE=1) &

equipment (note 14) with net carrying values of
approximately HK$1,191,000 (2019: Nil);

Intangible assets of HK$8,222,000 (note 19) (2019:
Nil), inventories of HK$54,759,000 (note 27) (2019:
Nil), trade receivables of HK$26,175,000 (note
28) (2019: Nil) and cash and cash equivalents of
HK$400,000 (note 30) (2019: Nil); and
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=+=- SRITREMBER 33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(&)

o) RAFERIL 7 46,502,400
BT (ZE—NF: &)
NAEER -

R—_ZE-_ZFEA=+H"
27,969,000/ L 2 HRITIEE 2 &
TR M AEN  EBEN G
ARAR—MEHNBRARZE T
RAZHE-RZE_FE,XA
=+ A REELRE TR REL
HEEH AL AL N ARIGIER
TZE %o

RNEB BT EZRITRE
ft B 3%719,289,000& 7T (=&
— JL% : 743,575,000/ 7T) &
NETHBEZRTIREME
K32,374,0008 tEBE (=&
—NEF B 2B FERENTF
1.00%%3.14% (=& — JLF :
2.2%%4.63%) °

Q) corporate guarantees of HK$46,502,400 (2019: Nil)
executed by the Company.

As at 30 June 2020, certain covenants of a bank borrowing
of HK$27,969,000 were not met, which primarily related to
a requirement to maintain certain financial covenants of a
subsidiary of the Company. No waiver has been obtained by
the Group from the bank as at 30 June 2020 and up to the
approval date of the consolidated financial statements.

The bank and other loans of the Group denominated in HK$
of HK$719,289,000 (2019: HK$743,575,000) and US$ in
the equivalent amount of HK$32,374,000 (2019: Nil) have
floating interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 3.14% (2019:
2.2% to 4.63%) per annum.

N
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=+ MEEERE 34. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES
AEBRHEFRREEBHENS The Group leases motor vehicles for its normal operating
H-R—E—NAFA~A=18" business. As at 30 June 2019, the total future minimum
BEME N2 RRFEAE K lease payments under finance leases and their present values
BN EBENT were as follows:
2019
=REE xEHEE
Rz 3RE NE/EEEE
Present value
of the Tota
minimum lease  minimum lease
payments payments
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
—5FRA Within one year 35 36
—FIRERFA After one year but within two years - -
35 36
B AR RF B S A EE Less: Total future interest expenses = (1)
MEAERE Present value of lease obligations 35 35
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=+#H- #HEAE 35. LEASE LIABILITIES

REBRELETE 2 AR The Group leases various offices and plants in the
HEZREBRAZREHE -HES jurisdictions from which it operates. Rental contracts are
A —Me %A B E AR - HEE Ty typically made for fixed periods. Lease terms are negotiated
ERIER - B8 EZ 2 TRIER on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
R AG A o A0 & 107 3 N A e N A A terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
Rk WHEREMRENFAE any covenants, but leased assets may not be used a security

BEEA- for borrowing purposes.
REERREENKZBEEDN The present value of future lease payments of the Group's

N leases are analysed as:

2020
F#ET
HK$'000
M E Current 3,976
FERBD Non-current 15,397
19,373

No
(99)
ul
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N
(@)}

=+#H- - HEEE © 35. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Group's leases liabilities arising from

Zﬁﬂﬁ : financing activities:
2020
FET
HK$'000
R-ZZT—NAFE/NA=1+H Asat30June 2019 (as previously stated)

(ZARETZ ) -

ﬁ/ﬁfg% EREV RS Initial application of HKFRS 16 (note 2(a))

AR 1655 (MiTE=(@)) 1,680
R-ZZE—NFLH—H As at 1 July 2019 (as restated)

(#2E7)) 1,680
NE Addition 5,736
gy E=NE Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 49(a))

(K aEmE 4 1(a)) 14,899
FEFRXZ Interest expenses 778
HE = Lease payments (3,505)
e 5, 58 Exchange realignment (215)
WNA=+H As at 30 June 19,373
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=+x- #HEEE @ 35. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
AEEHE (TEREEHEER The future lease payments of the Group’s leases (excluding
KEERE) 2 RKHAEMNKZ short-term and low value leases) were schedule to repay as
EERBERAT: follows:
RIRFAE K A& ME
Minimum
lease
payments Principal Interest
&L FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WRZFEZZFHEA=+H Asat30June 2020
TER—F No later than one year 3,976 4,801 (825)
—EWF One year to two years 3,409 4,076 (667)
ERWEETNERAT Later than two years but not later
than five years 6,680 7,915 (1,235)
ERAF Later than five years 5,308 5,640 (332
19,373 22,432 (3,059)

R-B—h%5tHA—H As at 1 July 2019

NER—F No later than one year 958 1,021 (63)
—EMF One year to two years 683 696 (13)
ERWEENERAT Later than two years but not later
than five years 39 40 (1)
1,680 1,757 (77)
RZZBEZEFNA=tHZEA The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
MR R ER . HEBEME or implicit interest rate applied to lease liabilities recognised
FR 2 AL EEE T in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
RREEHER48% ° June 2020 is 4.8%.

No
w
~
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N
(0]

=+ BIEEHER
IR

ENRBSELR 28 MEE
TR

=+t EBAREBELE

36. DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and has no
fixed term of repayment.

37. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

=k
IR
2020 2019
Fi#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREBERE Non-current liabilities
JE{STEAEE A B IA (FisE) Due to related companies (note) 30,550 31,669

Wyt -

R-ZB-ZTFEA=1A8 B
A A FIE2,577,0008 T (=2 — A
:2,673,0008 ) REERR R
BoEREMENTIERKEEL
BRAR (B BRETREEE
B A8 )FIA1,645,00087C (==
— L5 1,706,000/ L) R =Z =
FRAAZ+ANA(ZE—NF: =T
——FRA=+B)FHEE &
HEMNEHESHRAR (RELTA
HFrZEE A B)KIE548,0007 T
(ZZ— N4 :569,000 L) R_F
——FtA-+=-H(ZE—h=F:
T —F+tA=+=H)IHESR
MEMIMBEEREHEZRRES
R AR (BPRIBLH#ER ) 5/IE384,000
BT (ZZF — N4 : 398,000/ 7T ) i
ZE_FWOA+—H(ZZE—AN
F:ZE_—FMWA=+—H)FH

Bi&-

Note:

As at 30 June 2020, the amounts due to related companies of
HK$2,577,000 (2019: HK$2,673,000) were unsecured and interest-
free, of which an amount due to B/ TTEHFEEZAFRA A
(“f8#:"), which Dr. Chan was a key management personnel, of
HK$1,645,000 (2019: HK$1,706,000) was due for repayment on
26 May 2024 (2019: 26 May 2021), an amount due to &M Z A
B 5 AH /R A 8], which Dr. Chan was a key management personnel,
of HK$548,000 (2019: HK$569,000) was due for repayment on
22 July 2021 (2019: 22 July 2021), and an amount due to T [9)5
E=EREMEZREAFRR AR, which was owned by Dr. Chan, of
HK$384,000 (2019: HK$398,000) was due for repayment on 21
April 2022 (2019: 21 April 2022).
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year ended 30 June 2020
ToTFERA=THIEFE

=+t BAREBEAF

;E #)
Kiat: ()

R-ZE—N\E+=-A—8 EMNEHR
IR &5 A R#27,250,0007T (18
% #30,635,0007%C) Z B BIHE &
BE_T_TH+—A=TH- LR
B EBENR  UBREE=Z—AN
FRNA=THIEFEEBERERR
#2,137,000/ 7L o R =T — NLFE R
A=+08 ENERZEZEOSE
28,996,000/ 7T /3 {5 A 45 & I &
A75%E - REEIR - R E KRR
T-TE+—A=1+RHIIHES-

R-Z—hE+=-A—8 EMNER
IR &5 A R#27,250,0007T (18
£ #30,327,0007%C) Z B BIHE &
BE-T-—F+—HA=+H-I®E
BREBEENR  UBREE=Z =
FRNA=THIEFEEBERERR
71,318,000 T - R =TT F
A=+H8 ENERZEZEOSE
27,973,0007% 7T 75 {5 A h 4% 6 I &
A75%E - REEIF - R ERKZ
T-—F+—A=1+R3IHESE-

37.

DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continued)

Note: (continued)

On 1 December 2018, the maturity date of the principal
amount of amount due to /8% of RMB27,250,000 (equivalent
to HK$30,635,000) was renewed to 30 November 2020. This
constituted a debt modification resulting a gain of HK$2,137,000
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2019.
As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of amount due to 184
of HK$28,996,000 was calculated using a market interest rate of
4.75% per annum was unsecured, interest-free and due for the
repayment on 30 November 2020.

On 1 December 2019, the maturity date of the principal
amount of amount due to 8% of RMB27,250,000 (equivalent
to HK$30,327,000) was renewed to 30 November 2021. This
constitutes a debt modification resulting a gain of HK$1,318,000
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2020.
As at 30 June 2020, the carrying amount of amount due to 18
#h of HK$27,973,000 was calculated using a market interest rate
of 4.75% per annum is unsecured, interest-free and due for the
repayment on 30 November 2021.

N
O
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H

=+ Ezﬂ%ﬂ;’ii?&ﬁi

38. LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING

B SHAREHOLDER
2020 2019
FET FET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
R R R 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,388 4,549

R-ZE_TFEA=TH RiF
T8 —2 AR #4,000,0007T
(574,388,000 L) (=
—NF + AR #4,000,0007T (18
£ 104,549,000/ 70) ) 2 B 5K
ZERBERR 2B RN
Z=F+AZ+RHE(ZE—AN
FZE-TFFTA=+THA)
FIEAEE -

As at 30 June 2020, loan of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,388,000) (2019: RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,549,000)) is advanced from Dr. Chan and is
unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 25
October 2023 (2019: 25 October 2020).
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=+4 -

&R

@iﬁﬁlﬁ (BE) 39.

UTAREE AME R X B
EEBE (A%)/BE UK
REFERAEEE R

the current and prior years:

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised at the reporting date and the movements during

Y% BB R
W i
EREUAR
RREZ MEHIE PR
PEEAE mE B HEt
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and
equipment,
land use
rights, Accelerated
and mining tax Provision for
right depreciation  receivables Total
FET T8 &7 87T
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZZ-N\F Balance at
tA—Bz&EH 1 July 2018 138,761 (190) (5,509) 133,062
b N TR Exchange realignment (5,644) = = (5,644)
STAFNEAMKER  Credited to profit or loss
for the year (72) - - (72)
RZFE-1E Balance at
~NA=+HE 30 June 2019 and
—E-NF 1 July 2019
tA—HzZz&® 133,045 (190) (5,509) 127,346
GG Acquisition of subsidiaries
(HEEm+ 1) (note 49(a)) 424 - - 424
PE 5 Exchange realignment (4,718) - - (4,718)
SFAFREAMKEE  Charged to profit or loss
for the year 4,436 - - 4,436
R-B_FE Balance at
NA=t+Hz&R 30 June 2020 133,187 (190) (5,509) 127,488

()
=
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N
o

=t+h - EEHE (BE) 39.
ya-t-%

TIRBEZEHRET 2 EER
REMBIRRARIIR :

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

(continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

2020 2019

F#ET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

RIEFRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 133,250 133,108
RIEFIBE B Deferred tax assets (5,762) (5,762)
127,488 127,346

N E B ABHEBEBREBLY
258,623,000 L (=& —
£ :222,424,00058 70 ) ;2 E
BHEEARAREHEELEZSE
B2 RAZARRERT R F o
ER N AR BEHR KRR IE R @
A HEAZE RS ARIEE
B AT AR ZEEERER
BEHEEE RABARES
100,276,000 7 (=& — N1
F :86,601,000/8 70) R E 2
—E_RE(ZE-NF T
—HF) (BREZF)2TRAB
EAZIER - E fth R B) AL IEES 1R 7]
IR H A58 o

;u

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$258,623,000
(2019: HK$222,424,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$100,276,000 (2019: HK$86,601,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2025 (2019: 2024). Other
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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M+ B 40. SHARE CAPITAL
EETTBRANEARNZ ZEHIN The movements in the issued ordinary share capital during
e the year are as follows:
2020 2019
LEBREAE FE#ErT ERRHEA &7
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares HK$'000 shares HK$000
BETRHRE: Issued and fully paid:
REFTNRER At beginning and end of
the year 6,831,182,580 560,673 6,831,182,580 560,673
M+—- f#E-—FEER 41. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY
AT
AEE Group
REBAFERATFE 2 HFE The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
SHREEPNGEREZEDHK therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
27510 consolidated statement of changes in equity.
HAiFEEREHERIEB AR 258N Other reserve represents the difference between the
e 2 ST A 2 AR B A K S consideration paid for the additional interest in the
EmE BRE MR R R subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest's share of the
IEEFIERER 2 EERARM assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
BEZER- of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the

non-controlling interests.

R ETE R B & 2N 5 E — [EPfT Special reserve represents the difference between the
B A AE T RERWE R EE D consideration received for the disposal of certain Group's
EIEETIRRE BIFEHERE interest in a subsidiary and the non-controlling interest's
HEERBEME ZER- share of assets and liabilities at the date of the disposal of

the non-controlling interest.

[N)
J=
W
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Ara I ERAR L

H

m+— - EE-AEER M.

RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

Y, /N=INE (continued)
PIN/NE| Company
BRERE TUOREE HE R R H @t
Share Non- Capital
option distributable  contribution Retained
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FET FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
RZT—N\E Balance at 1 July 2018

+A—B &% 6,409 273,606 22,236 1,474,108 1,776,359
“T—\FERHKE 2018 final dividend (note 10)

() - - - (34,156) (34,156)
HBEEAZRS Transactions with owners = = = (34,156) (34,156)
FREF Profit for the year = = = 37,956 37,956
FRZENREE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 37,956 37,956
RZE-NEF Balance at 30 June 2019

~NAZTER and 1 July 2019

“T-NE

+A—B2z&H% 6,409 273,606 22,236 1,477,908 1,780,159
RARMDAER 2 Recognition of

wE (HEm+=) share-based

compensation (note 42) 200 - - - 200
“T-AFEREKRE 2019 final dividend (note 10)

() - - - (17,078) (17,078)
BEFAZRS Transactions with owners 200 - - (17,078) (16,878)
FRRF Profit for the year - - = 9,005 9,005
FRZANREE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 9,005 9,005
RZE_F% Balance at
ANAETRZES 30 June 2020 6,609 273,606 22,236 1,469,835 1,772,286

A DR FEFEIR R — LN E
AAaE) LB 2 mER&K2.50
EITTHIRE0.1078 TR E A 2 )%

B

Non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising

on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.
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HE—

ToTERA=HRLER

m+= - FERRERE

Apwz Bkt 8 ([&at
2R -_ZE-—ZFFLA+=H
BEARRNBIBCRILE - %5812 A
MR-

BRI NBEREEA A E
T%A:t%f E%HXEE”’/\WL, Eﬁzﬁl\\
Bt

(i) ANQE] - EATAIHEBAA]
7 ok = W ek
EE (EHmEEBITE
B) S&/ITHBABHE
Bk EE(BER
17 IEIT RB N IEBAT
ER)NER mEEY
A gia= AN e i S
RERELER (BES
ERE) i K

(i)  EAREES -

RBEEZVARUT Z2&EE
(AR RBMRERERLD BB
(BEREXER)EBRIMER
WERABWHE : RG)ERA
AR RERBREZO R HA
TEEXBEBIAERRER
P (B -

42,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten
years.

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person (“Eligible Persons”) to take up
the options to subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company;
any of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group; or

(ii) any investee.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the option.

[N]
ul
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m+= - EERR#ERE @ 42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

PN
fox)

AERALTHERBZHAME
AT EEERANERTNERE
H) o BB LB - E R A FER AR
REIZMBTEREEHRE-
RIR LA 8% 2 2 2pRE AR A
BITEMBEITZRMBE &1
TMSHRBOREMBEBEAREE
BITID 2 10% (iR F R
B B3 TIRAN 230% ° BRIEIER
RERRARREARE LitE &
AIREA1I2EASE AR TS
Z2HEZERE (BEETE
R ARITEE 2 BEAR#E ) 1T (R 1M
EERETFEITZARRRMDE
HNEHBBARRFERFEEITR
RZ1% o

BREMRERESTENRAE
DEERIER NG S ARA - 1%
HRTAFFRELHBHRSG - 7T
TMEEBE ZX AR +F -

RZEZZEFA-+=ZH &K
ARREZTERE TAERA
4% 112,000,000/ B A% 4 - 17
18 A F0.052/8 T - B %
i B HA R0 2 B (0 Ue T (B A0.057%8
T5 0

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (i) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date.

On 22 June 2020, the Company granted 12,000,000
options to certain of the Eligible Persons, with exercise price
of HK$0.052 per share under the Scheme. The closing share
price immediately preceding the date of grant was HK$0.05.
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m+= - EBIR#EFE @ 42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
REBEZEZFR_F—NF Details of the outstanding share options under the Scheme
NA=ZTHLFE %l TH held by the directors of the Company during the years
RARESHAE Z MARITEBRK ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
BN
EhEgR
Number of share options
ARARE BB frEs SRR REW  ERRE  EnfE REX

Exercise Atthe Granted  Exercised At the
price  beginning during during end of

Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period pershare  of the year the year the year the year
-7
HKS

2020

SH Z5-MERATNA Z5-PESATARE 0138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZE-RERATAR

Chan Wai Kel, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024

kR ZE-WERATIA ZE-RESATARE 0138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZZ-RERATAR

Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024

B2 “I-PELA-TRER Z3-BELA-tRAZ 0421 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
12 o o 1

Wong Edward Gwon-hing 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024

% i Z3-EtAtH Z5-REtAtRE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZE-RELARA

Chan Wai Ke, Vick 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025

RE1 Z5-RELAtH “E-RELAtREE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
“ECREEANA

Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7 Juy 2015 71uly 2015 o6 July 2005

g% ZE-1%tAtA ZE-nEtAtRE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
“ECRELASA

Yam Tat Wing 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 t0 6 July 2025

N
i}
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

ERESR
Number of share options
ARARS R A T8 BRTER RER ERRY  ERAE REF
Exercise At the Granted ~ Exercised At the
price beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period pershare  of the year the year the year the year
T
HKS
AR “R-TFtLALH “E-1FtAtRE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZECRELARA
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 7 July 2015 7 July 201510 6 July 2025
REM “E-Et-A=H “E-RET-AZBE 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZRIRET-AZR
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
i R F1T-A=H “E-RFT-AzRE 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10000000
ZERNET-ACH
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
R “E-RE+-A=H “B-RET-AZBE 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZEIRET-AZA
Yam Tat Wing 3 Noverber 2016 3 Novernber 2016 to 2 November 2026
At “E-Et-A=H “E-RET-AZBE 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZRIRET-AZR
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 3 November 2016 3 Novernber 2016 to 2 Noverber 2026
EihEE “RCREAACTIR CRCEERACTIEE 0,052 - 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
Z3=RERAZT-A
Other employees 22 June 2020 22 June 2020 to 21 June 2030
110,000,000 12,000,000 - 122,000,000
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m+= - EBIR#EFE @ 42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
ElEH
Number of share options
RRALS REAH i BRE RER ERRE ERGE S
Exercise Atthe Granted Exercised Atthe
pice  beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period pershare  of the year the year the year the year
AT
43
2019
REL Z5-MERATIA “E-RERATARE 0138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZZ-RERATAR
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
R Z5-MERATIA ZE-PESATARE 0138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
“E-RERATAR
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
BRI ZS-MELAZTRA ZE-MECAZTRAE 0121 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
12 o o 1
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 0 24 July 2024
REL it adiNd: Z3-REtAtRE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
“ECRELAAA
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 10 6 July 2025
R Z3-nEtAtH ZE-nELALRE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
2 iy
Chan Wi Lap, Victor 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
frgs ZT-REtAtA Z5-hErAtRE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
“ECRFLASH
Yam Tat Wing 7 July 2015 7July 2015 10 6 July 2025
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

EhiEgE
Nurnber of share options
HRAIA RiiAE e BhRAEE RER ERRE EAAE RER
Exercise Atthe Granted Exercised Atthe
pice  beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period pershare— of the year the year the year the year
AT
S
BER ZE-n5tAtA ZE-nEtAtRE 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
“E-RELANA
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 7 July 2015 7 July 201510 6 July 2025
53 25 7E+-A=H 5 E1t-AZHE 049 10,000,000 = - 10,000,000
Z82E+-AZA
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
RET 8- E+-A=H ZE-FT-A=HE 0.149 10,000,000 - - 10000000
B Sy
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
% ZE-E1-A=H 255 1-AZRZ 0149 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Z8IET-AZR
Yam Tat Wing 3 Noverber 2016 3 Novernber 2016 to 2 November 2026
BER 25 Et-A=H 5 E1t-AZHE 0149 10,000,000 = - 10,000,000
Z82E+-AZA
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 3 November 2016 3 Novernber 2016 to 2 Noverber 2026
110,000,000 - - 110,000,000

18 AR A TS0 B AR 2 I S8 1T 150
BAR167ET(ZTE—NF:
0.17977T) = AR1T RS ARHE
Z I TR E K F EIR) A6
F(ZE—NF:6%5F) -

Weighted average exercise price of outstanding share
options is HK$0.167 (2019: HK$0.179) and the weighted
average remaining contractual life of outstanding share

options is approximately 6 years (2019: 6 years).
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TERAE BBEIFEEGERM
MEATREMBRARETR
B BUAFEREBEE_T_FTF
NAZTBILFERE 2 BE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueq)

The following table lists the key inputs to the Binomial
Option Pricing model, which is valued by LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited, an independent professional valuer, used
for calculating the fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 30 June 2020.

ZANFE

2020
i A A Date of grant —E-TE
NAZ+Z=H
22 June 2020
I (B Share price 0.05/8 7T
HK$0.05
1I{EE Exercise price 0.052/8 ¢
HK$0.052
TEHAR I8 (FisE@Q)) Expected volatility (note (a)) 62%
BERRRETE HA SR B (Ffi 75 (b)) Expected life of the share options (note (b)) 1045
10 years
4 [ B A1) =& (P aE(0) Risk-free rate (note (c)) 0.68%
TEHANG B URES = (Ffi7E(d)) Expected dividend yield (note (d)) 3.95%

Kt - Notes:
(@) TEER IR AR EERE A (a) Expected volatility: being the approximate historical

HREE10FE AR E I
B2 BLAIE LRI

(b) BRERMEH: SIEEY
7 {5 ) 8 [ b =t 2 BB A e
ERFEH-

© ERRAN R BEBINEE
BEHF O B -

(d) RHR B E R RN EE
B B HiA 2 MEFERE

Wz o

volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in
the past 10 years immediate before the date of grant.

(b) Expected life of the share options: being the effective life of
the share options estimated from the expected exercising
time frame.

(© Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

(d) Expected dividend yield: being the average of 2 years
dividend yield immediate before the date of grant.

N
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m+= - EBIR#ERE @ 42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
12,000,000 BB AR ER X B The 12,000,000 share options vested immediately on the
BiE A RNES 55 88 - AR JE 2 AR grant date and the respective share-based compensation
10 A ELHE 2 4 8200,000/% 7T 1Y of HK$200,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the
HEZT-ZTFA=THIHF year ended 30 June 2020. Such amount of share-based
EEBEEER A HEEITRIRE compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
Z ARy BERE 2 FHERZ S/ share option had been recognised in profit or loss and the
EREEER  MEMEESED corresponding amount of which had been credited to the
S ABBRRERE - AR LtIE B share option reserve. No liabilities were recognised as these
R A E AR () AEE 2 are equity settled share-based payment transactions.

AR5 WA BHEREE -
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M+= - KNG ZBH% 43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR & OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
HiiF F#E T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
RITB AR 2 = Interests in subsidiaries 1,228,334 1,199,964
REBEE Current assets
BNFE ZER Prepayments, deposits and other
H i e W OE receivables 1,739 5,485
e Bt 8 A Rl A Due from subsidiaries 1,401,768 1,290,215
e kBReEH Cash and cash equivalents 437 136,886
1,403,944 1,432,586
REBER Current liabilities
Hip R FRIERESTEA  Other payables and accruals (1,144) (7,523)
ANLNENGE S Due to subsidiaries (297,850) (283,870)
IR Provision for tax (325) (325)
(299,319) (291,718)
REEEZE Net current assets 1,104,625 1,140,868
EEFE Net assets 2,332,959 2,340,832
B EQUITY
f% Share capital 40 560,673 560,673
f#E Reserves 41 1,772,286 1,780,159
HE A% Total equity 2,332,959 2,340,832
RESES On behalf of the Directors
B {2 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
BEZ Director
BREEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
BEZ Director

N
ul
W
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44, SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2020

N
N

MEBARZFBNT: are as follows:
ML/ EMZEM,/
R AMREERE ERORARE FAAEEEZANM  IEXRH
Place of Particulars of paid-
incorporation/ up registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
H# R
Direct Indirect
Brangredi Limited BE TERIET - 100 REEHES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$ 1 Jewellery trading
NEAR AT i LRARIET - 100 WF*RE
Capital Luck Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$ 1 Property investment
BRARAF i LRARIET - 100 WF*RE
Charm Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
CJ. (UK) Limited G 1,000 S (81385 2 - 100 AEEMHRE
LAk
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery wholesaling
GBP1 each
ENERERAT] &R EERI00BT - 100 #RE5
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 Diamond trading
Continental Investment Company B E1BA%100,0008 T 100 - REER
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$100,000
ENAEEHHAR LA &R E381R10,000,000% T 100 - REEMNRERNE
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Jewellery manufacturing
HK$10,000,000 and wholesaling
EMBERRAR B LRaRET - 100 WF*RE
Continental Property Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$2 Property investment
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44. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AMAL/ EHERM/
A AMREEHE ERORARE FAAEGEZANM  IEEH
Place of Particulars of paid-
incorporation/ up registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
E# k3
Direct Indirect
Continental Universe Limited RBRAHE WREHRAEIET EBR 100 - REER
British Virgin 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Islands US$1 each
DCGS Management Service Limited i E47%10,000,000% 7T - 100 REER/REEE
oS
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Investment holding/
HK$10,000,000 providing
management services
RAZRERAT i LRRIET - 100 MERE
Daily Famous Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
EEREARAA BB 115000007 7T 100 - REER
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$500,000
EEERAA A LaRIET = 100 #ERE
Diamond Bright Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Equal Glory Limited ABRAES 1ORERARIET LR - 0 RELR/MELE
British Virgin 10 ordinary shares of Investment holding/
Islands US$1 each Property development
ERERERAT i LRRIET - 100 MERE
Fortune Success International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Golden Creation Jewellery Limited B EA1R1,000,0055 T - 100 HEEHES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Jewellery trading
HK$1,000,005
BR(PE)ERRA i LRRIET - 100 MERE
Huge Sky (China) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment

N
ul
ul
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O+ - MBAR () 44. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
AL/ ERER/
%H AMREERE ERORARE FAAEGEZRN  IEXRH
Place of Particulars of paid-
incorporation/ up registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
E# E3
Direct Indirect
HEBRAH B LRRIET - 100 #ERE
Keen Mind Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
BEERARAR B LRRIET - 100 #ERE
Lucky Key International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Master Gold Development Ltd. RERAEE REEETZLAR - 100 RAER
British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
Islands
B2 (F8)ARAA B LRRIET - 100 #ERE
Max Creation (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Novel EHEARE 1,000 FAREE0.01E T2 - 85 HEAHRERHE
bl
United States of 1,000 shares of US$0.01 each Jewellery manufacturing
America and selling of jewellery
Ontrack Ventures Limited RERAEE 100 GRAEEIZTL - 5 RAER
ERR
British Virgin 100 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Islands US$1 each
GEAREERAT B LRRIET - 5 WERE
Pacific Gate Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Patford Company Limited &b EAIR10,00057T = 100 WERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
Realford Company Limited &b EAIR10,00057T = 100 WERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
EREFARAT &R L R10,000% T - N YEER
Rich Dragon Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property development
RRARERAT B LRRIET - 100 REER
Top Grace International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Investment holding
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44. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AMAL/ EHERM/
A AMREEHE ERORARE FAEEREENE  FEEE
Place of Particulars of paid-
incorporation/ up registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
E# k3
Direct Indirect
EEARERAT i LRRIET - 100 BmfmESs
Top Label International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Trading of food and
beverages
BRBRAT i LRRIET - 100 MERE
Wealthy Joy Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
B (F8) BRAA i LRRIET - 100 MERE
Well Power (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$ 1 Property investment
ERRABRAT i LRRIET - N NEEE
Well Century Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property development
AE\hBXARAT PEAR B &R B A21,000000% T - 100 FRROFRERR
Mainland China Paid up capital of Mining and exploration of
US$21,000,000 mineral reserves
IFmEVREERAR" PEARE ERRRAARY - 100 REEHTE
18,605,0407C
Mainland China Paid up capital of Jewellery retailing
RMB18,605,040
BRKE (IP) BRARY PEAR B 8 435,000,000/ T - 100 REEHHE
Mainland China Paid up capital of Jewellery manufacturing
HK$35,000,000
G R B AREE M 2 S B A& t Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the

e

" BREERR-A
NEE-

* FMERLERERE
BHRERARHIE

VBRI

o

fos =

(S

Hp 8 AR B - E Ik
B ERRERZIBAR
FEEREEAEEFEE

HEX2.4% o

Mainland China.

Limited liability company — joint venture between domestic

investors and Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau investors.

* Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
The aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not audited
by BDO amounted to approximately 2.4% of the Group’s
total net assets.

N
ul
~
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EER% ERASIRRE ZH
BAREEZEFAEGE AKX
AEBEEFEZEBAGD &
ERA RHUEMMEB AR ZF
FEEHRRANR TR

RIB-EFR T NF A
=+8 - KBRA B EETEMA
B ES

FFEHIER

ARG ETS% (ZE—NF:

75% ) # 7 2 M1 8 A A Ontrack
Ventures Limited525% < & X
FEEHER  EHASEMNS B
BR-FTEEMASENIERES
100% 7 %5 2 M 8 1A 7] 2 FF 12
BHWRBTERKN-

44,

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, none of the subsidiaries had
issued any debt securities.

Non-controlling interests

Ontrack Ventures Limited, a 75% (2019: 75%) owned
subsidiary of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests of 25% which is material to the Group. The
non-controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that are
not 100% owned by the Group are considered to be
immaterial.
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Summarised financial information in relation to Ontrack
Ventures limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Pacific
Gate Investment Limited, before intra-group elimination, is

BRE2HNWT

presented below:

2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEANAZTRLEFE For the year ended 30 June
& Revenue 2 3
FR (E18), EF (Loss)/Profit for the year (675) 23,317
FRNEHE Y=L Total comprehensive income for the year (675) 23,317
DT IEESIERZ (Loss)/Profit allocated to non-controlling
(E518) 5 F interests (169) 4,933
HEANAZTHILFE For the year ended 30 June
LEEEEE ZIReME  Cash flows generated from operating
activities 17,722 1,207
WEFREMAZIRELME Cash flows used in investing activities (35,092) (36,365)
BMEEEEAZHEME  Cash flows generated from financing
activities 14,946 37,948
B/ ORM),/RASEE  Net cash (outflow)inflow (2,424) 2,790
RANA=+AR At 30 June
FERBEE Non-current assets 1,389,000 1,330,000
mBNEE Current assets 3,780 6,204
U JR=Ni Current liabilities (870,659) (486,280)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (72,388) (72,388)
FEE Net assets 449,733 777,536
2T fl R Accumulated non-controlling interests 194,215 194,384

N
ul
O
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45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At reporting date, the Group had outstanding capital

ARAEGEWT ¢ commitments as follows:
2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRI 4B R B - Contracted but not provided for:
"EMHE Investment properties 318,551 23,402

m+73 - HERHE

(a)

EREHEA

N_ZE_ZFTF A=+
B AEEREHEELH
HEEFR—BY % (M
TH) KEMKRZES
R=F REHETERE
SAREE - AKEHRIE

46. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

As at 30 June 2020, the Group leases one of its
properties (note 17) under lease arrangements, with
lease negotiated for a term of three years. None of
the leases include contingent rentals. The Group
had total future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable leases with its tenants falling due as

EARE P RT S 2 TRl EEE AR follows:
B2 RKRREESRUHK
THiagR - F AR
2020 2019
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
(&)
(Represented)
—FR Within one year 4,999 4,229
—FREMFA After one year but within two years 2,227 2,272
MERB=FA After two year but within
three years 678 569
7,904 7,070
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(b)

EREEA

R-ZFB-—NFERNA=T
B AEERELEHE
ZHERETEE B
EMEREIFES -HE
(BRIANED)REE
BERF2EEBKTE
BEBANF—EREN
FoWAEERIE A
AEEEEAREEIME
BEZ BREITHERE
31 73 R K

R=F-NENA=T
B AEBAERE AT
HEEHE 2 KRR
SRt ERR  BIBB RN
T

46. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee

As at 30 June 2019, the Group leased certain
shops, office properties and staff quarters under
operating lease arrangements. Leases (including
contingent rental) were negotiated at fixed rate or
with reference to level of business and terms ranging
from one to two years, with an option to renew the
leases and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective landlords.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling were due as follows:

2019

TFBT

HK$000

—F A Within one year 2,731
FEFRF In the second to fifth year, inclusive

(REEREME) 846

3,577

N
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BB 32 5

BRAER A B SR E b BB D PR
BEN AEERFARAEFILT
5l BARsE 5 XX 5 o

(a)

RBE_ZE_FF A
=+HIEFE AEEE
—HHFELTE2ERE 2
B AR EEEERN B
f 1,321,000 T (=
= — A% : 1,387,000
TT) °

REBEEZZFT—NLF~A
=t+HLFE AEEH
BB ARIRBZER
Bt N R IERR A )
2 A B 5 % A&3,497,000
PETT ©

TEEEABHE

AARERAMRAS TR
BEABMERE TR

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group entered into the
following related party transactions.

(a) During the year ended 30 June 2020, imputed
interest expenses of HK$1,321,000 (2019:
HK$1,387,000) were incurred to a related company
of which is wholly-owned by Dr. Chan.

(b) During the year ended 30 June 2019, interest
expenses of HK$3,497,000 were paid/payable to
ultimate holding company in relation to loan from
ultimate holding company.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation and comprise

B : the following:
2020 2019
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$°000
RAESEN Short term employee benefits 10,911 11,970
BEER 12 12 7 Post-employment benefits 427 425
LARSAD B2 2 fE Share-based compensation 33 -
11,371 12,395
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(d)

BRI M+t @) (b)

AR &)

RZEBEZZEFA A=
B - e FE1% il 2 RRIE
FEE—EEN—HBER
B B/ et RERE
SGAERE 2 R A EZ
FXIA5,200,000/% JT ©

RoE—AFRA=+
B - HA R HOR R A
#F o B B
% X B X IE2,564,00078
7T RIER- 58 RA
REREH -

REBEE=-T—HNFXA
E-i—EIJJ:iE'H&E%—F'aEJ
W%’D\ET (MFsEm+ AL
b)) - HE—RHKBA A
Z?ET %U%ﬁn(ﬁﬁuiﬁﬂ'
(b)) REERLIER A A
Heft Z%f?iﬁéﬁi$27$ﬂ
TEEREL#ET

K(d)Z=(f)

Z BB 5 X 5 IR E T AR RIS

TAZFRT R E 2 fE

-\

% 5e

EERLTS
#ﬁ&nﬂ¢z
EXHEXR

BHE=tt =t+/\-m++t
@) O RAEDOABEEIN R
AHRFE  NABRERRLD
AZEBAILANRREEEER
BN E A B Z A
EARRG RHHAH TEE
MERRXS RHAANFE-

47.

48.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(d) As at 30 June 2020, included in due to non-
controlling interests, an amount of HK$5,200,000,
was due to a related company which is owned by Dr.
Chan, Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley and Mr. Chan Wai
Lap, Victor.

(e) As at 30 June 2019, included in other payables and
accruals, an amount of HK$2,564,000 was due to
ultimate holding company, which was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

(f) During the year ended 30 June 2019, the acquisition
of a subsidiary (note 49(b)), the disposal of non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary (note 50(b)) and
the repayment of the loan from ultimate holding
company was undertaken with Dr. Chan, an
executive director of the Company.

The related party transaction in respect of notes 47(a),
(b), and (d) to (f) also constitute connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in notes 37, 38, 47(a), (b), and (d) to (f),
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered
into or subsisted during the financial year.

N
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—E-hLFRAN
CAEBEHRZEBI
=H AT — 1D B
FOANDBHERBER
ek 2 6 R K B i 32
B2k B & £ 2 5 Novell
KNP Enterprises, LLCZ
85% M AR  BREA
5,100,000 7T (485 R
#939,829,000/% 7T ) ° I
BB AR 9 5 2 IR AR R AR 1
2EEKE  WEEED
R=Z—hAFNALBR
’ijo

W m %

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 6 May 2019, the Group had entered into a stock
purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”) with
independent third parties relating to acquisition
of 85% of the equity interests in two US jewellery
companies, Novell and NP Enterprises, LLC at a
total consideration of US$5,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,829,000) in accordance with
the terms of the SP Agreement. Having satisfied all
the terms and condition of the SP Agreement, the
acquisition was completed on 7 August 2019.
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49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a) (continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was
recognised at the date of acquisition as follows:

NTE
Fair value
FAET
HK$'000
FrisiE 5 & = Net assets acquired
M- WE R &E Property, plant and equipment 1,436
FHREEE Right-of-use assets 14,899
B EE Intangible assets 8,292
FE Inventories 56,809
B 5 W GIA Trade receivables 18,351
FENRIE - Ze & Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
H W kIR 3,071
REMREEHE Cash and cash equivalents 23
HEMEMRIBLESER  Other payables and accruals (21,187)
HEBE Lease liabilities (14,899)
RIT M EMER Bank and other loans (29,071)
RIEFIAAE Deferred tax liabilities (424)
HEE Net assets 37,300
SN IS AN Goodwill (note 18) 8,124
FEPE SR Non-controlling interests (5,595)
REZAFE Fair value of consideration 39,829
BHEKERBARZ Net cash outflow in connection with the
IR B R acquisition of subsidiaries:
P g 2 3 K Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired
ReTRER (23)
BEfRE Consideration paid 39,829
39,806

N
(o))
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(a)

(%)

(%)

()

(iii)

B 5 & E eI
FIER W E A
Bz A¥EAE
18,351,000/8 7T °

8,124,000 Jt 2
EE (TAHFE)
B 15 BT UK B 2 15
el e Sl
BEE R E
ER KT 3% # &
ZEREKZE
e

5,595,000/% T
Z JF & &l
= E fh B
77 ZNovell NP
Enterprises LLC.R]
Rl F B E R U
BRHZATE
LEBIET = o

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

The fair value of trade and other receivables
as at acquisition date amounted to
HK$18,351,000.

The goodwill of HK$8,124,000, which is not
deductible for tax purposes, comprises the
value of the acquired management team
for its future market development from the
combination of the acquired business with
the existing operations of the Group.

The non-controlling interests of
HK$5,595,000 is measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s fair
value of Novell and NP Enterprises LLC. net
identifiable assets as at acquisition date.
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(a)

(&)
(%)

(iv)

B EHET
AR - 3% %5 W 1B
NABAEEE
EZTTEFERN
A=Z+H L&
Ez#E=E R
95,588,000/ 7T
U 25 28,281,000
ST E IR E R

fis] B ST =
T-NFtA—
HE4L - AIARSE
HEZZ_ZTF
NAZtTHLSF
EriRelaE Rk
E5 18 F SR E 2 Bl
/£430,429,00078
7T 19,969,000
B BEMEE
FHEMHRARZ -
I — & R B A
SETWEER
RZZE—hF+t
A—BEKZIB
Dl Nl &
BB TRER
TERI R 2R A% & 2
B2 EE

2,115,000/ T 2
WK AE
%88 WEFATTIR
BR-ZBERXD
ZHE—FFEH
RARRBEHAE
—E—NFRA
—t+tHZEH-

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a

(continued)

(iv)

Since the acquisition, these subsidiaries
contributed HK$95,588,000 to the Group's
revenue and net loss of HK$8,281,000 to the
Group's profit or loss for the year ended 30
June 2020.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July
2019, the consolidated revenue and net loss
of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2020 would have been HK$430,429,000
and HK$19,969,000 respectively. The
proforma financial information is for
illustrative purpose only and does not
necessarily reflect the Group's revenue and
operating results if the acquisition had been
completed 1 July 2019 and could not serve
as a basis for the forecast of future operation
result.

The acquisition-related costs of
HK$2,115,000 have been expensed and are
included in administrative expenses. Further
details of this transaction were set out in the
Company's circular dated 27 June 2019.

N
~
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RZZB-—N\F+A=Z+N
H - 7N & & BEFairy Tale
International Limited
(TFairy Tale ] &—RR
EEBEXRESFTMAL
ZBERAF] BYITES
RiET-2EHE  WAK
NaElZBEEANT)EIM—
e ([ZmaEl) - LA
W fEEqual Glory Limited
(TEqual Glory|) 90%E&
B 7T IR AR K Equal Glory
4 K Fairy TaleZ A &) [
B 290%  BREXNA
156,015,000/% 7T ° Equal
GloryR BfREEERRA
AIRLEEHEZEERRAA
ZERAR - EFXEEE
UREBEBRDESES
7~ 7TA 9RIASE © A% 1
JZIGEFRRGHREE
pi% - WEEHEE R _-Z
—NE=HRNBTK %
R o2 HE—FFHIBHNAR
ARIABR T —\F
T—AZt+hBZ@®H-

R (B 49156,015,000/8 7T
AR & B - AR EE
BUTRHEEBEHZE
% MR HE ARYERK
BEE- -FTREBEENRA
AEBEWTER—IHE
%o RIBR 5 E ARYIME
RAEBEEFERFEREA
BRERUEYE-

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)

On 29 October 2018, the Group entered into
an agreement (the “Agreement”) with Fairy Tale
International Limited (the “Fairy Tale”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") with limited liability which is wholly-owned
by Dr. Chan, an executive Director, and was a
connected person of the Company, to acquire 90%
of the issued share capital of Equal Glory Limited
("Equal Glory”) and 90% of the inter-company
loan owing by Equal Glory to the Fairy Tale at
an aggregation consideration of approximately
HK$156,015,000. Equal Glory was the holding
company of Rich Dragon Enterprises Limited and
Well Century Investments Limited which principal
assets are located at Nos. 7, 7A, 9 and 9A of
Cheung Wah Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Hong Kong.
Having satisfied all the terms and condition of the
Agreement, the Acquisition was completed on
6 March 2019. Further details of this transaction
were set out in the Company’s circulate dated 29
November 2018.

The consideration of approximately
HK$156,015,000 was satisfied by cash. This
transaction had been accounted for as an acquisition
of assets as the acquisition does not meet the
definition of a business combination. The assets
acquired and liabilities assumed do not constitute a
business. The transaction was accounted for as an
acquisition of properties in the ordinary course of the
Group's property development business.
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m+h - YEEMHIEB 2 E] 49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(%) (continued)

(b) (&) (b)  (continued)

WS B HIRE R 2 TS
ABAEERBEWT

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was
recognised at the date of acquisition as follows:

NTE
Fair value
FAET
HK$'000
FrliEFaE Net liabilities acquired
BRBPYE Property under development 295,680
TETFRIE Prepayments 28
HekReEH Cash and cash equivalents 1
HAafEMFRIB R ETEM  Other payables and accruals (4,359)
fEERE R Shareholders’ loan (216,710)
RITER Bank loan (118,000)
FEPE il M 2 Non-controlling interests 4,336
FRE Net liabilities (39,024)
ERJUEE —RIMEB A EZ Net cash outflow in connection with the
IR & FEE - acquisition of a subsidiary:
HeKIReERE Cash and cash equivalents (1
BEARE Consideration paid 156,015
156,014

N
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(b)

W B A B

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(&) (continued)
(&) (b)  (continued)
FET
HK$'000
REXMAR: Consolidation satisfied by:
LIRS ENZEBERE Purchase consideration settled in cash 156,015
BEIO%ERER Purchase of 90% of the shareholders’ loan (195,039)
FrEEFRECATE Fair value of net liabilities purchased 39,024

RZFE—N\FEA=-+
H AEEE—FZEE
ZHRININERESE
W (IZEH=E]) A
AEBERZEREZ
BREE+—RARZ
100% M A #E a1 - B
7%129,000,000% 7T (7]
THE) ZERAZE
EEERTHERER
B2 12188 o AR &
B2 ERE - WHEE
BERZ=ZZ—N\F1+A
T ZHEK-

On 20 July 2018, the Group had entered into 11
preliminary sale and purchase agreements (the
“Agreements”) with an independent third party
relating to acquisition of 100% equity interests of
eleven companies, which principal assets comprise
12 floors in a commercial building in Yuen Long at
a total consideration of HK$129,000,000, subject
to adjustments, in accordance with the terms of
the Agreements. Having satisfy all the terms and
conditions, the acquisition was completed on 22
October 2018.
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KA BE R B W
128,094,000/ T B R 58
R AR & B - AR ZE
BRI A& 56 0
2 EE MR H5HE ARSI
TEW R EE - FTEEEE
R PTAEE B TR —
HER - RER S E AR
HIER AR E IR E %
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U RE B HIRERR 2 P IES
ABEAEEREBEIT:

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(c) (continued)

The adjusted consideration of approximately
HK$128,094,000 was satisfied by cash on
completion. This transaction has been accounted for

as an acquisition of assets as the acquisition does

not meet the definition of a business combination.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed do not

constitute a business. The transaction was accounted

for as an acquisition of property in the ordinary

course of the Group's property investment business.

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was

recognised at the date of acquisition as follows:

NEE
Fair value
FET
HK$000
Pl B & = Net asset acquired
"EMHE Investment properties 129,000
TEMFIB R EMEUWFRIA  Prepayments and other receivables 181
H fib & 5 508 Other payables (1,087)
FEE Net assets 128,094
ERWENB AR 2 Net cash outflow in connection with the acquisition of
IR R - subsidiaries:
FT iR IR & & Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired
ReERER -
ERRE Consideration paid 128,094
128,094

N
~
—
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i+ HEHBAR
HERMBAR Z
TR

@ REE-_Z_ZF,A
=THLFE REEH
HRARRZEHBE R
AIAFEAMARA A
MBFER (EMN)BR
A7) 2 100%PE AN HE 25 Ko
AABEEREHE T — %
BUBE=ZH BREA
13,134,000/ T ° 1A 1 &

HE - FTHEEZFEEW

50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN INTERESTS IN
A SUBSIDIARY

(a) During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group
disposed of its 100% equity interests and inter-
company loan of Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting
Factory Limited and BEFSE# A (EM) GR A A,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, to an
independent third party, at a total consideration of
HK$13,134,000. The net liabilities being disposed of
at the date of disposal were as follows:

T
FAET
HKS$'000
&z /FatE: Net liabilities disposed of:
EREEE Right-of-use assets 216
HbfENFIB KL ETEA  Other payables and accruals (1,608)
ANEIEERK Inter-company loan (13,404)
FERE Net liabilities (14,796)
HERQREER Disposal of inter-company loan 13,404
B R E A 2 AR Cost incurred during the disposal 2,049
S B A Az Y Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 12,477
REXMAR: Consideration satisfied by:
Re Cash 13,134
HESFEMESZ Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
WEMAFEE
RERE Cash consideration 13,134
HEREE Z KA Cost incurred during the disposal (2,049)
FHLESEECRER Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
ReEmnAF8 the disposal 11,085
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50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN INTERESTS IN
A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(b)

RZZBE-N\FTHZt+I
B A& EHLuminous
Fortune Limited ([ E
1) (—HREBE
RS MK A E R
AAEl-BHARABMITE
ERARAE K REEA
TRIE L Bt
N BR8N 5 4 A B
Bl B#E N A
AEE ([HEFHE])
Ontrack Ventures Limited
REWE AR (HEAE
[Ontrack& B ) 225%
% 7S % 25 K Ontrack &
HEREXEEBOMA
ERREE 225%% 7
(FEER]) REAR
187,340,000/ 7T o P 3E
DEAE 0P =K
12 - HESFBEERZ
T-NF=ABTK-

A HEOntrackE B 2
25% M ANt 18 AN
1R HOntrackE B 2
PriliE  HEENAEE
B BRERANGE
ABR - IR B B B 3R
EHEBIFI0% HES
BREBAERRZS M
I & K E187,340,00075
JtEiOntrack% B 2 25%
BAESZARFEER
225%%4 #£189,443,000
BETMEZBZ =8
2,103,000/% 7T & 1A 28 5=
Bz (R E] NE
o

(b)

On 29 October 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with Luminous Fortune Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability, which is owned indirectly by Dr.
Chan, Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Wai
Lap, Victor, executive Directors of the Company and
connected persons of the Company, in relation to
the disposal of 25% of the equity interest in Ontrack
Ventures Limited and its subsidiary (together refer
as the “Ontrack Group”) and 25% of all the loan
and indebtedness owed by the Ontrack Group to
the Group (the “Sale Loan”) (the “Disposal”) at an
consideration of HK$187,340,000. Having satisfied
all the terms and condition of the Agreement, the
Disposal was completed on 6 March 2019.

Upon the disposal of 25% equity interests in
the Ontrack Group, the Group retains control of
the Ontrack Group which was be continued to
be consolidated into the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. According to HKFRS 10, this
was considered to be an equity transaction and
the difference between the cash consideration
of HK$187,340,000 and the 25% equity interest
of Ontrack Group and the 25% of the Sale
Loan of HK$189,443,000, which amounted to
HK$2,103,000, would be dealt in the “Special
Reserve” of the Group.

N
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50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/

DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN INTERESTS IN

A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(b) (continued)

Pursuant to the agreement, the Disposal

consideration was settled by cash after setting off

against the repayment of the Company’s loan from
ultimate holding company of HK$350,000,000 and
associated interest payables of HK$489,000 (the
“Company Loan”)(the “Set Off Arrangement”).

The analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the Disposal on 6 March

2019 was as follows:

FAET
HK$'000
REZFAN: Consideration satisfied by:
BEEELEST 2 Disposal consideration to be settled under
HERBERE the Set Off Arrangement 187,340
BEAAER Repayment of the Company Loan (350,489)
BRABHEZHE 2R e R Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
IR& FRE M FEE respect of the Set Off Arrangement (163,149)
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2+ HEWBAR 50. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
HERMBARZ DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN INTERESTS IN
HTHEZ @) A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
© REEZZ—ILE~H (© During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group

=tTHRLEFE - A&KH disposed of its 100% equity interests of 1EFMIR{RE}
BHERARAEEEZE # (JIPF9)BBR A Rland Wilber Corporate Services
o= NEIRER B LY ST 5 Limited, indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
(IM)BRRAARIE Company, to an independent third party at a total
MEEREBR AR Z consideration of HK$1,686,000. The net assets
100% A& A HE T — of the companies at the date of disposal were as
BB E=F HBREAR follows:

1,686,000/ 7T ° A H &
BEl ZSRARIZFEE

T
FAET
HK$'000
FItE 2 BE: Asset disposal of:
RERREEH Cash and cash equivalents 2
REE Net assets 2
HENBAR 2 WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1,684
REZMAR: Consideration satisfied by:
Re Cash 1,686
HEFBEMEELEZ Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
WEmAFEE -
HeRE Cash consideration 1,686
Frb&E 2B E MIES S5 Cash and cash equivalents disposal of @)
FHLESECRER Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
REeFEMAFE respect of the disposal 1,684

N
~J
ul



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE_Z_TFA=THILFE

N
()}

fit— MEEDELZ
& E R
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51. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash

AR flows from financing activities.
EfER BABRAF TR Eft&g BRRE [Ef
ARFE REEZER Hib &k EEFE REZER REAERE BEFE HEAE
Loan from
Due to ultimate Loan from Obligation Due to
related holding Bankand Amountsdueto  acontrolling under  non-controlling Lease
companies company other loans  joint ventures shareholder  finance leases interests liabilities
AL AT 7 AT AT AT AT FET
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$000
(Mi=1+t) (WE=t=)  (Wa=+=2)  (WEETA) (WE=tm)  (BE=tn) (MEETE)
(note 37) (note 33) (note 23) (note 38) (note 34) (note 36) (note 35)
RZF-NELA-H  At1luy2018 33793 350,000 611,000 - 478 162 - -
Reinesy Changes from cash flows:
MERTRE New bank borrowings - - 121,600 - - - - -
BRRAEE Repayment of bank borrowings - - (107,025) - - - - =
REREHEREL Repayment of capital element of
EATR obligation under finance leases - - - - - (127) - -
ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁiﬁ‘*ﬁéz Repayment of interest element of
iy obligation under finance leases - - - - - @ - -
HENBARNETER  Disposal of certain interests in a
(GESREE)) subsidiary (note 50(a)) = (350,489) = - = = = =
HERERERHMEE  Total changes from financing
cash flows - (350,489) 14,575 - - (131) - -
EREE Exchange adjustments (1,374) - - - (193) - - -
SER—FBBAFRE  Gain on debt modification on
BREEz R amount due to a related
company 2,137) - - - - - - -
WE-RHEAR Acquisition of a subsidiary
(HEmTA) (note 49(b)) - = 118,000 = = - 21,671 -
Hip#E: Other changes:
HERX Interest expenses 1,387 3497 19,466 - - 4 - -
ERHE Interest paid - (3,008) (19,466) - - - - -
ESHERX- Imputed interest expenses
E35E non-cash - - - - = = = =
ROl 1) Total other changes 1387 489 - - - 4 - -
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i+— BERIEEZ 51. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
BEHER @ ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (continued)

EfEE  mEERAT TR Eftag BRRE (3L
NAFE Rt ER bRt ERFE REZRR  HMREERE REFE BEER
Loan from
Due to ultimate Loan from Obligation Due to
related holding Bankand Amountsdueto  acontrolling under  non-controlling Lease
companies company other loans  joint ventures shareholder  finance leases interests liabilities
AT AT & AT A7 FET AT FET
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS000
(M#=tt) (WE=t=) (WE=1t=)  (WEETA) (WEEHm) (MEs+n)  (WE=1E)
(note 37) (note 33) (note 23) (note 38) (note 34) (note 36) (note 35)
RZF-AEABZ+A"  At30June 2019, as originally
iy stated 31,669 - 743,575 - 4549 35 21,671 -
NEEREAMBREER Initial application of HKFRS 16
£16% (= (a) (note 2 (a)) - - - - - (39) - 1,680
RIB-A%ELA—A'  At1July2019, as restated
L] 31,669 = 743,575 = 4,549 = 21,671 1,680
Benesy: Changes from cash flows:
FEHERDR Advance from non-controling
interests - - - - - - 7,669 -
RERRBH Advance from joint ventures - - - 6% - - - -
HERIEE New bank borrowings - - 250,100 - - = = =
BERARE Repayment of bank horrowings - - (270,521) - B - = =
EERERELASLE  Repayment of principal amount of
lease liabilities - - - - - - - 2,721
HERLHELHEE  Total changes from financing
cash flows - - (20,421) 696 - - 7,669 @2,727)
3% 4 Exchange adjustments (1122) - (562) - (161) - - (215)
HEN-FHERAR Gain on debt modification on
FEEHEE N amount due to a related
company (1,318 - - - = = _ _
WE-ARBAR Acquisition of a subsiciary
(MEmTAE) (note 49(a) - - 29,07 - - - - 14,899
gE: Other changes:
HMERE Addition of new lease - - - - - - - 5736
RS Interest expenses 1,321 - 2,59 - B = = 78
BfFlE Interest paid - - (2459) - = - = (778)
Kt H0eE Total other changes 1321 - - - - - - 5736
RZFZFEAASHA  At30June 2020 30,550 ° 751,663 69 4388 - 29,340 19373

N
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5+ BFERER 52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

N
(0]

B R BR

AEEZTEZESHTABRER
B EHRE  RABUR
B MEERERE-
B 7 [ WRIR - B b R U GROR -
RehkReFR BEHEARK
B HiEMREREER
RITREMER BRI
SRE HERE EBAEBEA
BIFE R R R 2 B K o
ZESRT A FERAERME
BE-EZEFTRMTAER R
@ RREZERRZBEREN T
N-EREEEEEMERZTRE
B - DARELR BE @ By 2 B Ut HETT
EEREE-

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, debt investments, long-term receivables,
amounts due (to)/from joint ventures, trade receivables,
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank and other loans, amount
due to non-controlling interests, lease liabilities, amounts
due to related companies and loan from a controlling
shareholder. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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E+= MBEREE 52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
BERBR @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
5211 SRIEERESREGEEH 52.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities
REPBRARAZS 2 The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
FHRBELSRATEHE statement of financial position relate to the
EREHAEER F2 following categories of financial assets and financial
BRI RE3. 1S ABR R S @t T liabilities. See note 3.15 for explanations about how
B 7R B AR 1R the category of financial instruments affects their
FTE o subsequent measurement.
2020 2019
F#ET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
EREBEE Non-current assets
AT EFAEMEE Financial assets at fair value
Wz @ mEE through other comprehensive
income 15,750 20,023
MENEE Current assets
IAAFERGTABZZ Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 13,201 13,424
R SHK AT EZ Financial assets at amortised costs:
TRIBE
— 2 5 rWGIA — Trade receivables 92,687 114,881
— H b fE W RIR — Other receivables 6,479 11,403
— W& & EKIE — Due from joint ventures - 54
—-HekReEH — Cash and cash equivalents 468,521 621,380
567,687 747,718
596,638 781,165

N
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B 75 B b 18 52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
HERBR @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
SREEREHRARSER 52.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
(&) liabilities (continued)
2020 2019
F#T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERE Financial liabilities
REARE Current liabilities
R AT E 2 Financial liabilities measured at
THAGE: amortised cost;
— & S EMNFIE — Trade payables (74,010) (64,059)
— E {th B~ B K B 5T & A — Other payables and accruals (35,566) (42,397)
—RITREMERK — Bank and other loans (751,663) (743,575)
—REHEAE — Obligation under finance leases = (35)
—HEA®E — Lease liabilities (3,976) =
—ERE&EENIA — Due to joint ventures (696) =
— B IR I e 2R SRR — Due to non-controlling interests (29,340) (21,671)
(895,251) (871,737)
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
REHEKAGTEZ Financial liabilities measured at
TRaE: amortised cost;
—HEEA®E — Lease liabilities (15,397) =
— P A A | 508 — Due to related companies (30,550) (31,669)
— R M 2 B — Loan from a controlling
shareholder (4,388) (4,549)
(50,335) (36,218)
(945,586) (907,955)
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.2 Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, UK,
US and the Mainland China with most of
the transactions denominated and settled
in HK$, United States dollars (“US$"),
British Pounds (“GBP"), Canadian Dollars
(“CAD") and RMB. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies
of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China
to which these transactions relate. The
Group's exposure to foreign currency
risk primarily arises from certain financial
instruments including financial asset at fair
value through other comprehensive income,
trade receivables, financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents and trade payables which are
denominated in US$, Euro, British Pounds
and CAD. During the years, the Group did
not have foreign currency hedging policy
but management continuously monitors the
foreign exchange exposure.

N
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

TERBEAR =TT
FERZE—NFA
A=tRHUAEES
B B A RITh B & A
SN EEEEZAE
BEXrZemiERSE

f&e

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table summarises the
Group’s major financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group
companies as at 30 June 2020 and 2019.

X FE 5w
Expressed in HK$'000
ET BT X i
uss Euro GBP CAD
RZFZFEAAZ1H At30June 2020
MATFEFALMER  Financial assets at fair value
B eMBE through other comprehensive
income - - - 1,143
B HEYGIE Trade receivables 59,773 = = 375
WA EFABRZ Financial asset at fair value
CREE through profit or loss 7432 = = =
ReRReED Cash and cash equivalents 351,889 535 5,462 2,509
BHENFE Trade payables (9.450) (1) - =
BERERER Overall net exposure 409,644 534 5,462 4,027
WZE-NE-A=+H At30)June 2019
MAFEFALMEA  Financial assets at fair value
Wz emaE through other comprehensive
income - - - 2,675
B SEWIE Trade receivables 100,235 = 14,198 =
NATEFABRZ Financial asset at fair value
CREE through profit or loss 7,582 - = =
BeRReER Cash and cash equivalents 218,880 1,554 15,079 2
BARMNFE Trade payables (42,180) (108) (5,094) =
BEEER Overall net exposure 284,517 1,446 24,183 2,697
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

his Ak (&) 52.2 Market risk (continued)
() SR B (&) () Foreign currency risk (continued)
R 3 g 88 T B As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does
88 - AR BTER =TT not expect any significant movements in
HETZEXRS g% the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
EFAERNEE - HR analysis in respect of the Group's financial
BEERA EHREAH assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
ETT B TT 2 TE R disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
B) K - AR BN ER [ A sensitivity analysis does not give additional
ETNFECERMEE value in view of insignificant movement in
LBERHEZBXE the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
DA AR AL SME date. The following table indicates the
B B RZER approximate change in the Group's loss for
RREDHT o TRERE the year and equity in response to reasonably
ERHE RS H possible changes in the foreign exchange
ARE BARRR I rates to which the Group has significant
B[ K 7 & 3 A A exposure at the reporting date.
) AEEZFANEE
Rz A pe IR 2 8
2020 2019
R ER
SHEER B8 Bi NBEX ikl 1
L%/ ®@y/  #W/ R/ Eh/ #Eh/
(%) (Em)  (EY) (TR GAd)  (RD)
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease)  Decrease/ (Decrease) Increase/
in foreign  (Increase) Increase/ inforeign  (Decrease)  Increase/
exchange inloss for (Decrease) exchange in profitfor  (Decrease)
rates  theyear in equity rates  theyear  inequity
FéT  FéT FEr  FET
HKS$000  HK'000 HK$000  HK$000
Eo Euro +5% 27 21 +5% 72 72
-5% (27) (27) -5% (72) (72)
RE GBP +5% P} m +5% 1,209 1,209
-5% (273) (273) -5% (1,209) (1,209)
i CAD +5% 144 201 +5% 1 135
-5% (144) (201) -5% (1) (135)

N
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.2 Market risk (continued)

()

(ir)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the reporting
dates and that all other variables remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

Price risk

Price risk related to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change
in market price (other than changes in
interest rate and foreign exchange rate).
The Group is exposed to price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities,
unlisted equity securities and listed bonds
which are classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value
through profit or loss. The board of directors
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk
and return profiles and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.2 Market risk (continued)

(i) B1E = (4&) (ii) Price risk (continued))
R=B-ZF A
=+A8 fWE®SLHA
10% (ZF—N&F:
10% ) M BT & H fh &
g~ Al

At 30 June 2020, if prices had increased by
10% (2019: 10%) and all other variables
were held constant:

& A A g A
1,342,000 7T

— AEECZFRNERE - the Group's loss for the year
#5984 471,320,000 would decrease by approximately
BT (T — AN HK$1,320,000 (2019: profit will

increase by HK$1,342,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in financial

FERHRARYF assets at fair value through profit or
Bzt ABRZZ & @t loss; and

BEELREHM
B R

AEBZ#EZE (R
BB i A Br A1) 75 38
1 #91,575,00058

the Group’s equity other than
retained profits would increase by
approximately HK$1,575,000 (2019:

T(ZF-NF: HK$2,002,000) as a result of the
2,002,000/ 7)) - changes in fair value of listed and
TR ET AR S unlisted equity investments included
B AR FEFTAE in the Group's financial assets at fair
fth 2 W a2 & Fh value through other comprehensive
BEZEWEIEL income.

MRAIRE 2 A F

BERRSEMEC

N
ul
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk (continued)

At 30 June 2020, if prices had decreased by
10% (2019: 10%) and all other variables
were held constant:

- the Group's loss for the year
would increase by approximately
HK$1,320,000 (2019: profit would
decrease by HK$1,342,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss; and

- the Group’s equity other than
retained profits would decrease by
approximately HK$1,575,000 (2019:
HK$2,002,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed and
unlisted equity investments included
in the Group's financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred
at the reporting dates and has been applied
to the Group's investment on that date.

The policies to manage price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank balances and bank and other
loans. Majority of the bank and other loans
are arranged at variable rates which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The interest rates and repayment terms of
the bank and other loans outstanding at
reporting dates are disclosed in note 33.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

N
~
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.2 Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity
of the (loss)/profit for the year and retained
profits to a change in interest rates of +100
basis point and —100 basis point (2019:
+100 basis point and —100 basis point) with
effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculations are based on the Group's bank
balances and interest-bearing bank and other
loans held at each reporting date which are
subject to variable interest rates. All other
variables are held constant.

2020 2019
Fi#&T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FI 2= £ 10018 Z 2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZF—NF 100fEE2) (2019: 100 basis point) higher
FR (EEFEE),HRIEM, Net (ossyprofit for the year
D e AR B IR A increased/decreased and retained
profits decreased by (939) (666)
T 1) 2 T Bk 1001 5 2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZ— N5 10018 HEZ) (2019: 100 basis point) lower
FR(EIRFE) AR, Net (ossyprofit for the year
S0 e AR B & A4 hn decreased/increased and retained
profits increased by 939 666

AEEEBEFEMN
K—EHEBTEEMNEK
R 2 R - WiB A%
FBRB M

The policies to manage interest rate risk have

been followed by the Group since prior years

are considered to be effective.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.3 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instruments and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
senior management compiles the credit and risk
management policies, to approve credit limits and
to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. As at 30 June 2020, the
carrying amount of these financial assets as disclosed
in note 52.1 best represent the maximum exposure
to credit risk. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from grating credit to customers in the

ordinary course of its business.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporates
this information into its credit risk controls.
Where available at reasonable cost, external
credit ratings and/or reports on customers and
other counterparties are obtained and used. The
Group's policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties. The credit policy has been followed

by the Group since prior years.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.3 Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables as at 30 June 2020 and 2019:

EEEBEZER:
TEHIR KR E AR AR AR BRI
Gross

R-B_FE Expected carrying Loss
~A=+H As at 30 June 2020 loss rate amount allowance
(%) FiET FiExT
HK$000 HK$’000
RIER Current 0.51% 33,726 173
#1HA0 — 30H 0-30 days past due 3.45% 7,770 268
#HA31 - 608 - 60 days past due 5.74% 12,659 726
#HI61 — 908 — 90 days past due 25.51% 8,527 2,175
#HA91 - 180H 91 — 180 days past due 53.42% 6,608 3,530
#H181 — 365H 181 — 365 days past due 77.70% 2,233 1,735
#HA365H A £ Over 365 days past due 97.60% 12,151 11,859

EEERRBEZ Credit impaired for specific
18 71| FE& W k18 debtors 43.29% 51,979 22,500
135,653 42,966
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BERBSR @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
523 fSERk (&) 52.3 Credit risk (continued)
E 1= B B % 2 Financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)
(#&)
B S EWGRIE (&) Trade receivables (continued)

BHBRKLE PR AR ER AR

Gross

RZZE—NEF Expected carrying Loss
~NA=+H As at 30 June 2019 loss rate amount allowance
(%) FAET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
BN ER Current 0.00% 68,842 -
# Hi0 — 30H 0-30 days past due 0.00% 16,315 =
#HA31 — 60H 31 - 60 days past due 0.00% 13,632 -
@ Hi61 - 90H 61 — 90 days past due 6.48% 4,349 282
A HA91 - 180H 91 — 180 days past due 22.50% 15,312 3,445
# 83181 - 365H 181 — 365 days past due 98.85% 13,743 13,585
#HA365H JA £ Over 365 days past due 100% 12,442 12,442
144,635 29,754
TERRIE R R B EHF 2 Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
BERBRACRABER Z experience over the few years. These rates are
LRARSELFE U adjusted to reflect differences between economic
F2 el W 5= 52 BB AR 2 conditions during the period over which the historic
BARD - B RTAR A K data has been collected, current conditions and
N6 B 4 PR R IR TE HR T the Group's view of economic conditions over the

BB BB 2 expected lives of the receivables.

Faﬁﬁlﬂ%ﬁ"

N
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.3 Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment of
trade receivables is as follows:

2020 2019

F#ET FAET

HK$'000 HK$°000

REF) 2 5 8R Balance at the beginning of the year 29,754 30,788
BRI EE R Impairment losses recognised 13,234 1,537
Ar e E s 2 €%  Amount written-off as uncollectible - (2,560)
EHZER Exchange difference (22) (11)
FREER Balance at the end of the year 42,966 29,754

REE 2 8 5 R WIAY
I AR R EARER
IR AEIR A -

None of the Group's trade receivables are secured by
collaterals or other credit enhancement.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

52.3

Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets measure at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
of the Group include long-term receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents. In respect
of cash and cash equivalents, since there is no
significant increase in credit risk, any loss allowance
recognised during the year is therefore limited
to 12-months ECLs. The directors consider the
probability of default is low on these balances since
the counterparties are financial institutions with high
credit rating or with good reputation.

Other receivables measured at amortised cost
are considered to have low credit risk as the
counterparties have a low risk of default and does
not have any past due amounts. Impairment on
these balances has been measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs. No loss allowance is
recognised as the amount of ECLs on these balances
is insignificant.

In respect of long-term receivables the outstanding
balances of HK$11,449,000 (2019: HK$12,149,000)
had been defaulted for years, and hence these
financial assets are credit impaired of which
loss allowance of HK$11,449,000 (2019:
HK$12,149,000) was made as at 30 June 2020.

N
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will
not able to meet its obligation associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows
in the short and long term. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank and other loans and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have

been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay.

Specifically, for bank and other loans which contain
a repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the lender’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights

to call the loans with immediate effect.
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B 755 [ Bk 5 52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
BERBUR @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
REBELRR (£Z) 52.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
ANRME L —EMNE
FEEE HENELE KREIXEE BIRWE MEMN L
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years
AT AT AT AT AT
HK000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZFZFERAZHA As at 30 June 2020
FiTEEMERH: Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
B Trade payables 74,010 74,010 74,010 - -
At ERFEREER Other payables and
accruals 35,566 35,566 35,566 = =
HEAE Lease liabilities 19,373 22432 4,801 4,076 13,555
RITREME Bank and other loans 751,663 751,663 751,663 - -
ERaEtEHE Due to joint ventures 696 696 696 - -
BB A RA Due to related
companies 30,550 32,468 - 30,823 1,645
ARNE Za) E g Due to non-controlling
interests 29,340 29,340 29,340 - -
BRIRRERZER Loan from a controlling
shareholder 4,388 4,388 - - 4,388
945,586 950,563 896,076 34,899 19,588
RZF-NE~AZ+A As at 30 June 2019
FiEERaR: Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
BHERIE Trade payables 64,059 64,059 64,059 - -
At ERFEREER Other payables and
accruals 42 397 42 397 42 397 - -
BERERE Obligation under
finance leases 35 35 35 - -
RITEH Bank loans 743,575 743,575 743,575 - -
e AR R Due to
a non-controlling
interests 21,671 21,671 21,671 - -
ARl NS Due to related
companies 31,669 31,669 - 30,702 %7
BRIRRERZER Loan from a controlling
shareholder 4549 4549 - 4549 -
907,955 907,955 871,737 35,251 97

N
ul
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank and other loans with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not consider that
it is probable that the bank and lender will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank and other loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

U RS -RERCERBHES
WEREXRBRALZRTRERER
Maturity analysis - Bank and other loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

ANAEE  -FRE -HRE

REEE RERELE REXME EIREE  WEML

Total More than

contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 2 years

TET AT TET TET TET
HKO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00

RIFEZEEXA=1H As at 30 June 2020
ROREMER Bank and other loans 751,663 710,167 95,136 640,055 34,976
RIFE-NEXA=1H As at 30 June 2019
RITER Bank loan 743,575 814,574 105,686 6,190 702,698
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the instruments and
derivatives, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

— Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

N
(]
~
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position
are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

BT

$18 %208 %38 @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS000
(Fi7E@) (BizE () (M3E)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
RZFZFERAZTH As at 30 June 2020
WATESAE MR EKE 2 Financial assets at fair value through
CREE other comprehensive income
~EBE LMz RARE ~ Equity investments listed in Hong Kong 14,463 - - 14,463
TSk RARE ~ Equity investments listed in overseas 1,143 - - 1,143
—BINE EmRARE ~ Unlisted equity investments in overseas - 144 - 144
WATESABR e BEAE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
~EBE LMz RAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 5,769 - - 5,769
~EB ET S — Bonds listed in overseas 7432 - - 7,432
28,807 144 - 28,951
RZZ-NE A=A As at 30 June 2019
WATEF AR MR EKE L Financial assets at fair value through other
SREE comprehensive income
—EEE LMz BARE ~ Equity investments listed in Hong Kong 14,488 = - 14,488
—H#I Mz RARE ~ Equity investments listed in overseas 2,675 = = 2,675
— N ERARE — Unlisted equity investments in overseas = 2,860 = 2,860
WATESABRZEBEAE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
—HEEE LM RAER ~ Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 5,842 = - 5,842
~EN LT ER — Bonds listed in overseas 7,582 = = 7,582
30,587 2,860 - 33,447
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

52.5 MEREMERRRERZ 52.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
RNEEFE (&) consolidated statement of financial position

RARFERFEZITER
BT B8 1 i s B

(continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for

the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

HE Eb 7 4 i o compared to the previous reporting periods.

Hat: Notes:

(@) ETRAES K T (a) Fair values of listed equity securities and listed
BEH 2 AFEES bonds have been determined by reference to their
EHMRRER 2T market prices at the reporting date and have been
BAEE  WEIRR translated using the spot foreign currency rates at
S HAR 2 BNERSINES fE the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

i d (@A) o

(b) FEETRAIREZ R (b) Fair values of unlisted equity investments are
HELEREUIA measured using quoted prices in active markets for
GBS RE 5k similar instruments, or using valuation techniques
FERMmERRIM (B in which all significant inputs are directly or
FBEESAEHE indirectly based on observable market data.

BEok PRI E R AT
MiHEIR) &2

(©) FAFIBZAEE (© The Group's financial assets classified in Level 3

SREERAZME use valuation technique based on significant inputs

B - THEAAIEIA
AEBEMSRIEAE
EZBEBEHAE

FA-FIEEFE 2 MBI
BEATEASEE TER
BEAREHEIE(=F
—NEF )

that are not based on observable market data.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).
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REEEREB HEZBEAME The primary objective of the Group's capital management
REFRECEETREERL is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
A FHHEEBREREEER healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
RAZSZS- shareholders’ value.
AEEEBEHEERER WEE The Group manages its capital structure and makes
AR B EE TR - BHER adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
SR E AL ANEE A R conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
MERIKN ZRE  mMRER Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
BERNNEITHRD -RAFE return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
MBEFE AEEHMESNE changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
2 BRI IR o during the current and previous years.
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i+= EFREHE @) 53. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
AEBEHAEERGBR X (A& The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
TEFRARR PARE & R R IR TEF net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
H)EREER BEFBEUGE are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
ISR RN 2 $R17 R E b fe less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated
BRI e R EHEAHE - statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
AEBEEEHEERRLXER the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors
REBKF-BEEZRE A&EH are of the opinion that the Group's gearing ratio was
RiRE R BEEB G RAER maintained at reasonable level at the reporting date. The
REBKF -RERBZEE gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:
BELRMT:
2020 2019
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$000
mBaR Current liabilities
RIT R EMERR Bank and other loans 751,663 743,575
JEfT& & RIE Due to joint ventures 696 =
JE A< JE 42 il i 2 SR IE Due to non-controlling interests 29,340 21,671
HEBE Lease liabilities 3,976 =
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 15,397 =
FET BB A BRI RRIE Due to related companies 30,550 31,669
PEIRRR R IR 2 B K Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,388 4,549
BIRETE Total debts 836,010 801,464
B MeNRIREEFRE Less: Cash and cash equivalents (468,521) (621,380)
BT Net debts 367,489 180,084
ERER Total equity 2,366,275 2,422,431
RS AER L ERFE Total equity and net debts 2,733,764 2,602,515
EEER/ILE Gearing ratio 13.44% 6.92%

W
o
=
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54.

55.

56.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the
consolidated financial statements had been adjusted in
order to conform to current year's presentation.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 continues to spread around
the world and its duration is still uncertain, a prolonged
coronavirus pandemic may have an adverse impact on the
Group's future financial performance, even though part of
the impact has been reflected into the year ended 30 June
2020. The Group will continue to closely monitor the latest
development of the outbreak of COVID-19 so as to adopt
positive counter-measures to overcome any challenges
arising and to assess the related impact to the Group on a
continuous basis.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2020 were approved for issue by the directors on 28
September 2020.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

fhaHE4
WERE it 3 FEEEGES i} HEH BaRER BEEER THER EEE:A:E
Estimated
Attributable approximate
interest Approximate gross floor  Stage of Estimated
Lot No. Location of the Group Use Lease term site area area  completion completion date
(Fr %) (F7R)
(sqft) sqft)
BERBE1URBTHA EiEfrEfE3% % EE =4 5798 86908 LERETREMT 2021
The remaining portion of Marine Lot no. 124 232 Wan Chai Road, Wan Chai, Commercial Long Superstructure in
Hong Kong progress
FARABRENGHA B CRRAR NERDEEEET TA 9RIAK 0% EEREE Gk 3,240 9110 HETRERH 202
HNENBREITHA B CRR
SRR NERBEE2198FA B CRR
R
Section A, B, C and the remaining portion of New Nos 7, 7A, 9 and 9A, Commercial and Medium Foundation work in
Kowloon Inland lot 2196, Section A, B, C and Cheung Wah Street, residential progress
the remaining portion of New Kowloon Inland Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
ot 2197, and Section A, B, C and the remaining
portion of Inland lot No. 2198.
JL >, L
BHEEREZYE PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
B 1E 12 AEEEGEE RBE HEH
Attributable
interest
Lot No. Location of the Group  Use Lease term
LENMMERE120FE6RARRCE  MATHBUAKERRHFAE 100%  HH g
9K 10KE 1138 12180 1388
1518 - 1612 - 1712 - 1912 - 2018«
AL Yo
Section A and section C of 9/F, 10/F, 11/F, 12/, 13/F, 15/F, 16/F, Rental Medium
Lot no 3689 in D.D. 120 17/F, 19/F, 20/F, 21/F and 22/F,
Glassview Commercial Building,
No. 65 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories
NEEZHREAFIRR NEAHBEG- AR RREE 100%  HHE g
BEZ R ERHRE1D B 185l LR L = BEP=
Section | of Kowloon Marine Unit P 1st Floor, Kaiser Estate Rental Medium

lot No. 40 and sub-Section 1

of section H of Kowloon Marine lot No. 40

3rd Phase, Nos. 9 - 11A
Hok Yuen Street,

No. 18 Man Lok Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

as extracted from the respective published audited financial

statements and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This

summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements.
==
E47 RESULTS
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
FET FHET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Yrzz Revenue 420,315 440,967 391,882 627,293 552,575
BRETER AT (BR) /5H (Loss)Profit before
/ income tax (13,673) 26,424 429,833 102,549 (186,055)
FEH (%) /E% Income tax (expense)/credit (4,209) 22,188 (75,078) (4,098) 10,363
ER(BB),/BH (Loss)Profit for the year (17,882) 48612 354,755 98,451 (175,692)
RIS Non-controlling interests 2,541 (4,933) 4 (145) 26
/NGIE NG Net (loss)/profit attributable
(BiEZE) /A to the owners of
the Company (15,341) 43,679 354,759 98,306 (175,666)
EE AERIEEBIES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
FET FET FET FET FET
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEE Total assets 3,456,478 3,475,287 3,474,725 2,314,865 2,954,644
BEE Total liabilities (1,090,203) (1,052,856) (1,230,442) (470,400) (1,230,703)
EaT o Non-controlling interests (186,692) (183,638) 6,402 6,398 6,156
2,179,583 2,238,793 2,250,685 1,850,863 1,730,097
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